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THEFHBREBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BRIFFIGLEASN - L B & ET BEN) (In HK$ million unless otherwise specified)
5 & 28 Sales
EH Gross profit
FE R & Gross margin
wom N (87 743) Operating profit (Note 3)
KR K (K7 523) Operating margin (Note 3)
EBITDA (477#3) EBITDA (Note 3)
EBITDA FI| & (47 723) EBITDA margin (Note 3)
QAR R AL & N (T 723) Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company (Note 3)
SHE B ¥ & (B i73) Return on sales (Note 3)
Y& ERTER R E (A i73) Return on average total assets (Note 3)
IR N TR R FE G R S B 3R K (A7 573) Return on average equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
(Note 3)
ReERBOTETRIRITER Cash and bank balances less bank loans
EBES (MiE3) Working capital (Note 3)
BEBE(WZ3) Total assets (Note 3)
BEBE(WiE3) Total liabilities (Note 3)
FEYXANRE RS (R) (M Z1) Inventory turnover on costs (days) (Note 1)
TE L = (5 80 (41 723) Current ratio (times) (Note 3)
BRAMN — EXCEM) Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents)
RS GBI Dividend per share (HK cents)
SRR B B Special dividend per share (HK cents)
PGS S Dividend payout ratio
MERBRHEE (FK) Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
MEBE Market capitalization
FRMAMEHE Stores as at year end
KEBEECEEE Stores operated directly by the Group
 nEAmEE L (A E2) Stores operated by franchisees (Note 2)
2T RE Total stores worldwide
it Notes:
1. FREABZEEREFHEXRATUNFRNBH 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of days
in the year
2. H—REEESEAR M AKA W REE DA 2. Stores in markets operated by a joint venture in South Korea, United Arab Emirates
(20MMERARFEE) - BB & RE B (20154 & LA AT and Saudi Arabia (prior to year 2011), Kuwait and Qatar (prior to year 2015),
FE) SEQOITFRURNERE)RE-EMEABME Vietnam (prior to year 2017), and third-party franchisees

Bz migm

3. 01BF AR FE 2B FWREARMNE B G ERN9E 3 The adoption impact of Hong Kong Accounting Standards 19 Employee benefits are
B 18 I 1 58 B not reflected in the years prior 2013
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THEFHBREZBERE
TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
5,509 5,412 5,145 5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673 5,614 4,731 4,233
3,250 3,221 3,055 3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283 2,731 2,175
59.0% 59.5% 59.4% 57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5% 57.7% 51.4%
625 689 568 556 542 828 1,005 909 695 320
11.3% 12.7% 11.0% 10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2% 14.7% 7.6%
821 874 748 743 760 1,066 1,247 1,123 866 487
14.9% 16.1% 14.5% 13.8% 13.7% 18.2% 22.0% 20.0% 18.3% 11.5%
480 500 434 426 408 663 826 728 537 288
8.7% 9.2% 8.4% 7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0% 11.4% 6.8%
12.8% 13.5% 12.2% 11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8% 18.5% 11.1%
16.8% 17.5% 15.2% 14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3% 23.7% 14.5%
1,017 1,167 1,095 1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209 978 750
1,465 1,526 1,410 1,405 1,401 1,616 1,555 1,658 1,385 1,047
4,124 4,322 4,114 3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822 3,320 2,810
1,115 1,181 1,147 881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001 827 624
89 87 78 78 80 82 74 95 74 52
2.5 2.5 2.4 2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8 2.9 3.0
30.5 31.80 27.70 27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80 48.20 36.00 19.30
33.5 35.00 27.50 27.00 25.00 40.00 40.00 38.00 11.50 9.00
- — — — — — — — 15.50 7.00
109.8%  110.1% 99.3% 99.6% 96.2% 93.9% 74.3% 78.8% 75.0% 82.9%
1,578,501 1,570,631 1,570,953 1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,521,291 1,496,069 1,491,647
5,840 6,534 6,582 5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565 6,777 3,431
1,323 1,349 1,364 1,385 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232 1,052 1,015
1,103 1,065 1,033 986 1,001 1,143 1,199 1,439 1,301 1,099
2,426 2,414 2,397 2,371 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671 2,353 2,114
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BEEg BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors
2 B 4 LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FEFITHBAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
ﬁ%;a‘:%jé‘ CHAN Ka Wai
EEBEX Mark Alan LOYND
EHITES Non-Executive Directors
80 75 flup CHENG Chi Kong up
=) CHAN Sai Cheong
BIFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
2K Barry John BUTTIFANT
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BEX Mark Alan LOYND
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2N (FE) Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman)
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=8 WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
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=5 I Barry John BUTTIFANT
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e Mark Alan LOYND
20193 A7H EE E * Appointed on March 7, 2019
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors”) (collectively, the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2018.

For the year 2018, the Group’s profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company was HK$480 million, compared with
HK$500 million reported for 2017. Gross margin was slightly lower at
59.0%. Having considered the Group’s business outlook and financial
position, the Board has declared a total dividend of HK33.5 cents per
share. Management has provided a detailed discussion and analysis of
the 2018 results of operations and financial condition in this annual
report.

The retail industry experienced one of its most difficult years in 2018,
due mainly to the uncertainty brought about by the Sino-US trade
dispute which set in from the second quarter, as well as unseasonably
warm weather in the fourth quarter. Despite these adverse factors, the
Group managed its inventory levels and gross margin in order to
maintain profitability and to protect its brand equity. The uncertainty
will, however, continue to prevail and the retail sector will face ongoing
challenges.

While continuing our partnership with existing franchisees in Mainland
China and overseas, the Group has embarked on an aggressive move
to develop new franchise markets such as Africa and India. The results
from these efforts will materialize in 2020 and beyond.

Our executive “fast-trackers” are now deployed in significant roles
throughout the Group. We will continue to recruit young talent and
groom them to serve our shareholders, as part of our ongoing
succession plan.

2019 will be a year of unpredictability, with the transitory concerns
stemming from the evident volatility in global markets and economies
crossing over from 2018. The philosophy of your management is that
where there is crisis, there is opportunity. In light of dampened
consumer sentiment and demand, production costs and operating
expense are returning to a reasonable level. While earnestly exploring
new markets, the Group is also fervently improving profitability of our
subsidiaries and our franchisees alike.

As always, the Group observes the highest standards of transparency
and social responsibility. | refer you to the standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report contained in this annual report for
details of the Group’s relevant policies and practices.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & #
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ITEBRESE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Finally, my senior management team and | would like to thank our
shareholders, business partners and staff for the trust bestowed in and
the support afforded to us.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 7, 2019

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
GROUP RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL

POSITION

The following commentaries refer to year-on-year (“YOY”) comparison
of the Group, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

unless otherwise indicated.

OVERVIEW

AEEABBRRESED HEZRZRE: "
B ¥EGiordano N Giordano Junior ~ Giordano
Ladies * BSXLA R B B A RIFELE 2 M

Fé o

M2018F 124318 » FH & @2,426 FAm ™
(2%2,330,078F A Rz ZE =) Ak 2 4
woOmRMESE MEMELINFEOR

4 H 1,300/ BB PIT o B K% EH M
MALARPEME  FEE - REERFE-
BMiEtE RS HEREEEMT - FRM™
B FIE 12/ - RAFFR o

REFE7AEBEHEER AHQEST £ "
FIE B59.0% - NEBE A LRI HE R
([AREERERPIMHERE] 2R AT L&KM
MEMAEETEERTERND 2D 5T
B0.1%K1.4% o RoEH T HEEEMIEH

iR

AABBREREERASHRZEN ((RRE "
1608 1) R4.808 # 7T - B20175F | 4
4.0% -

MR2018F12A31H R & LBTH&F (0K =
RITERE) BI0ATEB T -

AEBEHEREAHEEE BRELEE(EEEDE
S RERREMAAEN FAMHMERZHER -

AEEALRMTHER /AEHTLBEMITERNER 2
BERE—HRANRE2EAE 2 RAEEERMNAER
BHOAHHBARNERREHEREMNEBE
REEERFTE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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The Group is an international apparel retailer with a portfolio of
brands, including Giordano and Giordano Junior, Giordano
Ladies, BSX, as well as other owned and licensed brands.

We offer high-quality, value-for-money and easy-to-wear apparel
through a network of 2,426 stores (or 2,330,078 sq. ft. of retail
floor space) as at December 31, 2018, of which 1,309 were
standalone stores. Majority of the stores were in Greater China,
South Korea, Southeast Asia and the Middle East. We manage
our stores by geographic regions and by distribution channels.
Net increase of stores during the year was 12, as shown in
Table 1.

Group sales' for the year were HK$5,509 million at a gross
margin of 59.0%. The Group’s comparable store sales (“Group
CSS”)2 and comparable store gross profit (“Group CSGP”)? were
down by 0.1% and 1.4%, respectively. Table 2 provides details
by major markets.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders of the
Company (“PATS”) was HK$480 milion, a decrease of 4.0%
from 2017.

Cash and bank balances, net of bank loan, were HK$1,017 million
at December 31, 2018.

Group sales refer to consolidated sales and include retail sales from directly operated
stores (“DOS”) and sales to all overseas/non-consolidated franchisees.

Group CSS/Group CSGP are total Giordano brand sales/gross profit of consolidated

subsidiaries, at constant exchange rates, from existing DOS and franchised stores
that have been fully operating in the same prior period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

®1 - MmAEE Table 1: Store portfolio
ZEEH
(FEAR)
FAmEE M12H31H
A12H31H Retail floor space
Store numbers (sq. ft. in thousands)
at December 31 at December 31
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZERDH Retail and Distribution
AR B K fE Mainland China
JREENAS Franchised stores 639 605 493 471
BHEE DOS 208 324 250 268
K E fth it [= The rest of Asia Pacific 606 602 634 619
=0 Taiwan 200 200 198 195
R The Middle East
hnEE JE Franchised stores 39 41 38 44
BHEE DOS 143 148 176 182
BHE KRN Hong Kong and Macau 76 75 87 86
B IS Overseas franchisees 425 419 454 447
ay Total 2,426 2,414 2,330 2,312

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & % m B R 2o 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REHEE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
K2 AEEREXEE Table 2: Group results of operations
EHER HHES
BOH BAlt
% to % to )
(UEEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
DAEMME The rest of Asia Pacific 1,623 29.5% 1,502 27.8% 8.1%
LK B Mainland China 1,293 23.5% 1,307 24.1% (1.1%)
BB LR Hong Kong and Macau 959 17.4% 969 17.9% (1.0%)
= Taiwan 671 12.2% 642 11.9% 4.5%
RER The Middle East 636 11.5% 673 12.4% (5.5%)
HENMNBERZHBEER Wholesale sales to
overseas franchisees 327 5.9% 319 5.9% 2.5%
AEEHEER Group sales 5,509 100.0% 5,412 100.0% 1.8%
£ Gross profit 3,250 59.0% 3,221 59.5% 0.9%
BEER Operating expense (2,711) (49.2%) (2,644) (48.9%) 2.5%
perating exp
meRT Operating profit 625 11.3% 689 12.7% (9.3%)
EBITDA EBITDA 821 14.9% 874 16.1% (6.1%)
FR R FE A5 R A PATS 480 8.7% 500 9.2% (4.0%)
2 mIBHEE Global brand sales® 6,961 7,067 (1.5%)
2HMBERP Global brand gross profit? 4,272 4,363 (2.1%)
AEBTHBRMTHERLRE Group CSS growth (0.1%) 5.2%
AEEUEBMATENERE  Group CSGP growth (1.4%) 5.0%
FRAERBTEFT IR Net cash and bank balances
at year end 1,017 1,167 (12.9%)
FRFE Inventories at year end 552 524 5.3%
FEHAAREAY Inventory turnover on costs
((FerEAg))(R)" (“ITOC”) (days)* 89 87 2

8 2RAEHEREENDIR2018FERHE  HafEE 3

FRREEE MEERGEARAZMAMZTEHE
BAEMNGEE AURASEHEERE7 -

¢ FERBRBEFABEZFERUABEERARAZE ¢

EHE-

10 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B R E B AERAF

Global brand sales/gross profit are at 2018 exchange rates, and are greater than
Group sales/gross profit to include the total of Giordano retail sales/gross profit, in
directly operated stores, franchised stores and stores operated by a joint venture.

ITOC refers to inventories held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied
by number of days in the year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HEHERER

REBEHEREMER18%  FRETEXRKE
AlER0.9% ° ¥ FHF2% 2 BBYER - T
FFREBE2% 2 HIE - FEXBE S METRE
REZMEESEREENS  BHZTETER
BRHERA  THFAKEHEERTK IR
HRAPEMENHER K - NEB L&A
M ER L AEE A L ®PITmERM D BT #0.1%
N1.4% o

AEEMNETISHBRMEZEE TEXRAEKX
FEMRNEZFFEERRMNBEREL - IR
BEEMWRAAESIAMEB T BEXAE1.3%(RE
3 BMECENETEBERERET THRE
REKBE_REFEHBER - £2018F - K&
EEZEMSHLEETES BHAIERRRE
AR A #E 3R o

EREHEREFSI T IRBEL K - YRR LB
SMNEA T 2 HE BRI E R IER2.6% - IS EE
BRETHGLENBERIHUBHEEE AAHE

REBNEZBERD °

I

=

120 A T 90 SR R AE 2 BR R FE 8 BB /985.6% © 1
RAEHEAENES T EL 7 ERMAMIEE
BT ®RMMEERE]) L K6.9% « M Al L& P
MEMAAIEEPITER]) B EFH4.8% - BE A
HERPFIMEERE LA LEPIMmERND BIE151.1%
F1s%s W /NIBIR - BRMHO S ELZE QB
Giordano Ladies#: 818 K - E2018F N » # fi %
B84 Giordano LadiesPI ™ @ 815 48 84 & 584.52
BA T 820174 K94.2318%8 JT 1€ 116.9% °
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Sales and gross profit

Group sales increased slightly by 1.8%, or by 0.9% if translated at
constant exchange rates. The first half registered a stronger growth of
9.2% while the second half recorded a decline of 5.2%. The Sino-US
trade dispute has created greater uncertainty and overshadowed global
economic prospects, gradually affecting the retail environment and
consumer sentiment. The decline in group sales in the second half of
the year was mainly attributable to the decline in sales in Greater
China. Group CSS and Group CSGP were down by 0.1% and 1.4%,
respectively.

The Group’s e-business is directly-managed and derived mainly from
both third-party platforms and our own website in Greater China. This
channel generated HK$314 million in revenue at a 1.3% growth rate
(see Table 3). Our e-business in Taiwan was revamped during the year
and is now our second largest e-business operation. In 2018, the
Group launched e-business in a number of its markets and anticipates
meaningful contributions within the next two years.

Sales from physical stores recorded a stable growth of 1.7%.
Wholesale sales to both onshore and offshore franchisees grew by
2.6%. We will continue to expand both e-business and wholesale sales
to franchisees as the operating margin is generally higher.

Core Giordano lines constituted 85.6% of global brand sales. Under an
integrated marketing approach, comparable store sales (“CSS”) of
childrenswear rose by 6.9% while comparable store gross profit
(“CSGP”) rose by 4.8%. Despite recording smaller growth rates for
CSS and CSGP of 1.1% and 1.5%, respectively, our premium
womenswear brand, Giorgano Ladies, continued to grow. During
2018, we had 84 Giordano Ladies stores which recorded total sales of
452 million, compared with 423 million in 2017, representing an
increase of 6.9%.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIBREBT2HER

Table 3: Sales by channels

BRt BR #E

(HEZEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 Contribution 2017 Contribution Change
ERE Physical stores 4,440 80.6% 4,366 80.7% 1.7%
ETHS E-business 314 5.7% 310 5.7% 1.3%
TEHEER Retail sales 4,754 86.3% 4,676 86.4% 1.7%
HMBH IR EHEER Wholesale sales to franchisees 755 13.7% 736 13.6% 2.6%
FEEHEE Group sales 5,509 100.0% 5,412 100.0% 1.8%

AEBRBREITBHBRBELECEBREREE
LAVRBEEFIR - @ H2018F N EFRFHIUNET
ERE AFEEREBERFTRRERHEIY  ERE
AR BOSEE D B E59.0% » REBEFE R
0.9%E32.5018 /& T (20174 : 32218 & L) » &=
TREEAFHEE LFAT6%ME MK FHYESR
B 7R 18 hN8.5% K #8208 D 6.3% AT 88 - FFHE M
RABESFTZANARBAE  MABHERK
BETEKEMES - AN ZYEZE6ARBAR
BRECHBER BEEFEBRET -RNBmE
RAEMMETEINRBEEDEFTREELSRES R
RE)EFZE - HARNEB N ENEZE B4R - 8
EYERR GRS RUSHRRERER -
FRARB T AKBERN 2 BB T o

R4 BWEB ST Z2ERNEZEEDN

The Group is steadfast in defending gross margin through disciplined
merchandising and stringent pricing. Faced with a fierce competitive
retail landscape in the second half of 2018, the Group offered
extended season-end promotions, resulting in a minor decrease in
gross margin of 0.5 percentage points to 59.0%. Group gross profit
grew by 0.9% to HK$3,250 million (2017: HK$3,221 million), driven
mainly by an increase in average selling price of 7.6%, offset by an
increase in average product cost of 8.5% and volume decrease of
6.3%. Average product cost was higher due largely to the appreciation
of the Renminbi as the majority of our products were sourced from
Mainland China. However, the impact began to diminish with the
depreciation of the Renminbi since June which stabilized towards the
end of the year. Overseas sourcing from Vietnam and Bangladesh
have helped maintain and will gradually improve future gross margin.
The Group’s gross margin was temporarily trimmed while its financial
position remained robust to support its growth strategy in the long
term. An analysis of change in Group gross profit is provided in Table
4,

Table 4: Gross profit variance analysis by region

EZREYE
ERRE EE BEREELE  Translational
Product Selling #E Vietnam exchange Eth
(WEEETEEN) (In HKS milony 2017 costs price Volume  acquisition impact  Miscellaneous 2018
SREMEE The rest of Asia Pacific 900 ) 76 ) R 7 - 968
hEARE Mainland China 708 (55) 86 70) - 15 2 686
B REM Hong Kong and Macau 664 (20) 49 (40) - - 2 655
mE The Middle East 431 16 9 (54) - 3 6 393
8 Taiwan 304 1) 57 (25) - 7 - 42
mEia Market mix - ] 16 (13 - - - -
ZERSE Retail and distribution 3,097 (124) 275 (208) 32 2 10 3,114
HENMEBE/KEBLA  Wholesale sales to overseas
IHBHER franchisees/subsidlaries 124 136
i& Group 3,221 3,250

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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Efi A REMK=EBFEIETREA - F B I
A-HeBA EXREERLEEEZRE  ©
20184 )5 12,6008 # ;T £8,6008 B T * HEZE
AREEeRMEEN —2BWE RIE —HEH B
REMB RS - AEETELECRHEECR
B R IE H R s R o

KeEBEH

B R RIEFER49.2% (20174 : 48.9% ) - AR
B TRBRREZELCEAREHASEREAS
BowE(CHEEEAFREWRE)AZMT - FIm
THEHHEEBE L REM TR PmEcHEE
7R B21.0% (20174 : 21.4% )  #RE T
AN RMEANNBRABE LB TKA
HIEEE L RERI174% L FE17.6% °

LR A

HEESE T B6.258 B T - W A9.3% ¢ MW TR &
HESHEEN —Z2BRIRWE —FHBRQR
Rk s - BIEER A7.5%

®’o:BHES S ZHERERKEE BN ER

Other income and other gains, net

Other income and other gains, which comprise royalty income, interest
income, rental income, exchange difference and gain from disposal of
assets, decreased by HK$26 milion to HK$86 million in 2018, due
mainly to a one-off gain on disposal of financial assets and acquisition
gain of a subsidiary. There are no gains or losses realized on the sale
of financial assets in current year and decrease in exchange gain.

Operating expense

Operating expense ratio was stable at 49.2% (2017: 48.9%). Shop
occupancy charges to sales were slightly lower due to the closure of
non-performing DOS and the opening of stores in more reasonably-
priced locations, particularly in Greater China. Shop occupancy
charges to sales were 21.0% (2017: 21.4%). Although staff cost
increased, reflecting a general inflationary trend in the industry, total
staff cost to sales only increased from 17.4% to 17.6%.

Operating profit

Operating profit was HK$625 million, a decrease of 9.3%, but would
have only been down by 7.5% if excluding the one-off gain on
disposal of financial assets and acquisition gain of a subsidiary.

Table 5: Sales and operating profit contribution by region

% B85z 5t
Contribution by region

BERA

SHEH Operating

H £2018F12A31R L EE For the year ended December 31, 2018 Sales profit
o8 K H At 3 [% The rest of Asia Pacific 29.5% 37.4%
B K B Mainland China 23.5% 14.2%
NS Hong Kong and Macau 17.4% 17.3%
=0 Taiwan 12.2% 10.6%
R The Middle East 11.5% 13.7%
HENMBm 2 EEESE Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees 5.9% 7.8%
HBIINMB AR 2 #HBEIEERE Wholesale sales to overseas subsidiaries - 11.1%

REER - OB EMUIA RS Headquarter expense, net of other income

and gains - (12.1%)

100.0% 100.0%
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B 15 B B1.4218 8 7T (20175 175 B 1) - B
BR R R 520.8% (20174 : 23.5% ) - BB R T &
TR R2017F 5HHE — IR M1 B B 8 K 20184 1% N
A EEIRE -

R F) R IR AL BR B 15 Bt %08 7

fi% TR & 15 % R T £4.0% £ 4.8018 78 7T (20174 -
5.008870) » IAR6FTR « ERN EXFATZ RA -
FEAE RO AD0SEE D2 E8.7% °

®R6:BRREMLENBE DN

Income taxes

Income taxes amounted to HK$142 million (2017: HK$175 million),
representing an effective tax rate of 20.8% (2017: 23.5%). The
effective tax rate was lowered as there was a one-off tax provision
made in 2017 and increased utilization of tax losses in 2018.

Profit after income taxes attributable to shareholders
of the Company

PATS decreased by 4.0% to HK$480 million (2017: HK$500 million), as
shown in Table 6. Net margin was 8.7%, a slight decrease of 0.5
percentage points, for reasons cited in the preceding commentaries.

Table 6: Analysis of change in PATS

(BB TTRENN) (In HK$ million)
B | 520174 IR X F& 45 3% 7 Reported 2017 PATS 500
BN E fth i [= The rest of Asia Pacific 30
SR Hong Kong and Macau 13
EE: South Korea 4
=01 Taiwan 1
HEMNEE, B AR it EEERE Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees/subsidiaries (4)
A K B Mainland China (32)
R The Middle East (36)
Frigmi - JEfEd it BEERLEHNER Income taxes, non-controlling interests, finance expense

and headquarter expense (3)
018F KT ERBEEZHE ZRREMLEF 2018 PATS without currency translation difference 473

BE¥BREER Currency translation difference 7
B iR E2018F IR R E L & R Reported 2018 PATS 480
iR Al ANALYSIS BY MARKET
UWTZEEMZERUNEME® AEMN - A2  The following market-specific comments are in local currencies or, if in

BT AEN - BRI E EE X - AR ®E &
BRERMEE 2T - ELEBEFRHARMIBRIAFRE
WEBENERKAZTZE -

14 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

HK$, are at constant exchange rates to remove distortions from the
translation of financial statements. These figures have not removed the
impact on imported product costs contracted at non-local currencies.
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H B K BE Mainland China
R7 P E K Table 7: Mainland China
HEER hHER
Bt ERld

% to % to L)
(UANE®FETAE)  (In Renminbi million) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
Ry DOS 522 47.8% 556 49.3% (6.1%)
RIMNER 2B HER Wholesale sales to franchisees 333 30.5% 323 28.6% 3.1%
EFH% E-business 237 21.7% 250 22.1% (5.2%)
BEER Total sales 1,092 100.0% 1,129 100.0% (3.3%)
EF Gross profit 580 53.1% 612 54.2% (5.2%)
REBR Operating expense (518) (47.4%) (522) (46.2%) (0.8%)
H =gl Operating profit 75 6.9% 102 9.0% (26.5%)
ERRE DOS 522 556 (6.1%)
e JE Franchised stores 555 546 1.6%
BFEK E-business 237 250 (5.2%)
b 3H B Total brand sales 1,314 1,352 (2.8%)

AR EEERR  CSS growth (0.9%) 8.9%

AHEMmENERE CSGP growth (2.5%) 8.9%
BIE DOS 298 324 (26)
g Franchised stores 639 605 34
FRAMHE Stores at year end 937 929 8

FREAEEKEIIFTXESUN MET R F
2 RPBEKBEEREANTAPRRE L HER
TEXRBEREBERE 5l AEEKEAL
KM HER FHK0.9% - EF BB REFEEM
BRI REFEBERBSRFIETHM S RS E
BHEE-

&8 KR P
R8I BHEEBNRAM

Mainland China business was affected by the Sino-US trade dispute
and volatility in the stock market, which increased uncertainties on
China’s economic growth and negatively impacted the domestic retail
performance. In this connection, the Group recorded CSS decrease of
0.9%. The two strategic channels of e-business and franchising will
continue to be our key drivers in the medium term.

Hong Kong and Macau
Table 8: Hong Kong and Macau

HHEER HHERE
BAk B
% to % to b

(UEEETHBEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
BHER Total sales 959 100.0% 969 100.0% (1.0%)
EHM Gross profit 655 68.3% 664 68.5% (1.4%)
REER Operating expense (551) (57.5%) (567) (58.5%) (2.8%)
s A Operating profit 108 11.3% 95 9.8% 13.7%
AHRMmEEEERE  CSS growth 3.1% 5.7%
AR MENERE CSGP growth 1.9% 4.7%
FRAMEHE Stores at year end 76 75 1
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EEEMRM AREHRLH;E  BAZRE
HARBARBB Z AR EH B EERNEE
RERATREEUBIER -ZMEEAFES
“ERAREREBEREERNTERRE - BARR
REEERLXFTHHERERTNEE -

In Hong Kong and Macau, well-executed marketing programs, smart
promotional activities and stringent cost control all helped achieve
double-digit growth amidst complex macroeconomic conditions. This
market experienced a difficult retail landscape caused by an economic
slowdown since the third quarter of the year. Severe typhoons and an
abnormally warm winter also adversely affected its sales.

=91 Taiwan
RO &8 Table 9: Taiwan
LHEEH HIHEHE
Batt ER
% to % to L)
(UBEEHEEABEN) (In New Taiwanese Dollar million) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
BIHE R Total sales 2,586 100.0% 2,516 100.0% 2.8%
EH Gross profit 1,588 61.4% 1,543 61.3% 2.9%
K ER Operating expense (1,342) (51.9%) (1,316) (52.3%) 2.0%
s Operating profit 254 9.8% 249 9.9% 2.0%
ABRMMHEEEERE  CSS growth 1.2% 1.1%
A MmERNERE CSGP growth 1.7% 5.2%
FRMAMHE Stores at year end 200 200 -

BER2018F F¥F HIR R - $115 4 &% 7)1
’34.9% 2 FLERFELR2.0% - BN
REPEZEFAULERNTHPEZ - A5E K
EEETHRESREATEHRFIERE N -

TAHMHE
R10: TAHMHE

Taiwan rebounded to report an operating profit increase of 34.9% in
the first half of 2018. Its operating profit only increased by 2.0% for
the full year, similarly due to the uncertainty created by the Sino-US
trade dispute. E-business of the Group in Taiwan continued its growth
momentum throughout the year.

The rest of Asia Pacific
Table 10: The rest of Asia Pacific region

HEER k=]
BOl Elad
(U BFEETHEN (In HK$ million, transiated % to % to B2E
HEEEFRHE) at constant exchange rates) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
BHER Total sales 1,618 100.0% 1,502 100.0% 7.7%
E Gross profit 961 59.4% 900 59.9% 6.8%
REBR Operating expense (737) (45.6%) (709) (47.2%) 3.9%
B HEM Operating profit 234 14.5% 204 13.6% 14.7%
AHBRMmEEEERE  CSS growth 0.3% 2.2%
AL &P E S R & CSGP growth (0.2%) 3.1%
FRMATEHE Stores at year end 606 602 4

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EDAHMME HE FELRBEMHESRT
R RIEE AN BUEEBER THREER
5.6% ° bR 2 L& E ML fE - FE KB
BREGEEER TEANHEENRE RKAZES AT
B o

R DAHMHE(RTIHFE D)

In the rest of Asia Pacific, sales improvement was particularly notable
in Indonesia, Thailand and Vietnam. The acquired Vietnam operations
contributed to 5.6% of the regional sales. Operating profit from the
region recorded positive growth from Indonesia, Thailand and Vietnam,
attributable largely to improved sales and cost control.

Table 11: The rest of Asia Pacific region (by market)

R12B318 2
THEBMAT THBRMT MmEA
HER HEBHERE ERARRE Store number at
Sales CSS growth CSGP growth December 31
(HEEETAEN (In HKS$ million, translated #E
KETEXHE) at constant exchange rates) 2018 2017 Change 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ffe Indonesia 618 565 11.4% 3.6% 8.1% 0.8% 10.3% 249 252
% Thailand 340 325 4.6% 1.1% (6.4%) 2.7% (7.5%) 169 162
0% Singapore 305 311 (1.9%)  (2.2%) 0.2% (4.3%) 2.3% 43 44
ERFS Malaysia 188 186 1.1% (5.2%) 8.8% (1.7%) 7.7% 93 )
e Vietnam* 40 1250% FEANA FEENA FEANA TEENA 39 29
BN Australia 76 (182%)  11.4% 7.2% 9.4% 10.8% 11 16
RER Cambodia 9 22.2% (8.2%) 29.8% (8.4%) 34.9% 2 1
0E India - FEANA FEANA TEBNA FERANA TERNA = 6
st Total 1618 1502 7%  03% 22%  (02%)  31% 606 602

MR EBR2017F7ATIRKE BB ASREEXEE
RNAEEAGEARK -

ENl fE #yGiordano & 3EGiordanofs & 2 #£ 88 7] b 8
PIMSHERE LA LEEMI T EFNIERES B A7.0%
}3.6% -+ & E R MN16.0%  KIRE R - T H
EESSETER  LEEMNEM11% =2
HREERERNEFNEHE2.6%EE1.2[E 5
2HZ63.8% o KT MNYE » £ &% F T (£6.0% -
BREBEES NTRIREABRL ABE W ERKR
R -
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Vietnam operations were acquired on July 1, 2017 and its results were consolidated
by the Group since the acquisition date.

Indonesia stood out with an overall CSS and CSGP growth of 7.0%
and 3.6%, respectively, for both Giordano and non-Giordano brands,
with operating profit increasing by 16.0%. Thailand continued to
achieve stable growth, with operating profit advancing by 11.1%,
attributable mainly to sales growth and improvement of gross margin
by 1.2 percentage points from 62.6% to 63.8%. In Singapore,
operating profit decreased by 6.0% where business has been
adversely affected by an overall stagnant economy and lower tourist
traffic.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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R The Middle East
®12: PR Table 12: The Middle East
HEER HiREH
BO B
(U BFEETHEN (In HK$ million, translated % to % to LX)
HEEEXHE) at constant exchange rates) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
BHER Total sales 631 100.0% 673 100.0% (6.2%)
EH Gross profit 390 61.8% 431 64.0% (9.5%)
BEEM Operating expense (305) (48.3%) (313) (46.5%) (2.6%)
s Operating profit 85 13.5% 121 18.0% (29.8%)
AHBMTHERERE  CSS growth (5.0%) 6.2%
AL &P E S R & CSGP growth (11.0%) 2.9%
FARMTEE Stores at year end 182 189 @

R HEEEZ P EERTHLOEEDT REE
BEREE - Al LRI EBEN2018FE—F T
k7.3% ° PA20190F G 4] B M= B Al L e P88
ERHIERION - BEEREHEEERDEREZS
HE CTEENEBET TR

HE(—HHEVEEEREECESR
48.5% EZMNEE N T))

In the Middle East where consumers were adapting to the newly
introduced Value-Added Tax and changes in economic policies, CSS
dropped by 7.3% in the first quarter of 2018. In the early weeks of
2019, we saw growth in CSS of 4.0%. Management believes that
consumers have now adjusted to these changes and the retail industry
has stabilized.

South Korea (a 48.5% joint venture under an
independent management team)

K13 Table 13: South Korea
LHEEH HIHEE
Bt BA
% to % to L)
(UNEEEEBEN) (In Korean Won million) 2018 sales 2017 sales Change
BEEH Total sales 205,582 100.0% 214,696 100.0% (4.2%)
EH Gross profit 122,073 59.4% 125,096 58.3% (2.4%)
ol Net profit 18,532 9.0% 17,371 8.1% 6.7%
1 i Share of profit 8,988 8,425 6.7%
ALBMIMHEEEERE  CSS growth (1.6%) (5.4%)
ABEMmENERE CSGP growth 0.5% (1.9%)
FRMTEE Stores at year end 186 193 Ul
18 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MRS ANIENE.7% @ IEEREHF MK
RS BAMRRREZFITREMNRNEEF - K
FAKENRBENSEFERCRERKANER -

HEMNMBEFE2MBREER
R14: BHIMEFTZ2PAHEE

South Korea reported a net profit increase of 6.7%, attributable to
better cost control, closure of non-performing stores and enhanced
gross margin. Inventory rationalization and lower product costs due to
the sharing of the Group’s sourcing capacity.

Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees
Table 14: Store numbers of overseas franchisees

R12A31H
At December 31
BmE 85 By market 2018 2017
B South Korea 186 193
R Southeast Asia 224 212
H At 1% Other markets 15 14
P48 Total stores 425 419

BN MBER 2 HHHERIER25%E3.27(EE
TC (20174 - 3198 TT) » W NEt R B M 2 it
ZREHEAAR) - AR HERREILI6.9% -
HEEZAHHEEILMO05%  AHBEBAEHE
MEREEIE N - BERETE SR OM B AINZ N
BB E RS - PIanFEM Rk - AR
RERKR GEMSREMERR -

Bt % AR R
RBESRUHKER

— AT - RNEE 2 BRI o 2018412
A31H B RBRTEGFHIBRBITERR) A
101788 7T (20174  11.671887T) - WA 12.9%
R E B R R AN2018F A A D 7 R E 11
BREIE M- BRBTERE 2 RS RBTEFD
TERERARBONELEIEE 253985
TIREMA  ()EARF T EL4008 B 7T ¢ K i)
M AR e FI M S IR E6.32BF T -

LAE TLHIME 2 B H IR 178 B B2.9818 78 st (2017
F:208BAERL)RAEEMAZMERT ZEMN
FlEzBEREGWERZ—EHLM TR -A£H
ZEBRELER(ZREERERRERBITEFERE
AARHEEAEGEEZ 2L EFTE) B-0.4(2017
F 1 -0.4) - R2018F12A31H » LR E E24.57
EETRAHABILREB THE  AEE R
R A2.5(20174F 1 2.5) °
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Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees rose by 2.5% to HK$327
million (2017: HK$319 million). Wholesale sales would have improved
by 6.9% if the wholesales to Vietnam, now consolidated, were
excluded. Wholesale sales to South Korea increased by 10.5% on its
increased sourcing through the Group. Management is continuing to
explore franchise and wholesale prospects outside of our core
markets, such as Africa and the Central Asia. Though initially small,
these markets will eventually bear fruit.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and financial resources

As usual, the Group’s financial position is sound. At December 31,
2018, the cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, were HK$1,017
million (2017: HK$1,167 million), a decrease of 12.9%. The decrease
was mainly attributable to larger payment of dividends to the
Company’s shareholders during 2018. The major sources and uses of
the cash and bank balances, net of bank loans, are (i) HK$539 million
cash inflow from operating activities; (i) HK$84 million investment in
capital expenditure; and (i) HK$632 million dividend payment to
shareholders and non-controlling interests.

The short-term bank borrowings, denominated in HK$, amounted to
HK$298 million (2017: HK$298 million) and, was a financial instrument
designed to leverage interest rate differentials among banks in the
region for yield enhancement. The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as
the ratio of total borrowings less cash and bank balances to equity
attributable to owners of the Company was —0.4 (2017: —-0.4). As at
December 31, 2018, the Group’s current ratio was 2.5 based on
current assets of HK$2,457 million and current liabilities of HK$992
million (2017: 2.5).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Property, plant and equipment

During the year, our capital expenditure was HK$84 million (2017:
HK$104 million) mainly due to store upgrades. Management will
continue to invest in our shop ambiance to strengthen our brand
image, especially in Hong Kong and Macau.

Goodwill and put option liabilities

The goodwill and put option liabilities stems from the acquisition of the
Middle East operations in the years of 2012 and 2015. We carry out
annual impairment tests and concluded that there was no impairment
to goodwill in the 2018 financial year.

Interests in joint ventures

The balance mainly represents our 48.5% interest in the South Korea
joint venture. The change by HK$11 million during the year has come
from our share of profit of HK$64 million, offset by dividends received
and currency translation difference.

Inventories

Group inventories at December 31, 2018 increased by HK$28 million
or 5.3% to HK$552 million (2017: HK$524 million). ITOC increased by
2 days to 89 days. The increase in ITOC is attributed to the higher
stock level primarily due to the early receipt of Chinese New Year
(“CNY”) orders.

Inventories at suppliers and franchisees are not our legal liabilities. In
spite of this, the Group responsibly tracks their levels to ensure that
we do not build up excessive off-balance sheet inventories. Increase in
inventories in South Korea was to meet the recent sales. Inventories
held by franchisees in Mainland China increased due to net growth of
franchised stores by 34. Our system inventories had increased by
3.4% YOY. Management considers these levels to be appropriate
given an early CNY. That said, given the uncertain outlook,
management will closely monitor the inventory levels to avoid an
inventory glut, which would invariably affect future gross margin.
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R15 . ZAHEFE Table 15: System inventories
M2A318
At December 31
(U B EETRENL) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
AEERBZRER Inventories held by the Group 552 524
WHIBLS%E R LHHESE N Inventories held by 48.5% South Korea joint
BEZRFE venture 200 175
REKENEERELFE Inventories held by franchisees in Mainland China 94 91
HER 2 BKEmCRTE) Finished goods at suppliers (not yet shipped) 27 54
A FEHE Total system inventories 873 844
FE U & FE 13 BR X Trade receivables and payables
Zl-"i B EEVEREWAR R 2 AT U = 1 - DARR ﬁff’zﬁﬁﬂ The Group monitors the recoverability of trade receivables to mitigate
o L Z2018F12A31H L F E - EWERFR bad debt risks. Trade receivable turnover days for the year ended

E%U%59El B EFEEEMAE - E%FH%@%?JD&
MEEFFERERENEZARBHEETARM
BEHITITEHUAEEERNERERBRMAE RF
N MR RE B SURAL48 E208 © K FE
BPMEEER T2 EERER  TERALAEED
PHEREERERMRANRITER -

EEEWH
MR20184F K2017FE12A31H W E D (T A & &

HAREE
R2018% M2017F12 AT B W E I Mk A B E

S BE [ B
AEEETEEHARERARE ZHEIETRE
ARAERE D E AR TR E 2 HE KT
EEZIERR CHRABERBBEELZIE
A%%Fb°%ﬂl%ﬁﬁ¢@ﬁ%%%%§
MM% KIEC R BT ERREE UK
BAMZAGEEINEFARERR -BEETH
EREAKEZINERR AEREAEEHSHT
BETHS - HEMARNE S LR
Al e e EREHINERL -
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December 31, 2018 was 59 days, increased by 4 days compared to
last year. The increase reflects early shipments of CNY goods to its
wholesale sales customers and franchisees where relevant and does
not pose a concern to the Group’s bad debt risks. Trade payable
turnover days decreased by 4 days to 20 days during the year. This is
in line with the credit period granted by our suppliers, but also
demonstrates the Group’s good faith in assisting our suppliers’ cash
flow situation.

Pledge of assets
No assets were pledged as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at December 31, 2018 and

2017.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group faces foreign exchange risk mainly arising from purchases
from a Renminbi-based supply chain and sales proceeds in local
currencies of the relevant Group entities. Foreign exchange risk arising
from recognized assets and liabilities is considered to be insignificant.
This is due to the fact that balance denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant Group entity are generally
settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding foreign currency position
as at the balance sheet date. Management monitors foreign exchange
risks of the Group regularly. The Group does not employ financial
instruments for hedging purpose. Forward foreign exchange contracts
may be used when major fluctuation in the relevant foreign currency is
anticipated.
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Dividends

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on November 8, 2018
(the “Dividend Policy”). The aim of the Dividend Policy is to return
surplus cash to its shareholders through the payment of dividends and
share repurchase. In line with the Dividend Policy, the Company has
been paying a substantial portion of its earnings as an ordinary
dividend, the amount of which may vary depending on cash on hand,
future investment requirements and working capital considerations.

Having carefully considered the economic outlook, the Group’s
financial position, its future expansion plans and other factors, the
Board has thus recommended a final dividend of 16.5 HK cents per
share (2017: 20.0 HK cents per share) for the year ended December
31, 2018. Together with the interim dividend of 17.0 HK cents per
share (2017: 15.0 HK cents per share) paid on September 21, 2018,
total 2018 dividend would amount to 33.5 HK cents per share (2017:
35.0 HK cents per share), representing a payout of 110% of 2018
earnings per share (2017: 110%). Subject to the approval of
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the final dividend will be payable on Friday, June 21, 2019
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Thursday, June 6, 2019.

OUTLOOK

The transitory concerns stemming from the evident volatility in global
markets and economies will carry over from 2018 and the global retail
industry will remain problematic in 2019. The lack of clarity stemming
from the ongoing Sino-US trade dispute and rising interest rates will
likely cast a shadow on consumer spending, while extreme weather
patterns and constantly evolving consumer behavior will all pose
challenges to our business in the longer term. It requires flexibility and
agility to deal with these uncertainties. For example, markets affected
by the recent abnormally warm winter launched spring merchandise
during CNY as customers were reluctant to pay for winter jackets. We
were able to quickly shift to spring merchandise thanks to our
dependable supply chain. The sales results were satisfactory, but we
must remain vigilant and even more agile in 2019.

In the face of opportunities and challenges in 2019, the Group expects
consumer sentiment to remain cautious. We will closely monitor to the
latest international and domestic economic and financial developments,
evaluate the situation, seize opportunities while implementing the
improvement in quality and efficiency and exploring the potential of its
existing businesses, strategic marketing as well as explore new
business opportunities to facilitate growth.
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That said, with a strong value proposition and a clear brand image that
resonates with our customers, as well as our unrelenting pursuit of
operational excellence, we are confident that we can navigate the
challenges ahead. To this end, management will intensify various
marketing investments to upgrade our brand image.

Geographically, the Group will continue to reinforce its existing markets
while actively developing new ones. The main thrust will continue to be
from Mainland China and Southeast Asia, although we must strengthen
our operations to stay competitive amidst increased competition and
rising costs and expenses. Having secured new franchisees in South
Africa and France, we now have a dedicated team exploring new
markets and we expect to see breakthroughs in Central Asia and the
African continent.

Development of local e-shops in our existing markets will also be
accelerated to offer our customers a more comprehensive shopping
experience, allowing us to serve a wider local customer base.

Our new lines are also gaining traction. Beau Monde, which was
rolled-out in 2014 and has been marketed primarily through our
e-platforms, continued to make substantial ground in 2018. The
G-motion line, which has now become a staple in most of our shops
around the world, will undergo further enhancement in 2019 to create
an even more comprehensive offering. This line, with upgraded fabrics
and design, will sell at premium prices.

Our Middle East business has stabilized and is showing signs of
recovery. Our Southeast Asian markets, in particular Indonesia and
Thailand, have performed favorably and will continue its momentum in
2019.

Talent management will continue to play an important role in our
business strategy since it manages one of the most important assets
of the Company — our people. We will continue to effectively manage
our employees to help them develop their skills and capabilities in
order to retain them. Our Fast-Track Management Scheme was
restructured in 2014 and the graduates from that intake are now
deployed in important executive positions across multiple disciplines
within the Group’s business. We will both extend and expand the
programme in Hong Kong and Mainland China, with additional
programmes tailored to develop existing talent within the Group.

OTHER INFORMATION
Human Resources

At December 31, 2018, the Group had approximately 8,200
employees (December 31, 2017: 8,300). The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages and generous, goal-oriented bonuses to
different levels of staff. We offer senior managers performance-based
bonus schemes and share options to reward and retain a high caliber
leadership team. We also invest heavily in training in sales and
customer service, management, planning and leadership development
to retain a skilled and motivated workforce.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive), aged 66,
is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive. He is also chairman of
the Management Committee and Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994,
and was elected Chairman of the Board of the Company on August
10 in the same year. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited, which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dr. LAU is currently the
chairman of the advisory committees on management and marketing at
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”) as well as Adjunct
Professor of Marketing at City University of Hong Kong (“CityU”).

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
PolyU, an MBA degree from the University of Calgary in Canada and a
Master of Buddhist Studies from The University of Hong Kong. Dr. LAU
had over 12 years of management and accounting experience in both
the private and public sectors in Canada before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director), aged 42, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on June 20, 2014 and April 1,
2015, respectively. He is a member of the Management Committee of
the Company and also a director of certain subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group. Dr. CHAN is responsible for the Group’s
Mainland China business while directing the Group’s operations to
meet budget and other financial goals, as well as establishing goals,
allocating resources and assessing policies to drive the Group’s
performance. Dr. CHAN has over 17 years of experience in the apparel
retailing and marketing business.

Dr. CHAN is a member of Certified Practicing Accountant Australia. He
holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from PolyU, a

Master of Arts in Global Business Management from CityU and a
Master of Accountancy from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Mark Alan LOYND (Executive Director), aged 40, has been with
the Group since September 2013 and was appointed as an Executive
Director on March 9, 2017. Mr. LOYND is currently the General
Counsel, Company Secretary and Group Human Resources Director of
the Company. He oversees legal, regulatory, compliance, corporate
governance, human resources and talent development affairs of the
Group. Mr. LOYND is also chairman of the Risk Management
Committee and a member of the Management Committee of the
Company as well as director and company secretary of various
subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Group. Currently, Mr. LOYND is
also responsible for the development of new overseas markets as well
as brand and product development.

Mr. LOYND was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2007 and is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in London, the United
Kingdom. He holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from Aberystwyth
University in the United Kingdom as well as a Master of Arts in
Arbitration and Alternative Dispute Resolution (with distinction) and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from CityU. He possesses over
17 years of experience in handling regulatory and compliance matters
for listed companies, mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and other
commercial law affairs, as well as labour and maritime law issues.

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong ur (Non-executive Director), aged 39, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. Dr. CHENG
was executive director and joint general manager of New World
Development Company Limited and has been re-designated to
executive vice-chairman and general manager with effect from
March 1, 2017. He is also an executive director of New World
Department Store China Limited and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited, and non-executive directors of i-CABLE Communications
Limited and New Century Healthcare Holding Co. Limited, all are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Dr. CHENG has been an executive director of
New World China Land Limited, which was a listed public company in
Hong Kong until its delisting on August 4, 2016. He was also an
executive director of International Entertainment Corporation until
June 10, 2017, and a non-executive director and vice chairman of
Modern Media Holdings Limited until August 26, 2017, both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. CHENG is a director of a
substantial shareholder of the Company, Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited and its subsidiary, Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is
also the chairman of New World Group Charity Foundation Limited. Dr.
CHENG worked in a major international bank from September 2003 to
April 2006 and has substantial experience in corporate finance.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by
the Savannah College of Art and Design.

Dr. CHENG is the vice-chairman of All-China Youth Federation, a
member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of The Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of China Young
Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of K11 Art Foundation and
was a member of board of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 56, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. He is also as
an executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN has been in the
jewellery industry for 37 years.

Mr. CHAN currently also serves as member of the standing council of
China Gold Association, and is also a member of National Technical
Committee on Jewelry and Jade of Standardization Administration of
China, vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association,
administrative director of the Gems and Jewellery Trade Association of
China, executive vice-chairman of Guangdong Gold and Silver
Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, general vice-chairman of Gold
Association of Guangdong Province, vice-chairman of the Guangdong
Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association, as well as director of
the Gemmological Institute, China University of Geosciences (Wuhan).
He is also a member of the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 74, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
March 3, 1995. He is also chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT was a non-executive director of Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., both of
which were delisted on NASDAQ Global Market LLC and New York
Stock Exchange in March 2016 and August 2016, respectively. Dr.
BUTTIFANT was also senior adviser to MCL Financial Group Ltd., the
arrangement of which was subsequently terminated. Dr. BUTTIFANT
has been re-appointed as a director of KLC Transactions Limited in
January 2017, and is also appointed as a director of KLC Corporate
Advisory and Recovery Limited from the same date.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute, the Hong Kong
Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
has been awarded an Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration
(Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in
February 2013.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs Jr (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive director
of another listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited. Mr.
KWONG graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics and was awarded a
Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of
Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He has served
in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions
principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the Secretary
for the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility for public
finances, and Secretary for Information Technology and Broadcasting
from 1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for information
technology, telecommunications and broadcasting. He left the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in March
2000 to join The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited as
executive director and first Chief Executive, following the
demutualization and merger of the Stock Exchange, The Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and their associated clearing houses and
retired in April 2003. Since then, Mr. KWONG had served as the
managing director/executive director/non-executive director of various
companies, including Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd, Hongkong
Sales (Int’'l) Ltd, Macau Legend Development Ltd and Chenavari
Investment Managers (HK) Limited.

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Professor HUANG received his PhD from the University of Groningen
(The Netherlands), Master of Arts from Lancaster University (England),
and Honours Diploma from Lingnan University (Hong Kong). Currently,
he is the Associate Dean of the School of Business, and the Head of
the Department of Management, Hong Kong Baptist University. He is
also the director of the MBA program and MSc Business Management
program of the School of Business. Since 2010, he has served as an
Adjunct Professor in the Centre for Work, Organization and Wellbeing,
Griffith University. He has also been appointed as a Visiting Chair
Professor in Shanghai University of Finance and Economics since
2012. He is Deputy Editor of the Management and Organization
Review, and a member of editorial board for Academy of Management
Journal and Human Relations.

* For identification purpose only
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Professor HUANG’s research interests include leadership, power,
proactive and abnormal work behaviors, employees’ well-being; cross-
cultural psychology and management issues in China. He has
published more than 60 papers in international journals including
Academy of Management Journal, Journal of Applied Psychology,
Journal of International Business Studies, Journal of Management,
Leadership Quarterly, Journal of Organizational Behavior, Human
Relations and so forth.

Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 43, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
March 7, 2019. She is also a member of both the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. LLOYD is a director of International Affairs and a director of
Institutional Research and Planning at PolyU. In her capacity as a
director of International Affairs, Dr. LLOYD oversees all activity
including the strategic development and coordination of international
partnerships, international recruitment, mobility opportunities and
institutional relations. As a director of Institutional Research and
Planning, she leads a unit that is responsible for institutional research,
strategic planning, performance monitoring, business intelligence and
analytics.

Dr. LLOYD was previously Associate Dean (External Relations and
Development) of the Faculty of Business at PolyU. She is an award-
winning educator at PolyU and her research interests lie in branding,
retailing and services marketing. Her work has been published in
notable academic publications including Journal of International
Business Studlies, Journal of Services Marketing, Tourism Management
and others.

Prior to joining PolyU, Dr. LLOYD worked as a Management
Consultant with Deloitte Hong Kong and later moved on to become
Principal Consultant in a business consultancy firm in Hong Kong. Her
consulting engagements span strategic planning, business process
review and improvement, design and implementation of corporate
performance management frameworks and change management for
both private and public sector organizations in Hong Kong and Asia.

Dr. LLOYD holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Marketing and a first-class
honours BA (Hons) in Hotel and Catering Management, both from
PolyU. She possesses 18 vyears of experience spanning higher
education and management consulting. Dr. LLOYD serves on a
number of advisory boards and steering committees including Higher
Education Planners in Asia, QS Ranking Conferences, i-Graduate, and
serves as a director of the Fair Trade Hong Kong.

Appointed on March 7, 2019
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ERERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is dedicated to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance within a sensible and practical framework. The
Board firmly believes that the principles of transparency, accountability
and independence are essential towards upholding the interests of all
stakeholders and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements. The Board has adopted the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code of the Company.

During the year of 2018, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code save for the deviations from Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2, which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

BOARD
Roles and Responsibilities
The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible

leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards of the
Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim
results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-appointments of
Directors, dividends and accounting policies. The Directors, individually
and collectively, are committed to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders. Save for the power
reserved by the Board or other Board committees, the strategies and
plans as decided by the Board are implemented by Management.
Management assumes full accountability to the Board for the day-to-
day operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board shall responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a
committee or committees:

° Developing, reviewing and updating the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updates;

° Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° Reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

o Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report; and

° Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s process of disclosure,
including assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of
price-sensitive information and determine the form and content of
any required disclosure.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company; adopted a
revised terms of reference of the Board; adopted a division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer;
adopted a procedure for seeking independent professional advice;
adopted a dividend policy; adopted an updated and revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee; and adopted an updated and
revised division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises four Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three Executive Directors.

The Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive
Directors bring a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to
provide effective guidance and an outside perspective to all major
decisions of the Group. To assist in the discharge of their duties, the
Directors have free and direct access to both the Company’s internal
and external auditors and procedures are in place to allow the
Directors to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition to
maintain a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of
the Company’s businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition,
a Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees. During
the year of 2018 and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are set out below. The Management
Committee and Risk Management Committee are discussed in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
EEEgRE Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
HITES Executive Directors
2B R+ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter — C M
(FEFITHAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
PREEELT Dr. CHAN Ka Wai — — —
EEX K Mr. Mark Alan LOYND — — —
kHTES Non-executive Directors
805 R ue Dr. CHENG Chi Kong P — — —
PRttt B 5t A4 Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong — — —
YHHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
2HRNLEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT C M M
BPH & % HeBs, up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBs, JP M — —
EDIEE €5 Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) M M C
Alison Elizabeth LLOYD1E £+ Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD* M M —
Kiat - Notes:
C EHESEZESMER C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees
M BHRESFZESMKE M Member of the relevant Board Committees
R2019F3A7THEE (F Appointed on March 7, 2019

REZERE VBT RENSE %% HExE The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
HEASKIER 2 BIR R AR A EEE A material or relevant relationships with each other except that

RBERERABDEFTEPEEBIINTE
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi serves on the board of directors of AMS Public
Transport Holdings Limited as independent non-executive director;
while Dr. CHENG Chi Kong serves on the board of directors of New
World Group and subsidiaries as executive director and serves on the
board of directors of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as
executive director; and Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong serves on the board of
directors of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited as executive
director.

It is the Board’s opinion that these relationships do not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee considers a range of diversity perspectives when assessing
potential candidates for the Board.
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According to the Company’s Bye-Laws (the “Bye-Laws”), any new
Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) appointed
by the Board is subject to retirement and re-election by shareholders
at the next general meeting of the Company (in the case of filing a
casual vacancy) or at the next annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) (in the case of an addition to their number) following their
appointment. At each AGM, one-third (or the number nearest to, but
not exceeding one-third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman or
the Managing Director) will retire from office by rotation, and every
Director (other than the Chairman or the Managing Director) including
those appointed for a specific term is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

The Bye-Laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

Code Provision A.4.2 provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
three years and will continue in office thereafter subject to termination
by not less than one month’s prior notice in writing by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company. In addition, all Non-executive
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation and are subject
to re-election by shareholders at the AGM at least once every three
years pursuant to the Bye-Laws and Code Provision A.4.2.

In the opinion of the Board, stability and continuation are key factors
to the successful implementation of business plans. The Board
believes that it is beneficial to the Group that there is continuity in the
role of the Chairman and, therefore, the Board is of the view that the
Chairman should be exempt from this arrangement at the present
time.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Although two of our Independent Non-executive Directors; namely,
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, have served as
our Board members for more than nine years and this may be relevant
to the determination of independence, it is well recognized that an
individual’s independence cannot be determined solely on the basis of
a set period of time. In assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, the Board and the Nomination Committee
consider the character and judgement demonstrated by the Directors’
commitment and contribution to the Board during their years of service
and other relevant factors.

We believe that the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
served more than nine years; namely, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, despite their length of service, provide invaluable
expertise, experience, continuity and stability to the Board, and the
Company has benefited from their contribution and the valuable
insights derived from their in-depth knowledge of the Company and
from their work and experience outside of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Code Provision A.4.3 provides that if an independent non-executive
director serves more than nine years, his further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT has served as an Independent Non-
executive Director for more than nine years since March 3, 1995. To
comply with Code Provision A.4.3, Dr. BUTTIFANT retired voluntarily
and was re-elected as Director at the AGM held on May 27, 2016.

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director for more than nine years since April 26, 2004. To comply with
Code Provision A.4.3, Mr. KWONG retired voluntarily and was re-
elected as Director at the AGM held on May 26, 2017.

Board meetings

The Board holds four regular meetings a year while additional meetings
are held as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled
in advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance.
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of
the Board meetings and each Director is invited to present any
businesses that they wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to the Directors at least
14 days before meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. Furthermore, all Directors have
access to the Company Secretary who is also the Group’s General
Council for advice and services to ensure that board procedures and
applicable law, rules and regulations are adhered to. Agenda and
accompanying Board papers are circulated to all Directors and other
attendees not less than 3 days before the Board or committee
meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Minutes of
the Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by all Directors.

Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting
may participate electronically by conference call or via alternate
arrangement in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to
the Bye-Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of
circulation of a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening
a Board meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and
explanatory materials will be provided to the Directors at the same
time when a resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2018, four Board meetings were
held to review the quarterly operating updates and discuss the
Group’s strategies, policies and budgets going forward, as well as
other business. In addition, two sets of resolutions in writing were
passed.
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Directors’ attendance and time commitment

Attendances of each Directors at the meetings of the Board, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and the

REAFAKgZHEREEMOT AGM during the year ended December 31, 2018 are as follows:
LR/ EBRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
ESegE BRZEERE REZECSE FHWZEg8E RRAFTAE
Audit Nomination  Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
EEnA Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
YTEE Executive Directors
ZEERL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 474 @A NA i 01 11
(FEETBE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
RERET Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4 NEB NA TEB NA T N/A 11
BEXEE Mr. Mark Alan LOYND 414 TEA NA TR NA T B N/A 11
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
BERE LR Dr. CHENG Chi Kong sP 474 THEB NA TR NA THEE NA 11
Bt S ik Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 474 T NA T A N/A @R N/A 11
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 414 2/2 11 11 11
B H Bk £oss, o Mr. KWONG Ki Chi gss, J» 474 2/2 T N/A T A NA 11
HRHK Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 474 2/2 i 11 11
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors may also meet without the
presence of the Executive Directors from time-to-time.

Training for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package to each newly
appointed Director to ensure that they are sufficiently aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as director.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the Company
Secretary reports from time-to-time the latest changes and
development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and
other regulatory regime to the Directors with reading materials relating
to the latest development of regulatory requirements related to
director’s duties and responsibilities.
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During the year of 2018, all Directors participated in the following
trainings:

HEBRE®LS
EERECEHR
maE 'E
Attending
expert briefings/
MEEEITE seminars/
HEHER conferences
Reading relevant to the
regulatory business or
EENA Name of Directors updates directors’ duties
HITESE Executive Directors
EHEB L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter v/ v/
(FEFTEHAAE) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
fRE=EE L Dr. CHAN Ka Wai v v/
BEX RS Mr. Mark Alan LOYND v v/
FHITES Non-executive Directors
& Mg e Dr. CHENG Chi Kong P v v
PRt B 5t A& Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong v/ v/
BIYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2iHEAE LT Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v/ v/
P H 7 % £ eBs, up Mr. KWONG Ki Chi ¢8s, JP v v
= B#HE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v/ v/
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance in line with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently, Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. Such practice deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the industry and deep
understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board believes that
vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive in Dr. LAU
provides the Group with strong leadership, allowing for more effective
planning and execution of long term business strategies and enhances
efficiency in decision-making.
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The Board also believes that the Company already has a strong
corporate governance structure appropriate for its circumstances in
place to ensure effective oversight of Management. The main elements
of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise six of nine of the Board;

° Including all Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

° Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

° Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Internal Audit Department any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-
blowing” mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk
Management and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent Non-
executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously supervise
the Group’s management and effectively control key issues relating to
strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, a qualified

accountant with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls.
The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor, reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process and discussing with the external
auditor the nature and scope of the audit. It is also responsible for
reviewing the Group’s financial information, overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the interim and final results of the Group prior
to recommending them to the Board for approval. To this end, the
Audit Committee has unrestricted access to both the Company’s
internal and external auditors. Its terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing
Limited (the “HKEX”).
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The Head
of Group Finance, the chairman of the Risk Management Committee,
the Internal Audit Department together with the Internal Audit Advisor,
Deloitte Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited (“Deloitte”) (collectively the “IA
team”), the Company Secretary and representatives of the external
auditor of the Company are expected to attend the meetings. At the
discretion of the Committee, other members of management may also
be invited to attend its meetings.

In 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings. During the meetings,
the Audit Committee alongside the external auditor reviewed the audit
strategy summary, the final results for the year ended December 31,
2017 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2018.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the activities of the IA team and its
internal audit report, and discussed with Management the report’'s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Furthermore, it also evaluated, together with Management, the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to ensure its
effectiveness, with particular attention to the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting staff, as well as their training programs and budget.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
continuing connected transactions of the Group which took place
during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor during the year under review.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee comprising of three
Board members, the majority of which are Independent Non- executive
Directors, and is chaired by Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, the Chairman
of the Board.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, on a regular basis, and to identify individuals
qualified to become Board members. It is also responsible for
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and where
appropriate, adoption by the Board. Its terms of reference are available
on the websites of the Company and the HKEXx.
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In 2018, the Nomination Committee held a meeting to review the
board diversity policy, to review the structure, size, composition and
skills matrix of the Board, to recommend the rotation list of Directors
to the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors and to adopt a nomination policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time-to-
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In view of
this, a board diversity policy has been adopted by the Board in 2013,
the Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including, but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Nomination Policy

In view of the amendments to the CG Code which took effect from
January 1, 2019, on November 8, 2018, the Nomination Committee
has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the selection criterias
and nomination procedures and process when considering candidates
to be appointed or re-appointed as Directors.

In the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee will follow the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria as follows:

o Reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board composition in line with the Company’s strategic
objectives;

° Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall consider suitability of a candidate pursuant to
the Listing Rules, the nomination policy and Board diversity
policy, and the independence of an individual for the position of
independent non-executive director; and

° Selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Board members taking into
account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy from
time-to-time and may adopt changes as appropriate at the relevant
time.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three Board members, the
majority of which are Independent Non-executive Directors, and is
chaired by Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu).

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)() out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for reviewing and determining the remuneration,
compensation and benefits of Directors and senior management. When
the remuneration package of an individual Director is under review, the
Director in question is required to abstain from voting to avoid any
conflict of interest. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
HKEXx.

In 2018, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review and
approve the remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief
Executive and to review and approve the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management. It also passed
two written resolutions approving (i) the bonus of individual Executive
Directors (excluding the Chairman and Chief Executive) and senior
management for the year of 2018; and (ii) the salary adjustment of a
senior management, respectively. No member of Remuneration
Committee should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining and
motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company works to
ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with the
Company’s objectives and performance. The Company takes into
consideration a number of relevant factors in determining its
remuneration policy, including the salaries paid by comparable
companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope, employment
conditions in the Group, market practices and the financial and non-
financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as the fees paid
by comparable companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and
likely workload of the relevant Directors and other employment
conditions in the Company to ensure that the Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Non-executive Directors are appropriately
paid for their time and responsibilities to the Company.
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The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, (including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors), is
composed of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable
cash incentives, long-term incentives and retirement schemes, as
discussed below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s basic salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Basic salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits are
regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Directors and senior management are reviewed and approved by the
Remuneration Committee. In 2018, the cash performance bonus
component accounted for 64.1% of the total remuneration of the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please refer
to Note 10(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition, the
Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes to
motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve
specific sales or other business targets of the Company.

The Company also operates share option schemes to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management team.
The details of the schemes, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Directors and employees
as at December 31, 2018 under the schemes, are set out in the Share
Option Information section of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in a MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

Details of Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments are set out
in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 125 to 127 of this
annual report.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s businesses to the Management Committee. The
Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive
Directors together with one senior management representative.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & #



| B o TR % 0 BP BE 4

%%A%@Efﬂﬁﬁfiizﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%“fﬂiﬁg

REEEEMNRREEREE  THEEREX
WIS A EENRREERADEZRZRF(LHE
EV - BENEAGREELEREREE) W
BEEERER -

ARABEETMHFTEERRENRER  AREE
ETERRERETERARE  EHEAX
b EEERE ‘;&ﬁEZA?HEﬁ‘fD?E%EM“i&i
ZRSEM  ARREREERE SRR WETE
RZERIER - EBRMNEFEEHHERKR
MAERSE BX HERIUFTR REHSE
BEYFEBH2RE ANEERBREMIETE
HEAEEZERR 2 RRAER -

AREBZRAREERNIPEIFERAUATEES

R

. ERTEML BEBRES S REEMNAEKR
BEIRRE

e HMREE AREEIARBEEZERSNIZ
FF L‘AE%%%‘J&?%%HBA : LA&1¥¢ 1T

M n$ 1$ L}\ m /‘J‘\ PR /Ui $«<

o EERMBEERIBAGE  AEEER
&?E;EB‘H P IREETEE Rt EIRIEN - RET
TEBERTEEABETHNEEARZ

&

o EBENBERKERFNUTZ A REHLEXR
MAEH ETBEARKEER

o RNF B IS AHREEBETIUE
EREAMABEABRBIREEAR (B
BERRTHRAR) ONRFXAETHR R
HMEAEZETHNERITEREZESE
B AE#E—Z1TE &

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

ERERBREE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
control of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
particularly in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and, as such, monitors the
effectiveness on an ongoing basis.

Appropriate policies and procedures have been put in place to
safeguard the assets against unauthorized use or disposition; control
over capital expenditure; maintain proper and accurate accounting
records and enhance the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure
efficiency and effectiveness of operations and compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. Such policies and procedures are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement, loss, error or fraud, and to manage and
minimize rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the Group’s
operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

° An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

° Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management and
internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-
annual risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk
mitigation;

° Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business

performance targets with appropriate measures to rectify
deficiencies;
° Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and

approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

o A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff to
anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive, to the Internal Audit Department
which will refer the report to the chairman of the Audit
Committee for further action; and
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° Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the review
of its effectiveness to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee comprises four members including the Head
of Group Legal & Compliance, the Head of Group Finance, the Internal
Audit Advisor and one senior management representative. During the
year, the Company has engaged Deloitte, an external professional firm,
as our Internal Audit Advisor to assist the internal audit function of the
Company. The Committee reviews all material controls in accordance
with the Code Provisions on risk management and internal control
systems of the CG Code, and reports to the Board twice a year. The
Risk Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board for
providing assurance on managing and monitoring the systems of risk
management and internal controls. The Committee has evaluated and
was satisfied with the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function as well as their training programmes and budget for
the year, and reported to the Board that in all material respects the
systems of risk management and internal control over risks associated
with the Group’s operations was sufficient, appropriate and operated
effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the IA
team plays a major role in monitoring the risk management and internal
controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of IA team include:

° Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

° Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits of
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units
and subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

° Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee;
° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other

Group policy violations; and

° Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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Adopting a risk-based approach, IA team implements the audit plan
approved by the Audit Committee and Management, which is based
on a risk assessment methodology. It furnishes independent and
objective evaluations and recommendations in the form of an internal
audit report to Management. The Internal Audit Advisor reports directly
to the Audit Committee twice a year on major findings, corrective
actions and responses from Management. The Audit Committee has
free and direct access to IA team without reference from the Chairman
or Management.

During the year of 2018, the Internal Audit Advisor issued the internal
audit reports to the Audit Committee and Management, which covered
significant business processes and activities of the Group. It worked
with Management to establish action plans to address any identified
control weaknesses. Post-audit reviews were performed to ensure
those agreed actions have been implemented as intended.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions”). This is on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, and has been updated from time-to-time.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
throughout the year ended December 31, 2018.

In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Securities Transactions by Specified Employees, which governs the
securities transactions of those employees who may possess or have
access to inside information. The said code covers areas such as
prohibitions and conduct in the dealing of the Company’s securities,
avoidance of conflict of interests and confidentiality of the Company’s
information, etc. All the specified employees are reminded of the
compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Specified Employees every six months.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial
performance and cash flows for that period. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently, and that where
judgment has been applied and estimates made, they are prudent and
reasonable.

The statement by the external auditor of the Group, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
regarding their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 64 to 71 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(X B EETHBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
IEERE(BEEEAREET - ETET Non-audit services (included tax-related
BEZREFREAMARRE) matters, certain agreed-upon procedures
work and other reporting services) 1 1
EE B Statutory audit 5 5
Y2 Total 6 6
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND has been the Company Secretary since
September 2013. He is also an employee and the General Counsel of
the Group. Mr. LOYND is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and Chief Executive on governance matters and
facilitates induction and professional development of Directors.

Mr. LOYND confirmed that he has complied with rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules and received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in 2018.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Bye-Laws during the year. If any
amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the relevant
law governing the Company, the Company will propose the
amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the major
emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The Group’s
senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with the
investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 25 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2018.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results on
the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on the websites of the Company and HKEX.
Annual and interim reports, Stock Exchange filings, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the Company’s website.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to enhance
shareholders’ relationship with the Company and to comply with the
relevant rules and corporate governance code.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
Management directly. The Company’s AGM is an especially important
forum. In order to encourage and facilitate shareholder attendance at
its AGM, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior
notice. To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate
issue is proposed under a separate resolution.
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Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so
by contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details
are listed on page 168 of this annual report.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5, the Company has adopted a policy
with regard to the declaration of dividends on November 8, 2018.
Such policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The Company intends to return surplus cash to the shareholders
through the payment of dividends, which is subject to the Company’s
capacity to pay from accumulated and future earnings, cash availability
and future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The Company may also consider declaring special dividends from
time-to-time, in addition to the semi-annual dividends.

The Company’s income and its ability to pay dividends are dependent
upon, among other things, the dividends received from the Company’s
subsidiaries, which, in turn, would depend on such subsidiaries’
distributable profits, operating results, financial condition, capital
expenditure plans and other factors. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and the Bye-Laws.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay dividends,
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where
applicable. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and other factors of and
affecting the Group.

Dividend Policy reflects the Company’s view on the financial and cash-
flow position of the Group prevailing at the time of its adoption. The
Board will review the policy from time-to-time and may adopt changes
as appropriate at the relevant time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary or at the registered office of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition pursuant to
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”). If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provision of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the Company’s registered office and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong as set out in the “Corporate Information”
section of this annual report for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Procedures for Shareholders to make a proposal at
general meeting

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal
(which may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a
general meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20) of
the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b)  not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company
would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director for
election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On

Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

Hong Kong, March 7, 2019
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s fashion apparel under Giordano and Giordano Junior,
Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and licensed brands.
Although targeting different market segments, the brands all strive to
deliver excellent quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by geography and by brand
for the year ended December 31, 2018 is set out in Note 5 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 8 to 23 of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found throughout this annual report, particularly in Note 3
to the financial statements. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the financial year under review. The outlook
of the Group’s business is discussed in the Management Discussion
and Analysis section on pages 22 to 23 of this annual report. Certain
financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures are set out on pages 72 and 160
as well as in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. An
account of the Company’s relationships with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
are included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages ESG.1 to ESG.37 of this annual report.

The above sections form part of the Directors’ Report.

Compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to the
relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group. The
Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
with the support and assistance of the legal and company secretarial
department.
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The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as well as their subsidiary legislation,
codes and guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance
obligations. Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong
Kong operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on
the assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to
manage our legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in laws
and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also regularly
remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2018 and
the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to
160 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 17.0 HK cents per share was paid to
shareholders of the Company on September 21, 2018.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 16.5 HK cents per
share for the year ended December 31, 2018. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming AGM, the final
dividend will be payable on June 21, 2019 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on June 6,
2019.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2018, the retained profits of the Company
together with the contributed surplus available for distribution
amounted to HK$316 million (2017: HK$391 million).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2018 are set out in Note 39 to the financial statements.
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in Note 24 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against having such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed under
Share Option Information in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 44%
Five largest suppliers combined 63%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 10% during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$28,000 (2017: HK$248,000).

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had bank loans of HK$298
million (2017: HK$298 million) that were repayable within one year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Mark Alan LOYND

Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong urP
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Mr. KWONG Ki Chi GBS, JrP
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD*

In accordance with Bye-Law 98 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Mark Alan
LOYND and Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

In addition, in accordance with Bye-Law 101(B) of the Bye-Laws,
Dr. Alison Elizabeth LLOYD who has been appointed by the Board on

March 7, 2019 as Independent Non-executive Director will retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election.

Appointed on March 7, 2019
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 24 to 28 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of our Directors since the report date of the interim report
of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2018 are set out
below:

Esns BEREEH
Name of Directors Changes in information
Rt & RELENR01BFIARZERTEARB AHAEZEELLZEGELE -

CHAN Sai Cheong

Mr. CHAN was appointed as a member of the Liaoning Provincial Committee of the Chinese

People’s Political Consultative Conference in January 2018.

2 [
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

20191 A1H & - EFERITIAE D1E A1 & T F % £ /3,675,6098 7T °
Dr. LAU, the Chairman and Chief Executive, is entitled to an annual salary of HK$3,675,609

with effect from January 1, 2019.

Alison Elizabeth LLOYD

LLOYDIE £ R2019F3A7TH E R X AB Y IFHITES -

Dr. LLOYD was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on March 7, 2019.

B EXFTHEEI - BARQR 22018 Bk E H
HAAZR - iR #E E AR I E13.51B(1) KB FIHE 2
EERRFRBUELMT -
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of 2018 interim report of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
do not have any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-Laws provides that each Director or other officers of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company and their respective
close associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were
as follows:

RELARARGREBRGZHFR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
FrEEREREE
Number of ordinary shares held
fTETERER B R
(B8 IR #) BAtk
1B A RE 2 (Hya1k2) (H#3)
(Kt at1) Derivative Approximate
EENE Personal interests &%k percentage of
Name of Directors interests (share options) Total shareholding
(Note 1) (Notes 1 & 2) (Note 3)
21| B8 A 27,518,000 — 27,518,000 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
PR3z 48 600,000 7,700,000 8,300,000 0.52%
CHAN Ka Wai
EEX 236,000 6,064,000 6,300,000 0.39%
Mark Alan LOYND
Hiat - Notes:
(1) BEEn DI EFEREmn AT BRI #ar o (1) This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial owners.
) PTETAEZZ AR D TIIZAR NG IRAZ R EETE (2 Derivative interests are share options granted to the Directors pursuant to the share

MIRTEFZERE FHEHEINRKEFEIGTA
B E167H -

) HZR2018F 1231 H A 22 7] B #1778 171,678,500,5184%
iTE -

Br a8 O - BR2018F12A31H » AR A EH
REZTHRABURESEZETHEABER
AARRETMAEBRLZE(CERESFRPER
BIEXVER) 2 B fn - BB DK EREEZFREE A
RN B HE N EEFEI5205 R EEF 2 08
MrRzEFskAs  HBARBZETANE AR
A RBE R AT 2 B BOR A o
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option schemes of the Company and details of which are set out on pages 161 to
167 of this annual report.

3) Based on 1,678,600,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their close respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Details of the continuing connected transactions and material related
party transactions are respectively disclosed under section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 59 to 61 and in Note
37 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or his connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under Share Option Information section on pages
161 to 167 to this annual report, at no time during the year under
review was the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors (including their spouses and children under 18 years of age)
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors is interested in any business,
apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company,
as at December 31, 2018, the following persons (other than Directors
and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336

of the SFO:
REATROREBRG ZHR
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
BARERBE DL
FEEBERYE (Ht##3)
Number of Approximate
FTERRER g% ordinary percentage of
Name of substantial shareholders Capacity shares held shareholding
(Note 3)
BlackRock, Inc. RESEE R 110,443,518 6.99%
Interest of controlled corporation (K1 Note 2)
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited VR A B 2 R 384,830,000 24.37%
(7t Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited SR K @ 2 R wR 384,830,000 24.37%
(fit i Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (##z Note 1) SEVEHIE E 2 R 384,830,000 24.37%
Interest of controlled corporation
AXEEBR)AERAG (EARBER]D REGDEE 2 s 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTF”) Interest of controlled corporation
(H77# Note 1)
ARABREABRAR(TAREREAD REENEE 2 s 384,830,000 24.37%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited (“CTFN”) Interest of controlled corporation
(HtiE Note 1)
Sino Wealth International Limited EmAA 384,830,000 24.37%

(“Sino Wealth”)

Kt -

(1)

@

3

2018412431 H * Sino Wealth#¥ £ 384,830,0004% 7K 23
ARG  BAEAAXELEAEERT  MEAXELEA
A BB B K #5172 ) - Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
Limited & Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limiteds FI # & #749.0% K
46.7%## 25 + fiChow Tai Fook Capital Limited 8l 1% & A
EIEIR F5 B #981.0% # 7 + Bk Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited ~ Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings /i)
Limited ~ Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited - & A 5 #%8%
KB A G A #12 BRSino Wealth BT #5252 &) & (7
Rz -

BlackRock, Inc.#%75.2110,443,518 KX N\ ]l j& 7 # » &
1,060,0000% /5 A B & RS2 6 LT m T4 T A »

1 R2018F 1231 H A 2 a] B #7717 1,678,600,5188%
iTE -
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Beneficial owner

Notes:

(1)

@

3

As at December 31, 2018, 384,830,000 shares of the Company were held by Sino
Wealth which is a wholly-owned by CTFN, which in turn controlled by CTF. Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1l) Limited
held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
respectively, which in turn held an approximately 81.0% interest in CTF and
accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings 1) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited, CTF and CTFN is
deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company held by Sino Wealth.

110,443,518 shares of the Company were held by BlackRock, Inc. of which
1,060,000 shares were cash settled unlisted equity derivatives.

Based on 1,5678,600,518 shares of the Company in issue as at December 31, 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2018, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year, which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the vyear, the Group conducted the following continuing
connected transactions, which are subject to the announcement and
reporting requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the following continuing
connected transactions. When conducting the continuing connected
transactions during the year, the Company has followed the relevant
internal leasing evaluation policy.

(1) Pre-existing Agreements

Members of the Group and members of New World Department
Store China Limited (‘NWDS”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “NWDS Group”) have in the past entered into leasing
agreements which include those that completed during the
calendar year and those that remain in force as immediately prior
to the execution of the Master Leasing Agreement (as defined
below) regarding the leasing of premises and/or concessionaire
counters in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) by
members of the Group from members of the NWDS Group (the
“Pre-existing Leasing Agreements”). Most of the Pre-existing
Leasing Agreements comprise of short-term leases of one year or
less, and as all of the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements are
subject to ordinary and market rental terms based on calculation
of turnover rent, (which in turn is based on a percentage of the
respective monthly turnover), the monthly payable amount to be
made by the Group to NWDS Group will vary month by month.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(2) Qianhai Transactions

(i) On June 27, 2016, a member of the Group and Shenzhen
Qianhai Chow Tai Fook Hong Kong Goods Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Qianhai CTF”) have entered into a written leasing
agreement (the “Qianhai Agreement”) for the leasing of
premises in the PRC for a term commencing from August
7, 2016 to December 6, 2018. The Qianhai Agreement is
subject to ordinary and market rental terms based on
calculation of turnover rental; and

(i) On December 6, 2018, a member of the Group and Qianhai
CTF have entered into a letter agreement (the “Qianhai
Renewal Letter”) for the renewal of leasing of premises in
the PRC for a term commencing from December 7, 2018
to April 6, 2021. The Qianhai Renewal Letter is subject to
ordinary and market rental terms based on calculation of
the monthly rental, the management fee and/or 15% of the
monthly gross sales turnover (collectively, the “Qianhai
Transactions”).

(3) Master Leasing Agreement

On December 29, 2017, the Company and NWDS entered into a
master leasing agreement (the “Master Leasing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the parties (i) recorded their mutual
understanding to enter into future lease agreements with respect
to the lease of premises and concessionaire counters in the PRC
from members of the NWDS Group; and (i) set out the
underlying principles of such future leases for a term
commencing from the date of the Master Leasing Agreement up
to December 31, 2019.

The Master Leasing Agreement will expire on December 31, 2019 and
will be automatically renewed for successive periods of 3 years
thereafter, subject to, among others, the Listing Rules, unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the Master Leasing Agreement.

As (i) Sino Wealth, a substantial shareholder of the Company, held
approximately 24.37% interest in the Company. Sino Wealth is wholly-
owned by CTFN, which is in turn controlled by CTF. Also, NWDS is a
subsidiary of New World Development Company Limited (“NWD”) and
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited is a controlling shareholder of NWD
as well as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CTF; and (ii) Qianhai CTF is
owned as to approximately 50%, 30% and 20% by Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and
NWD, respectively and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is a
subsidiary of CTF; accordingly, each of the NWDS Group and Qianhai
CTF is a connected person of the Company and the transactions
under the Pre-existing Leasing Agreements, all future and renewals of
the existing leasing agreements contemplated under the Master
Leasing Agreement and the Qianhai Transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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For details of the Pre-existing Agreements, Qianhai Agreement and
Master Leasing Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated December 29, 2017.

For details of the Qianhai Renewal Letter, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated December 6, 2018.

The annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions
for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2018 are HK$6 million
and HK$10 million, respectively. On December 6, 2018, the annual cap
in respect of the continuing connected transactions for the year ending
December 31, 2019 was revised from HK$14 million to HK$15 million
as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated December 6,
2018.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the turnover rent paid or
payable to NWDS Group and Qianhai CTF by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$4.4 million, which is within the annual cap of HK$10
million.

Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s independent auditor was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
stated in the above paragraphs in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the reporting requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

61



62

EEEHRES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BREEH
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HEEFBHAAANFRFI61EEE167H -

BE -HLEIBEAQARZ EH&ESF

B E2018F12A31H IEFE AN - ARQ BB RZFT
FEEA 240,000 @A - AN FEREEBFHE
FrEBRKG ZEFERAE BEKNDRBRARF
HERREBASZEL SR BEAERBFHER
e WARARAIKRRAEEBR BHEARAE
B D 2 FFIBIAT ¢

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option schemes and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set
out on pages 161 to 167 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2018, a total of 240,000
ordinary shares were repurchased by the Company on the Stock
Exchange. All the repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled by
the Company. The Directors believe that the repurchases reflect the
Company’s confidence in its long term business prospects and would
ultimately benefit the Company and create value for the shareholders
of the Company. Details of the repurchases of shares of the Company
are as follows:

BEAE

(H1BR B8 X A1)

i E R 5 EE EREEEE SREEESE Aggregate

Number Highest Lowest purchase price

BE A5 of shares price per price per (before

Month of repurchase repurchased share share expenses)

T T T

HK$ HK$ HK$

8 H 240,000 4.41 4.36 1,051,400
August

M FXATIREEE I B E2018F12A318 (FFE
N ARABRRETMAMBATMERSE  HEWN
BRIAQGEME EmES-

NEERE

RARER  REARAAIUNGEZARERR
EZENBZBAT ARAERLETRUZE
R @TRARARFRE -

EER
ARARBAOEFRERKFZEEER  WRRES
EREMEAVMRERRES - BAARAD
EERFRNER BERAFHRF0HEF0H
[EEERBEE] -
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Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of
the Company during the year ended December 31, 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to ensure better transparency and protection of
shareholders’ interests. Information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 29 to 50 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The employees of the Group are selected, remunerated and promoted
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Please refer
to Note 2 to the financial statements for details of the retirement
benefits provided to employees of the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market standards.
Particulars of the emoluments of Directors on a named basis for the
year are set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as independent auditor of the Company and
to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, March 7, 2019
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Giordano International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 72
to 160, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2018;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Goodwill impairment and valuation of put option liability

° Valuation of inventory

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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HRETEE
Key Audit Matter

BRMWETNUEERRENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HERERERHRLIHEEENEE
Goodwill impairment and valuation of put
option liability

BRSO BRI G165 £ - B 228/
G E B - it E BB a2k - 2() %
BEEZ @ 1aat RAGF B iE40) - (i)

Refer to Note 16 “Gooadwill”, Note 28 “Put Option
Liability”, Accounting Policies Notes 2(k), 2(t) and
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in
Note 4() & (i) to the consolidated financial
Statements

NRREaHEEABRRNMBHA46EET
HAps41EBTRERKBENRPRER (AT
BRI PRER] BOEHBERIBEREE
HABT(ATEBIREEELST])  NETHE
BEAMR - BN BREREHARTFERNRRER
BSEIESI MR R AR FIsR s h - RO HIE
BENEBHEEEEGBERBEURABEI R R
20185F12A31H ESENRLHEBER1.21
BT

Of the HK$546 million goodwill on the
consolidated balance sheet, HK$541 million arose
from the acquisitions of the Giordano Middle East
businesses (the “Middle East Business”), which
has been allocated to cash generating units
(“CGU”) for the purpose of goodwill impairment
testing. In addition, put options exist over the
remaining interests held by the non-controlling
shareholders of the Middle East Business. The put
option liability is stated at fair value at each
balance sheet date, and as at December 31,
2018, amounted to HK$121 million.

WHERREBRSEEN T E TR
HRaENHEONEEEGRENReRENR
B WERARBEREHEEKAKGE -

The assessment of the recoverable amount of the
goodwill and the put option liability valuation for
the Middle East Business were based on the
same cash flow projections prepared by
management, using fair value less costs to sell
calculations.

BMAIZERERARMERE S RERER
PREBHRREEFTENE Z 2 E -

We focussed on these balances because the
valuation models involve significant judgements
made by management about the future results of
its Middle East Business.
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BfBRATIHEEEHEEHERUKARANMGES L HERIEA
HEZEHNESERFIEEGEER UK ERRAREESHEN
BHREETER -FAR BMNEHELERGEREAZANEEE
TS UFEEREEMNTAIEE -

We evaluated management’s valuation models by assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology, the process and
controls by which the models were drawn up and compared the
underlying inputs to the latest Board approved budget. We also
compared historic actual results to those budgeted to assess the
quality of management’s forecasting.

HRZBELENTRELTETRNETHELE D BHKER
SR PAARMBERIGAETFRANERBREGA T2
Given the uncertainty in the macro-economic environment for a number
of the CGU in the Middle East, which has led to difficult trading
conditions, we have focussed on the key assumptions and inputs used
in the calculations, particularly:

. FRANERARFRE UREEAEQANMITERBEREEN
AL ERBNERKAEZ SR EITTM
the risk adjusted discount rates used, and assessed these against
the cost of capital of the relevant companies and industry and
country specific comparable entities;

. A FEHEEREXERSELETHNERERE AREL
AEWERTFRERHENZLE D KMRSEREEER
JEFrER) |l R ER BR SN BB BB 17 R Al = & A1 B 5 AL 48 48 7 18
RIBAET TR -
the projected annual sales growth rates and the terminal growth
rates for the CGU, as these were considered to be the key
drivers of the valuation of the Middle East Business. We
compared management’s assumptions of these against external
retail industry outlook reports and country specific economic
growth forecasts from different sources.
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BRMWETNUEERRENSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FEfME

Valuation of inventory

BREEHUBREN d22[FH) - Bt HEF
BB iT2(n) Rk 3B 2 & &1 14 &1 K A B 7Y B it 4(i) o
Refer to Note 22 “Inventories” and Accounting
Policies Note 2(n) and Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements in Note 4(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements

201851231 BEEEH F 7 8% R85.52
BT - FERKAEAZRFENREESR
REMBmE RETEFENATEE FEH
LAfEEr - BAlgex BERBE L T LER
REUAREEP @R NZEEHFERETETS
BRERMERNITHNE T E -

The net inventory balance at December 31, 2018
was HK$552 million. Inventory is carried in the
consolidated financial statements at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The net realisable
value of inventory in the apparel industry is
difficult to estimate and could be impacted by
changes in economic conditions in places where
the Group operates, as well as changes to
customer taste and competitor actions in
response to changes in market conditions.

BPEIZERRARGFAMEFELEBER
FHEEANEMMEW BT E(E L HE -
We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgement in estimating the
amount of inventory provisions required.
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BREMEERBRIETT —AEMNSEHE  UAEETEFAERER
HERER P ZERBHER -

We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed our own
sensitivities, where we flexed the key assumptions within a reasonable
range, to determine at what level the headroom in the model would be
eliminated.

ERBERE BMRATEENHERRKANHBMEBREREGRE
15 % FF o

We were satisfied that management’s judgements and assumptions
used in the valuation were supportable, based on the available
evidence obtained.

BMERTHRERBEMAFENER FELRTHEEBREFRAAN
Bl EREF -

We have obtained an understanding of the key procedures
implemented by management in estimating the net realisable value of
inventories and periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence.

BMARTZEERBTAZH > ENTFESS  UERFESE
RECHESEM WERBIEAENAE T PIIER O ERFBLLH] 6 2E 1
o

We tested a sample of inventory items categorised into different
seasons of the year to gain comfort over the categorisation and ageing
of inventory and recalculated, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of the provision percentage applied.

>~

RBZ2ERLHEELR RMUEEBHEAN B BRRTFER KLY
FRRARLEER Ul E i FEEENS B - RMEKFEFEEE
BRABEMAREERBEEEETLER R TFEEEN S B -

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by challenging
management’s projections on current trends and demands for the
remaining inventories, with reference to historic sales experience. We
also assessed the reasonableness of the inventory provisions by
comparing a sample of inventory items to actual post year end sales.

ERREER HMRREEBNHERKANRRERBERESF -
We found the assumptions made by management in respect of the
inventory provisions were supportable based on the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tse Ming Yee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 7, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B ZE2018F12A31B L F &
For the year ended December 31, 2018
(&R & FS) (In HK$ million, except earnings k=3

UK EEETHENMN) per share) Note 2018 2017
H & 5 Sales 5 5,509 5,412
8 KA Cost of sales 7 (2,259) (2,191)
E 7 Gross profit 3,250 3,221
HE AR EUES - F5  Other income and other gains, net 6 86 112
D& A Distribution expense 7 (2,440) (2,390)
THEH Administrative expense 7 (271) (254)
£ A Operating profit 7 625 689
HEEH Finance expense 8 (5) (4)
FE(h& & QD Fa A Share of profit of joint ventures 17 64 59
B AT 15 70 A i A Profit before income taxes 5 684 744
Frig 3 Income taxes 11 (142) (175)
EEEBRFAEBHEZEREF Profit after income taxes for the year 542 569
JE1G Attributable to:

VNN S Shareholders of the Company 480 500

FE 4% I 2 Non-controlling interests 62 69

542 569

RATIRFESZ Earnings per share attributable to

% & 7 shareholders of the Company 12

EARCGENM) Basic (HK cents) 30.5 31.8

#3E CEN) Diluted (HK cents) 30.4 31.7

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERaER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E Z2018F12A31B I F
For the year ended December 31, 2018

(UBBETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
KEERFAEBREZEF Profit after income taxes for the year 542 569
Hima s Other comprehensive income:
KA EMHEEIBREIBE  ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
REMGAWEIZRAAERIE  Fair value change on financial asset at fair
JEMEEANBEES value through other comprehensive income
(K17#19) (Note 19) (10) —
AL EsmEE Fair value change on available-for-sale
NRERB (HF18) financial asset (Note 18) - ©®)
HEATHLESREE Disposal of available-for-sale financial asset - 9)
BIHNB AR - £ERARAR Exchange adjustments on translation of
DRBIRE ZEHFHE overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and
branches (65) 126
REEFEHRGZEEKRE Total comprehensive income for the year 467 680
FE1E - Attributable to:
VIN/NETE 35S Shareholders of the Company 414 611
FE 42 ) M A Non-controlling interests 53 69
467 680

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERRER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

HZE12A31H
ik As at 31 December
(K EEETHEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2018 2017
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
VI3 MR RS Property, plant and equipment 14 207 234
"EME Investment properties 15 25 28
Bk Goodwill 16 546 546
AENAIEE Interest in joint ventures 17 552 563
At EemEE Available-for-sale financial asset 18 - 16
REMGZAEWIFIZAARME  Financial asset at fair value through other
EEZeMEE comprehensive income 19 6 —
RIBRBRIE A AMEEIEY  Financial asset at fair value through profit
SRLEE or loss 20 28 28
HETHRALIENRIE  Leasehold land and rental prepayments 21 134 147
HEES Rental deposits 122 135
FEIEFRIE & B Deferred tax assets 29 47 51
1,667 1,748
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 552 524
HMELMERBAELIERNRIE  Leasehold land and rental prepayments 21 62 58
JE U BR SR R E A P MR Trade and other receivables 23 528 527
RERRITERF Cash and bank balances 31 1,315 1,465
2,457 2,574
EERTE Total assets 4,124 4,322
EakaE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARFE Capital and reserves
AR AR Share capital 24 79 79
1 Reserves 27 2,450 2,528
¥R I B Proposed dividends 13 260 314
KA B A% B AL = Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 2,789 2,921
FE 12 ) 1 7 A Non-controlling interests 25 220 220
A Total equity 3,009 3,141

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEERER(K)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

H=12A31H
okza As at 31 December

(A BEETHEEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2018 2017
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
BEERHE A E Put option liabilities 28 - 6
FELERIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 123 127

123 133
RBERE Current liabilities
JE AT BR R K E h FE 5 3R Trade and other payables 30 476 484
EORohEEaE Put option liabilities 28 121 121
BITE X Bank loans 32 298 298
FESFTS B Income tax payables 97 145

992 1,048
EEHE Total liabilities 1,115 1,181
EEREaEARE Total equity and liabilities 4,124 4,322
BERBEE Net current assets 1,465 1,526
EEABERABDEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,132 3,274
26 & BRE=EE
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EFE EZE
Director Director
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EHRERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

B Z20185F12A31H IEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

k3
(KB BETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2018 2017
mE K Operating activities:
B P15 10 A i A Profit before income taxes 684 744
FE . Adjustments for:
FEAE & & D EE F Share of profit of joint ventures 17 (64) (59)
EEWRE —MKNEQR Gain on bargain purchase
2 Wz of a subsidiary 6, 33 - (4)
HEITHEEC/EE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
2 W E financial asset 6 - 9)
ME T RHEeEN Amortization of leasehold land and rental
SR IE 8 prepayments 21 72 73
FLE WA Interest income 6 (20) (16)
W e REHBR Depreciation of property, plant and
HEMERE equipment and investment properties 7, 14, 15 107 102
HeEE - WM REZ  Net loss on disposal of property, plant
FE 1B and equipment 6 2 2
W HMERBEZ Impairment loss on property, plant and
VEREN, ki equipment 14 - 1
MEFESBEBLTFEME  Provision for obsolete stock and stock
written off 7 9 22
52 AR R 8H Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 23 - @)
EREA Provision for doubtful debts 23 9 1
IR (A S AT U (e pE Receivables written off during the year as
W BR B 1 2 i 8H uncollectible 23 2) —
& &R Finance expense 8 5 4
EBlREER Share option expense 9 3 7
P& X, 5 & Exchange difference (26) 29
BEES  FERFBH  Operating cash inflow before changes in
BHA KBRS KA working capital, interest and income
taxes 779 895
T8 zEm Increase in inventories (37) (90)
JEUWREER R EMEUW I Z  (ncrease)/decrease in trade and other
(3 ) R receivables (8) 25
FERAR R Decrease in trade and
H b JE S SR 2R other payables (10) 67)
KEFHMEELE RS Cash generated from operations 724 763
2F E Interest paid (5) (4)
2EREE 7T‘J S Hong Kong profits tax paid (47) (26)
2 AE N IR Overseas tax paid (133) (83)
REEEIBHERAFESHE  Net cash inflow from operating
activities 539 650

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHEEREXR (&)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

E Z2018F12A31B I F
For the year ended December 31, 2018
k3
(KB BETREN) (In HK$ million) Note 2018 2017
REEK: Investing activities:
BEWME HELLE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment 14 (84) (104)
HEAHEESREE Y Proceeds from disposal of available-for-
BT 15 IR sale financial asset - 13
W iE — R E A7 Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of bank
OB WEERITET balances and cash equivalents
MREEE) acquired) 33 - (4)
& — A W B AT B R Proceeds from disposal of partial interest
2 FTS k1A of a subsidiary - 6
fEE— F'EJ M@ QR & DM Payment for repurchase of partial interest
2 FRIE of a subsidiary (6) —
MEL M RBLIEFNRIEZ Increase in leasehold land and rental
o prepayments 21 (68) (57)
MERe 2/, ()  Decrease/(increase) in rental deposits 13 ®)
IRITEBTER Decrease/(increase) in bank time
"W, (&) deposits 31 142 (78)
2 FE Interest received 20 16
BlRAEERAIRKRE Dividends received from joint ventures 17 52 42
REXK RS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
FBAS (R BE investing activities 69 (174)
Eﬂﬁ%ﬁ : Financing activities:
FITIRANFT1S 5RIR Proceeds from issue of shares 33 25
1" B & Share repurchase (1) (32)
AT IE S SRS Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (49) (31)
EMRE Dividends paid (583) (471
MEXB2HEMREFEHE  Net cash outflow from financing
activities (600) (509)
HERALZEE M Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
(R 2) equivalents 8 (33)
FYRERBEESEEEE Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 1,150 1,156
fﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁ?l‘ﬁ*&% Effect of foreign exchange rate
BEoTE changes on cash and cash
equivalents (16) 27
FEREESRHEELZEMEERE Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 1,142 1,150
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 77
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EHRERER (H)
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

B Z20185F12A31H ILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

e
(U B EZFTLAEN) (In HK$ million) Note 2018 2017
ReRRESESELEFEZ5H ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be RIRITETT Cash and bank balances 31 1,315 1,465
B FE R =EA Less: Bank deposits with maturity
LA EBIHR 2 SR1TFE 3K over three months, from date
of deposit (173) (315)

1,142 1,150

78 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHREZEH X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B E2018F12A31HIEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

AAARREGES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

THEE RELFE NS
SREE BAREREZ

RE CREERRE
&K Available-  Financial asset FFRH
BERE BRERR for-sale at fair value £
BA  HABRH Capital RAHE Share ERfEHE  HMfHEE  financial  through other REHEF Non-  HEHBE
(HEEETREN) Share Contributed redemption Share options  Exchange Other asset comprehensive  Retained &5 controlling Total
(In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve income reserve profits Total interests equity
#2017412A318
At December 31, 2017 79 383 3 945 19 46 70 7 - 1,369 2,921 220 3,141
BHBREE
Change in accounting policy - - - - - - - (U] 7 - - - -
R2018%1A1R
At January 1, 2018 79 383 3 945 19 46 70 - 7 1,369 2,921 220 3,141
KEERABRERN
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - - 480 480 62 542
Efpgaks:
Other comprehensive income:
- REBGARERAREREL
SREENAENEY
Fair value change on financial
asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - - - - - - - (10) - (10 - (10
—- BHMBRE AERAR
PRAREZER B
Exchange adjustment on

translation of overseas

subsidiaries, joint ventures and

branches - - - - - (56) - - - - (56) 9 (65)
BiEa ke
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (56) - - (10) 480 414 53 467

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHER2EH R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

B Z20185F12A31H ILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2018

ARRRREGES
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

(UEEETREN)
(In HK$ million)

R&
Share
capital

BARH
Contributed
surplus

&%
HERE
Capital
redemption
reserve

R4GEE
Share
premium

BRERE
Share
options
reserve

B HURE
Exchange Other
reserve  reserves

THEE
SREE
i
Available-
for-sale
financial
asset
reserve

REMGE RS
RAREREZ
SRHEERRE
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve

REER
Retained
profits

FEAIN
i $:

Non-

4% controlling

Total

interests

EREHE
Total

equity

BRRER S :
Transactions with shareholders:
Rk
Transfer among reserves
BiREaa
Share option schemes
- TEBRE
Exercise of share options
- BREER
Share option expense
FEFIUERRE
Dividends to non-controlling interests
ABE-HNBRARDNES
MEARZREREHRAE
Recognition of put option liability lapse
from repurchased of partial interest
of a subsidiary
ERE-MHNBL RSB0 ER
MEEZES
Recognition arising from repurchased of
partial interest of a subsidiary
017TF RS (W it13)
2017 final dividend (Note 13(b))
20185 IR B (1 i113@))
2018 interim dividend (Note 13(a))
BRREE 2R (Hito4e)
Shares repurchased and cancelled
(Note 24(c))

33

@

(315)

(268)

U]

@

33

(5)
(315)

(268)

U]

(52)

1

@

33

(49)

(6)
(315)

(268)

U]

FRAABRHERAARR
REDREHE

Total contributions by and distributions
to shareholders of the Company

33

(582)

(546)

(83)

(599)

ARRER S
Total transactions with shareholders

33

(582)

(546)

(83)

(599)

#2018512A31R
At December 31, 2018

79

383

978

(10) 72

@)

1,267

2,789

220

3,009
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EHERBE R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

E Z2018F12A31B I F
For the year ended December 31, 2018
RRARREREE
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARER AHREESH FREHIE
L] BRERR BERE (3
BRE  HARH Capital ~ RIAHE Share EREE  HEE Avalable-forsale  EFEF Non-
(HEZETREN) Share  Contriouted  redemption Share options  Exchange Other  financial asset  Retained A% controling  EHMAE
(In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve premium reserve reserve reserves reserve profits Total interests  Total equity
20174 1A18
At January 1, 2017 79 383 3 920 14 (80) 74 22 1,370 2,785 182 2,967
REERAMBHREET
Profit after income taxes for the year - - - - - - - - 500 500 69 569
Hipira s
Other comprehensive income:
- TREEEREAERAEZED
Fair value change on available-for-sale financial
asset - - - - - - - 6) - ©) - ©)
- HETREESREE
Disposal of available-for-sale financial asset - - - - - - - 9 - (] - ©)
- BHRERE AERAR
PRABEZERBE
Exchange adjustment on translation of overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and branches - - - - - 126 - - - 126 - 126
ara s
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 126 - (18) 500 611 69 680
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EHER2EH R (K)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HZE2018F12A31A L FEE

For the year ended December 31, 2018

(HEEETREN)
(In HK$ milion)

ARERREN EE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A
Share
capital

GABH
Contributed
surplus

ARER
EL]
Capital
redemption
reserve

i a®
Share
premium

BRERE
Share
options
reserve

ERHE
Exchange
reserve

UHEELRE
RERR

HivktlE Available-for-sale

Other
reserves

financial asset
reserve

FREHIE
B
Non-

controlling
interests

TRl
Retained
profits

At
Total

BREE
Total equity

HBRER S
Transactions with shareholders:
SR
Transfer among reserves
B
Share option schemes
- TiRERE
Exercise of share options
- BREER
Share option expense
FEHURERS
Dividends to non-controlling interests
EHE-BMNBR RSB ER
MEEZRERAHEAE
Recognition of put option liability arising from disposal
of partial interest of a subsidiary
REHE-HMHBLARBHERT
—NAEEMELZED
Recognition arising from disposal of partial interest
of a subsidiary to an ex-director
2016F RER S (M it130)
2016 final dividend (Note 13/b))
017F R HIRE (Wit13@)
2017 interim dividend (Note 13(a))
BRREE 2R (Hito4e)
Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note 24(c))
BRIERTHZRG (W 72410))
Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled
(Note 24(c))

25

- - (31) (31)

(236) 236) - (236)

(235) (235) - (235)

(1) (1) - (31)

FRABRHERMARARRDREE
Total contributions by and distributions to
shareholders of the Company

25

(601) (475) (31) (506)

Total transactions with shareholders

25

(601) (475) (31) (606)

H2017612A318
At December 31, 2017

79

383

945

46

70

7

1,369 2,921 220 3,141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion
apparel under the brand names of Giordano and Giordano
Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned and
licensed brands through an extensive network with
approximately 2,400 shops spanning over 30 countries and
regions.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on March 3, 1995
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered
office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is 5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company has its
primary listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”)
on March 7, 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Impact of new and amended standards

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRS issued by the HKICPA which were effective for
the Group’s financial year beginning on or after January 1,
2018:

— HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

— HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;

— Hong Kong (IFRIC)-Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration;

— Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions;

— Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle; and

— Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
property.

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make
certain retrospective adjustments following the adoption of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. Changes in principal accounting
policies are set out in Note 2(d) below. The adoption of
other above new effective interpretation and the
amendments to existing standards did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies or
financial results.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amendments
to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but
not yet effective. These are not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, except to note the following:

HKFRS 16 Leases
Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result
lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the
standard in a manner similar to finance leases as the
distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed.

Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognized. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

Impact

The Group has set up a project team which has reviewed
all of the Group’s leasing arrangements over the last year
in light of the new lease accounting rules in HKFRS 16.

The Group expects to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach where the cumulative
effects of initially applying HKFRS 16 is recognized as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits and
comparative figures are not restated.

The Group will recognize a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and
a financial liability on the consolidated balance sheet. The
asset will be depreciated over the terms of the leases, and
the financial liability will be measured at amortized costs.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Impact (continued)

Lease expenses in the consolidated income statement are
replaced by depreciation and interest expenses. Adoption
of the new standard will have effects to the financial
performance of the Group by increasing EBITDA and EBIT,
while, when comparing to the HKAS 17, higher expenses
will be incurred in the early years of lease terms,
diminishing over the lease terms and will result lower
expenses in the later part of the lease terms.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitment of HK$1.2 billion of which
approximately HK$0.2 billion relate to short term leases
which does not fall within the scope of HKFRS 16. Based
on a preliminary assessment, it is estimated that the
implementation of the standard increases ROU asset by
approximately HK$1.0 billion with a similar increase in
financial liabilities.

The Group will continue to assess the full impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and further update of the impact will
be provided in the interim report for six months ending
June 30, 2019.
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December 31, 2018

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Changes in principal accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new accounting
standards from January 1, 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from
January 1, 2018 resulted in changes in accounting policies
are set out in Notes 2(m) and 2(o) below. In accordance
with the transitional provision in HKFRS 9, comparative
figures have not been restated with the exception of certain
aspects of hedge accounting.

(i) Classification and measurement

On January 1, 2018 (the date of initial adoption of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed
which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and has classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories.
The main effects resulting from this reclassification
are as follows:

R2017% IR ER 2018%F
12A318 R % ERMB®RE 1A18E%
As at December %R|SFFHTE As at
31, 2017 Impact of initial January 1,

As Originally adoption of 2018
presented HKFRS 9 Restated

EHEEERER
(5 8%)
FERBEE
R E At 4R A W E
BAREREZ
SREE
A4 S Rl
BE asset

Consolidated Balance
Sheet (extract)

Non-current assets
Financial asset at fair

value through other

comprehensive income — 16 16
Available-for-sale financial

16 (16) -
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018
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(In HK$ million)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Changes in principal accounting policies
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group’s equity is
as follows:

Hit iR & W&

RAREBEER

ZEeRMEERE

aEHEESLRE Financial asset
EERE at fair value
Available-for- through other
sale financial comprehensive
asset reserve income reserve

H2017F12831 B W FE A &6k

Opening balance as

at December 31, 2017 7 —

ENHEAHERE Reclassify available-for-sale
EHMEERBEZR financial asset reserve to
HAb 4R & W financial asset at fair value
- /NPT through other comprehensive
ZEMEERE income reserve (7) 7
H2018F1A1B M FE D&k Opening balance as
at January 1, 2018 — 7

FEHI 7R3 A R E i i A

AEBERZENAEMIEZEEREET
KRN EATHLENERIEE
BEY - AAZIEETRFE
FEHTeRPEHREENRER
KEGIEE o ML - 7201841 F1
N R EB1,6008 B TR E
ERAHIEEeREESTE
ERHEMEE RS
(REMEEREEARER
Bz orEENRIQOEBITH
BRmmAHLEeREE
REE

BRR

AV

H

DA

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
n

B R B ER

BEREZEMEERE -

7

Equity investments previously classified as available-
for-sale

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) changes in the fair value of its equity
investment previously classified as available-for-sale,
because the investment is held as long-term strategic
investment that is not expected to be sold in the
short to medium term. As a result, asset with a fair
value of HK$16 million was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial asset to financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”") and fair value gain of HK$7 million was
reclassified from the available-for-sale financial asset
reserve to the FVOCI reserve on January 1, 2018.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Changes in principal accounting policies

(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for trade and other
receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade and other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and
other receivables. However, there is no significant
impact on the Group’s accounting with respect to
impairment of trade and other receivables.
Accordingly, opening balance of retained profits as
January 1, 2018 are not adjusted in respect to the
adoption of simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from January 1, 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Group
adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption (if any) will be recognized in retained profits as of
January 1, 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated. However, there is no significant impact on the
Group’s accounting with respect to the timing of revenue
recognition and allocation of the transaction price to
performance obligations identified. Accordingly, opening
balance of retained profits at January 1, 2018 are not
adjusted in respect to the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Subsidiaries

(i)

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognizes any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value
or the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combination (continued)

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interests in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired are
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interests recognized and
previously held interests measured are less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognized directly in the consolidated income
statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost,
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor have. The Group has assessed
the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the senior decision-
makers. The senior decision-makers, who are responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, have been identified as the directors
and senior management that make strategic decisions.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s companies are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the company operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the transaction dates or valuation where
items are re- measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non- monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case, income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rate on transaction
dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entities and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the equity holders of
the company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to
bring the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Freehold land is not amortized.

— Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion.

— Plant and equipment 5 years

—  Other property and equipment 3-5 years
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

1)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

An investment property is a property which is held for long
term rental vyield or for capital appreciation, or both.
Investment property comprises buildings held under finance
leases. It is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
the purchase price of the investment property and other
costs incurred to bring the property into its existing use.
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using
straight-line method to write off its cost over the unexpired
period of the lease.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from derecognized of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of non-controlling
interests in the acquire and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair
value of the net identifiable assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

From January 1,
financial assets
categories:

2018, the group classifies its
in the following measurement

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss),
and

— those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognized on the trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

— Amortized cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortized
cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognized directly in profit or
loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognized in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in the
income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)

(n)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognized in profit or loss as other
income when the group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognized in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From January 1, 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the
realizable value. Cost

lower of cost and net
is determined on the weighted

average basis. Cost of purchased goods is invoiced prices
plus procurement costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price at which
inventories can be sold in the normal course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank loans in
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®

(u)

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognized in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the bank loans using the effective interest
method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
shares in the subsidiary. The amount that may become
payable under the option on exercise is initially recognized
at fair value with a corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option
over any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such
options are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a
result of the change in the expected performance at each
balance sheet date, with any resulting gain or loss
recognized in the consolidated income statement. The
charge arising is recorded as a financing cost. In the event
that the option expires unexercised, the liability is
derecognized with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Current and deferred tax

(i)

(ii)

Current tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
and regions where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Current and deferred tax (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in
Taiwan, the Group operates defined contributions
schemes and, if applicable, participates in central
defined contribution provident fund schemes for all
qualified employees. The assets of the said schemes
are held by independently administered funds
separated from those of the Group. Contributions to
these schemes are made by both the employers and
employees at rates up to 20% on the employees’
salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branch of wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
in Taiwan has a defined benefit scheme (“Old
Scheme”) governed by the Labor Standard Law and
a defined contribution scheme (“New Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Pension Act which became
effective on July 1, 2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned for the service
years of all employees before the New Scheme was
effective and the subsequent service years of
employees who chose to continue to participate in
the Old Scheme. The branch currently contributes at
2% of the total salaries of participating employees as
determined and approved by the relevant government
authorities. The assets of the Old Scheme are
invested by the Bank of Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branch contributes each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap
of NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New
Scheme into individual pension accounts at the
Bureau of Labor Insurance.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Employee benefits (continued)

(x)

(i)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognizes the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates,
returns and value added taxes. The Group recognizes
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below. The Group bases its estimates of return
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

() Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
sold to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash
or by credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross
amount of sales, before netting off credit card fees
payable for the transactions. Such fees are included
in distribution costs. Revenue is shown net of returns,
rebates and discounts.

(ii) Sale of goods — customer loyalty
programme (deferred revenue)

The group operates a loyalty programme where
customers accumulate points for purchases made
which entitle them to discounts on future purchases.
A contract liability for the award points is recognized
at the time of sale. Revenue is recognized when the
points are redeemed or when they expire 24 months
after the initial sale.

A contract liabilities is recognized until the points are
redeemed or expired.

(iii) Sales of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(2)

(aa)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method, taking into
account the principal amount outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Leases (as the lessee)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental payments applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial risks:
(a)(i) foreign exchange risk, (a)(ii) credit risk, (a)(iii) liquidity risk,
(a)(iv) cash flow interest rate risk, (b) capital risk management
and (c) fair value estimation. The Group’s overall risk
management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative
financial instruments to manage certain risk exposure when
necessary.

(@) Financial risk factors
() Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’ s functional currency.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the
Group mainly arises from purchases from a
Renminbi-based supply chain and sales proceeds in
local currencies of the relevant group entities. Foreign
exchange risk arising from recognized assets and
liabilities is considered to be insignificant. This is due
to the balances denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entity are
generally settled promptly leaving minimal outstanding
foreign currency position as at the balance sheet
date.

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to
balances with bank, trade and other receivables and
rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit
risk on deposits with banks is limited as the Group
mainly places the deposits in banks with high credit
rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, bank transfer,
through credit cards or through reputable and
dispersed department stores. The Group’s credit
sales are only made to wholesale and franchise
customers, with an appropriate credit history and on
credit terms of 30 to 90 days. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The table below shows the major types of debtors of
the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(X B EErTHBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
BV Counterpart:
BEAQT Department stores 182 207
hiEE 7 Franchisees 112 63
FEW = REER Credit card receivables 19 24
H Others 17 7
JE UK BR 3R Trade receivables
(K1 :223) (Note 23) 330 301
¥=x Landlords 210 203
540 504
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on share credit risk
characteristics.

For the trade receivables, the counterparties primarily
are large corporation and have strong financial
position and management considers the credit risk is
not high. The Group maintains frequent
communications with these counterparties.
Management has closely monitored the credit
qualities and the collectability of these receivables
and consider that the expected credit risks of them
are minimal in view of the history of cooperation with
them and forward looking information.

Other receivables

The directors of the Group consider the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis during the year. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the assets as
at year end date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated.

° Actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to
the company’s ability to meet its obligations;
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

° Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the company;

o Significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the company, including
changes in the payment status of the third
party.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual
payment/repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty
fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 365 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each
category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.

As at December 31, 2017 and 2018, management
consider other receivables as low credit risk as
counterparties have a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
The Group has assessed that the expected credit
losses for other receivables and the loss allowance
provision recognized during the vyear for these
balances is not material.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by
maintaining sufficient banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, which is generated from the
operating cash flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
all of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities
are due within one year.

Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,315 million
(2017: HK$1,465 million) and short-term bank loan of
HK$298 million (2017: HK$298 million); the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities. The bank balance and short-term bank
borrowings at floating rate expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is insignificant to the
Group. The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact resulted from the changes in
interest rates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital

are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern as well as maximizing returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group’s capital structure consists of equity, cash and

bank balances and bank

loans as shown in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital risk management (continued)

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital by maintaining a net cash
position throughout the vyear. Net cash positions is
calculated by cash and bank balances net of interest
bearing bank loans. As at December 31, 2018, the Group
maintained a net cash position of HK$1,017 million (2017:
HK$1,167 million).

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are

disclosed by the level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the date of
the statement of financial position. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in Level 1. The Group’s
financial asset at FVOCI measured at fair value are included
in Level 1 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note
19).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (continued)

As at December 31, 2018, if there had been a 5% change
in the fair value of financial asset at FVOCI and financial
asset at FVPL with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s equity would have increased/decreased by HK$0.3
million (2017: Available-for-sale financial asset would have
increased/deceased by HK$0.8 million) and net profit would
have increased/decreased by HK$1.4 million (2017: HK$1.4
million).

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. No
financial instrument is included in Level 2 as at December
31, 2018 and 2017.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level
3. The Group’s financial asset at FVPL are included in
Level 3 of the fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 20).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2(k). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or its
fair value less costs of disposal, whichever is higher, and
both bases require the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, an
impairment loss may arise (Note 16).

Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant
agreements and with reference to the estimated post-
acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Judgement is required to determine key assumptions (such
as growth rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries. Changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect the amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities
shall be re-measured at their fair value resulting from events
or factors emerge after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognized in the consolidated
income statement.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in economic conditions in places where
the Group operates and changes in customer taste and
competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Assessment of impairment of non-current
financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Management assesses the recoverable amount of each
non-current asset based on its value in use or on its fair
value less costs of disposal (by reference to market prices),
depending upon the anticipated future plans for the assets.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the
assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation for future
periods is adjusted if there are material changes from
previous estimates.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on its
development strategies and operational control. There are two
major operating segments: Retail and Distribution and Wholesales
to Overseas Franchisees. Management manages the Retail and
Distribution operating segment geographically and by brand.

Geographically, the Retail and Distribution operating segment in
Mainland China and the Middle East comprise DOS and
franchised stores. Hong Kong and Macau, Taiwan and the rest of
Asia Pacific do not have material local franchised stores. Group
stores span most of Asia Pacific and the Middle East.

As for brands, the Group presently operates Giordano and
Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX as well as other owned
and licensed brands.

Segment operating profit is before finance expense, share of
profit of joint ventures and income taxes. This is the
measurement basis reported to management and the senior
decision-makers for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

Analysis of sales and operating profit of the Group’s operating
segment by geographic regions is as follows.

2018 2017

e R & A

& Operating $§&%  Operating

(U BEETRBEN) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profit
TERDHE Retail and Distribution

TRHEMME The rest of Asia Pacific 1,623 233 1,502 204

B K fE Mainland China 1,293 89 1,307 118

BB Hong Kong and Macau 959 108 969 95

B Taiwan 671 66 642 64

FE The Middle East 636 86 673 121

5,182 582 5,093 602

HEINMEBRE 2 # B Wholesales to Overseas Franchisees 327 49 319 57

DEVELE Segment results 5,509 631 5,412 659

18 2 B B Corporate functions (6) 30

mEEH Finance expense (5) (4)

FEfR A & A RlE T Share of profit of joint ventures 64 59

B Fit 18 B¢ A R Profit before income taxes 684 744
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

NmBES 2 EERSIHEED F 2 — Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution operating segment
AHMWT ° by brand is as follows.
2018 2017
mE R 15 i A
$§E% Operating $EE%  Operating
(KEEETHENL) (In HK$ million) Sales profit Sales profit
TERDH Retail and Distribution
Giordano }.Giordano Junior Giordano and Giordano Junior 4,362 483 4,331 522
Glordano Ladles Glordano Ladles 452 72 423 67
BSX BSX 137 6 142 9
HAth Others 231 21 197 4
5,182 582 5,093 602

KRN HREE - ERNEBRBIPISRGEH
INEFE 2 $HE 58 A12.86E 8 T (20174 ¢
12,888 7r) + IR Bl Kk A12.93(B % 7T
(20174 : 18.07E B L) » MR E fb 115 ¥
INE P 7 38 & %8 A£29.30f8 78 JT (20174 ¢
2817EE L) °

DERZ 2 $EE R A12.0818 7 T (20174 ¢
HBE7TEABT)E FTAGLEH -

PEAKENE REHEER A2,2008 7% T
(2017F 22008 B L) B AR BM A
1,800& 7% Jr (20174F : 1,700& 8 L) © & /&
/21,7008 78 7T (20174 = 1,700& 8 L) © 38
K E #b b [& 54,0008 78 T (20174 : 3,900
&% Jt) b E A1,6008 78 T (20174 ¢
1,5008 8 7T) ©

K BE 2 TS 5B A &1,8008 7 7T (2017
& 12,6008 L) BB A1,10088
JC(20174F + 1,400& 8 L) * & /& 51,2008
7 70 (20174F : 1,0008 74 7T) » 58 K E b 3
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M ® A600E & JT (20174 : 1,0008
JT) °
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The Company has its domicile in Hong Kong. Sales to external
customers recorded in Hong Kong and Macau are HK$1,286
million (2017: HK$1,288 million), Mainland China HK$1,293 million
(2017: HK$1,307 million) and external customers from other
markets HK$2,930 million (2017: HK$2,817 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$1,208 million (2017: HK$1,157 million)
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Depreciation and amortization charged related to Mainland China
was HK$22 million (2017: HK$22 million), Hong Kong and Macau
HK$18 million (2017: HK$17 million), Taiwan HK$17 million (2017:
HK$17 million), the rest of Asia Pacific HK$40 million (2017:
HK$39 million) and the Middle East HK$16 million (2017: HK$15
million).

Income taxes charged related to Mainland China was HK$18
million (2017: HK$26 million), Hong Kong and Macau HK$11
million (2017: HK$14 million), Taiwan HK$12 million (2017: HK$10
million), the rest of Asia Pacific HK$67 million (2017: HK$56
million) and the Middle East HK$6 million (2017: HK$10 million).
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5. €EB5 & (&)

AEBZEERWRE D ZAOWMWMAT -

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Analysis of the Group’s assets by geographic regions is as

follows.
DEEE
Segment assets

(X EEETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
D EPE E Segment assets

B RIEM Hong Kong and Macau 973 981

R The Middle East 832 858

DR Efthih[= The rest of Asia Pacific 750 779

A K B Mainland China 740 853

= Taiwan 196 193

3,491 3,664

AENTIRER Interest in joint ventures 552 563
A ECEE Available-for-sale financial asset - 16
REMEERSRARERE Financial asset at fair value through

ZEBMEE other comprehensive income 6 —
REBZREARERE Financial asset at fair value

ZEREE through profit or loss 28 28
FEERIEE E Deferred tax assets 47 51
EERE Total assets 4,124 4,322

REeEMTERBEHRBEEIN  REE MR
P2 3E 7 8 & E 42 5 B1.6718 78 Jt (2017
F :1.86BB L) RABIKEEA0.66(EE T
(2017F 082 L) KRR EMTH A
13.5318 7% 7T (20174F : 13.85(E%& 7T) °

6. HMWARHEMYE  FHE

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and Macau was
HK$167 million (2017: HK$186 million); Mainland China, HK$66
milion (2017: HK$82 million); and other markets, HK$1,353

million (2017: HK$1,385 million).

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(U FEETTHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
RF 5 A Royalty income 31 36
A E WA Interest income 20 16
HE A Rental income 13 15
i B A Dividend income 3 3
fE 5 I 5 0F B8 Net exchange gain 1 10
HEAHLESHEE 2K Gain on disposal of available-for-

sale financial asset = 9
EERE-ENEAR WS Gain on bargain purchase of

a subsidiary = 4
HEYE - KEREEZFEIE Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (2) )
H Others 20 21

86 112
122 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit is after charging:

201812 H31H

December 31, 2018

(X FEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
& B A Cost of sales
GFEIEEKRAE Cost of inventories sold 2,250 2,169
PREFERE Provision for obsolete stock and
PEEB=E i stock written off 9 22
2,259 2,191
DEHE R Distribution expense
THREFZ Operating lease rentals in respect
KEREER of land and building
— &EHEEIH — Minimum lease payments 808 822
— A2 ER — Contingent rent 237 231
B ITKA Staff cost 811 783
MESEE Building management fee,
BREZR AAEXEA government rates and utilities 132 127
BEEME HER Advertising, promotion and
B 5 B incentives 129 122
E = Depreciation of property, plant
LB E and equipment 100 96
BERESH Packaging and deliveries 56 54
BITRERARKE Bank and credit card charges 35 34
E L+ FE A FROE Amortization of leasehold land
B H prepayments 6 6
Hth Others 126 115
2,440 2,390
THEHR Administrative expense
8 IKA Staff cost 157 158
ERREXEER Legal and professional fee 40 23
THREREFZ Operating lease rentals in respect
KEHEER of land and building
— &EEAETH — Minimum lease payments 17 16
% R0 B & Auditor’s remuneration 7 7
B R E Computer and telecommunication 7 7
Y - S Depreciation of property, plant
&R and equipment and investment
HEMERE properties 7 6
EIRE Travelling 5 5
BERHEANIE Business and other taxes 1 2
E L+ TE A RE Amortization of leasehold land
5 prepayments - 2
Hfth Others 30 28
271 254
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

8.

MmEEH FINANCE EXPENSE
(X B EETHBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
RITE KA B Interest on bank loans 5 3
HMEER Other interest expenses - 1
5 4
BTIRAX STAFF COSTS
(X EFEETREMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
e kIEZ(BEEEHE) Salaries and wages (including
Directors’ emoluments) 881 856
EREER Share option expense 3 7
BRe — AT Pension cost — defined
G & contribution plans 84 78
968 941

KEEAN AEERBERAREERZHRK
(20174 : #8) LURVE AR UK - 1820185 &
2017F12A318 R BRI HARF(EAH 2 KEE
EEUHE K o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B R E B AERAF

During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
to reduce the level of contributions (2017: Nil). As at December
31, 2018 and 2017, no unvested benefits were available to be

utilized in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. EEPFNEZNES

10.

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) EEM2 (a) Directors’ emoluments

BE

BHREHHK

Employer’s

MEMREAL> HilzE*  contribution
we ¥4  Discretionary Other to pension &5t
EspnE Name of Directors Fees  Salaries bonuses**  benefits* schemes Total
EBEFT EBETT EBEFT BETT EBEFT EBETT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2018
21 B ot LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter* - 3,597 16,032 1,824 - 21,453
IR 5= 48 CHAN Ka Wai* = 2,297 1,375 277 18 3,967
BEYH Mark Alan LOYND?! - 2,110 1,150 247 18 3,525
&5 CHENG Chi Kong" 200 = = = = 200
=1 CHAN Sai Cheong" 200 = = = = 200
A" Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - - - 400
A& KWONG Ki Chi* 350 = - - - 350
HB* WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 = = = = 350
1,500 8,004 18,557 2,348 36 30,445
2017

2Bt LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter® — 3,543 17,269 1,931 18 22,761
R 5z CHAN Ka Wai* - 2,258 1,494 518 18 4,288
EE N Mark Alan LOYND?' - 2,075 1,245 441 18 3,779
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI*? Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI* - 134 - - 107 144
R CHENG Chi Kong" 200 - - - - 200
3=t CHAN Sai Cheong" 200 - - - - 200
E N Barry John BUTTIFANT* 400 - - - - 400
BAE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - 350
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH*® Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH*® 350 - - - - 350
=8 WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)* 350 - - - - 350
1,850 8,010 20,008 2,890 64 32,822

' TE AT AR E
B WITES

" FERMITESE

* BUFNITESF

’ Hip s BERRET  BRE FE=R

A E )R B R E Y W ([E AWz
* MEETEAREN SR L ERLBLERE
2w R BIZERRTRAE
BIEEET BRI HE
| MR2017ESAQREZ T AES
2 R2017E3 AR BT AE S
e MR201748 AR BT AES

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

Chairman and Chief Executive

Executive Directors
Non-executive Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors

Other benefits include insurance premium, share options, housing
allowances, other allowances and benefits in kind (“Other Benefits”)
Discretionary bonuses are determined based on profit sharing ratio or
pre-determined achievement rate of profit targets.

Pro-rata up to the date

act as a Director

Appointed as a Director on March 9, 2017
Resigned as a Director on March 9, 2017
Resigned as a Director on August 30, 2017

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= 0 E®BrER2XF
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B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

10. EENF B MER (&) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)
(a) EE=WM< (E) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
REAFERN MESTNzMESERE The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to Directors
o of the Company during the year is as follows:
(B TFoT A3 E ) (In HK$'000) 2018 2017
e Fees 1,500 1,850
HEme : Other emoluments:
EXxFe Rk Basic salaries and
H U = Other Benefits 10,352 10,900
RIR S FT B R Contribution to pension
schemes 36 64
15 METE AL Discretionary bonuses 18,557 20,008
30,445 32,822
b) ENERSHFRE (b) Five highest paid individuals
RAEAFEAN AEBAUTSHEE The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
H B FESNAL (20174 « 3fi) T & - H Bl the Group for the year include 3 (2017: 3) Directors whose
SCHBEREXHEE -AFEN emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
B2 (2017 2 ) B S HF R E ~ The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2017: 2)
A E T : individuals during the year are as follows:
(LB TFTiRE) (In HK$°000) 2018 2017
EXFHe Kk Basic salaries and
H = Other Benefits 4,933 4,954
RIRNE FHEI R Contribution to pension
schemes 92 85
)15 1 FE 4T Discretionary bonuses 3,593 4,986
8,618 10,025
126 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B 3% %R & MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

10. EEMNRZMES (F) 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)
(b) IfU&SHHE (H) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)

BTRSHBAEMERBRNT The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals

fell within the following bands:

B < 48 5l AE

Emolument bands Number of individuals
2018 2017

JB B

HK$

2,000,001-3,000,000

3,000,001-4,000,000 1 —
4,000,001-5,000,000 1 1
5,000,001-6,000,000 = 1
(c) DEE - ZZEESEFNEA (c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
BRNZESHNBEEIRBREMN dealings in favour of Directors, controlled
EX -EERNHEMRZHEHR bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors
RARMBEIACKFENARAAE There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
E SHARFESERNEABEBL of the Directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
HZEEETFHENTBAYXEAL connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d)
ER - EEFRREMRZ G EZRE of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of
& 7 R B &5 £383(1)(d) 1§ K 25622G 622G (2017: Nil).
EE=HMDEHKRE (2017F : &) ©
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 127
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B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

11.

gy
EBNERERBEBEAFTE 2 G ERF G
F1216.5% (20174 - 16.5% ) 2 Bi K&+ H -
E 7B A SN R 2 B B FT 15 R T 1% @ Bl B0&
MWEEAZHERTE -

11.

INCOME TAXES

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Income
taxes on profits assessable outside Hong Kong are calculated at
the rates applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

(KX EEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
KEEFBH Current income taxes
BB Hong Kong 20 27
B AN Outside Hong Kong 87 97
BEFE (B8 TEEE (Over)/under provision
in prior years (3) 16
mneriE Withholding taxes 33 27
137 167
EEFRBH Deferred income taxes
REMERE 2TERED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 5 8
142 175

WY H T BEAFTFEERGEEEDRZAEG
71,9008 /8 7t (20174F : 1,600&8 B 7T) ° i
AHFBERP ZEMLALE DG EF TR
ZRlEMEBEERA B EEE-

EAEAMBEREALEE —HWBARBASF
EZHRBEBERARERE REBEEBEHT
— MR BANE - WEREE2017F12
A318 IEF E ket 12 A& 81,5008 8 70 2
— R EEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

This charge excludes the share of joint ventures’ income taxes
for the year of HK$19 million (2017: HK$16 million). The share of
profit of joint ventures in the consolidated income statement is
after income taxes accrued in the appropriate income tax
jurisdictions.

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department initiated a review on
the prior years’ tax affairs of a subsidiary of the Group. An
additional tax assessment was subsequently issued and a one-
off tax provision of HK$15 million was made for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & #
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12.

Bt 7% 8 R M (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Fre® (&) 11.

BEBMEMAE 2 A KB PTG A®
MEPTER 2 FHERMAT ©

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

INCOME TAXES (continued)

Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before income taxes at the
tax rate of Hong Kong to the income tax charges is as follows.

(U FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
B AT 15 70 A i A Profit before income taxes
(TBEEEGAEE QR (before share of profit
of joint ventures) 620 685
TS 1 %16.5% Calculated at an income tax rate
(20174 : 16.5% )5t & of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 102 113
HEMBERTRABE 2 Effect of different tax rates
in other regions 13 20
AT 2 Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 31 30
RERZRERIEE E Deferred tax assets not recognized 8 4
AR 2 WA Income not subject to tax (35) (33)
RS Utilization of previously
REWR 2B unrecognized tax losses (7) @)
M IA Withholding tax 33 27
BAEFE (B%8) TEEE (Over)/under provision
in prior years (3) 16
ez H Income tax charges 142 175
BREF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREALREBRNDEBEANFERABRR
FE& 16 BR P 15 3% 18 & F1/4.8018 78 7T (2017 :
50088 L)t E -

EREABFDEAFERNSEITRDZ
R F 5 A% #01,575,281,0710% (2017 -
1,570,885,4930%) 51 & -

EREERFNDZANFEANSETRD
no#E F ¥y R 201,575,281,0710% (2017 ¢
1,570,885,493% ) i £ B 2R FE A 2 7 & IR
BFERHZMMERTEBEREESITE
317 2 IR {0 2 N F 5 i% £12,922,810%
(20174 : 4,749,102 51 & -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on the profit after income taxes attributable to
shareholders of the Company for the year of HK$480 million
(2017: HK$500 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,675,281,071 shares (2017: 1,570,885,493 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average of 1,575,281,071 shares (2017: 1,570,885,493
shares) in issue during the year by the weighted average of
2,922,810 shares (2017: 4,749,102 shares) deemed to be issued
if all outstanding share options granted under the share option
schemes of the Company had been exercised.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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Bt 3 8RR M &£ (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

BHERKENRE :

13. K& 13. DIVIDENDS
(@ =XFEREWT: (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(UK FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
BEERZFHERER Interim dividend declared and
FR17.08 10 (20174 - paid of 17.0 HK cents per
FR15.0/10) share (2017: 15.0 HK cents
per share) 268 235
REEHEREZCRARE A Final dividend proposed after
FA&16.58 1l (20174 - the balance sheet date of
FR%20.07 1) 16.5 HK cents per share
(2017: 20.0 HK cents
per share) 260 314
528 549
R2019F3A7H EF e AHK On March 7, 2019, the Board has recommended a final
BRERI6SEIN  BEERERERA dividend of 16.5 HK cents per share and is subject to the
ABREAFTAE FEERELE -1t approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
ERKREAEEEATEBERRA annual general meeting. The proposed dividend has not
B BMERECEBIHDERBREALZ been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date.
KARBBEITROHDBERHE - The amount of proposed dividend was based on the
shares of the Company in issue as at the reporting date.
b) BRE—FE YREXFERE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,

approved and paid during the year:

(K FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
28 KRR 22017F KRR B A 2017 final dividend approved
F1%20.0% 1L (20164F : and paid of 20.0 HK cents
5.0 1) per share (2016: 15.0
HK cents per share) 315 236

20174 R HIAR B T iR AN 2 B) 7020184

6A8H 2 B BTN BB -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B R E B AERAF

The payment of 2017 final dividend was based on the total
number of issued shares of the Company on June 8,

2018.
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B35 R Ak B EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

14, W¥ - - HeEE KRB 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HEWE
#E - HGZRR
WAERE
KAHEEZ Leasehold
T REF improvements,
Freehold WERRE furniture & RE
land & g5 Plant & office Motor &%
(KB EETHEN) (In HK$ million) buildings  Buildings equipment equipment  vehicles Total
R E Cost
#20184F1 818 At January 1, 2018 56 23 51 1,157 22 1,309
BmEEE Translation difference (1) - (1) (77) (1) (80)
NE Additions = = = 83 1 84
& Disposals = = - (48) (1) (49)
2018412 H31H At December 31, 2018 55 23 50 1,115 21 1,264
REINE Accumulated depreciation
201841 A1H At January 1, 2018 15 8 50 985 17 1,075
BEEE Translation difference (1) (1) (1) (73) - (76)
KEEFE Charge for the year 1 1 - 102 1 105
& Disposals - - - (46) (1) (47)
H20184F12H31H At December 31, 2018 15 8 49 968 17 1,057
2018512431 A Net book value at
ZEREFE December 31, 2018 40 15 1 147 4 207
HEWZE
®iE R R
KAEREZ WRER
T RAEF Leasehold
Freehold e 28 M 7R improvements, RE
land & BF Plant & furniture & office Motor a5
(K BEEFTHEN) (In HK$ million) buildings Buildings  equipment equipment vehicles Total
RAE Cost
M2017F1 /818 At January 1, 2017 53 26 50 1,066 20 1,215
BREEZE Translation difference 3 - 1 52 1 57
U B8 — RS BT /BB A &) (A7 2#33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) - - - 10 - 10
NE Additions - - - 101 3 104
& Transfer out - @) - - - ©)
& Disposals - — - (72) ©) (74)
2017912 A31H At December 31, 2017 56 23 51 1,157 22 1,309
BERNE Accumulated depreciation
201741818 At January 1, 2017 13 8 49 907 17 994
HmEEE Translation difference 1 — 1 43 1 46
U B8 — RS BT /B A B (A7 2£33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) - — - 5 - 5
WA Impairment - - - 1 — 1
REEFE Charge for the year 1 1 - 99 1 102
CENRY Transfer out — 1) — — — 1)
& Disposals — — — (70) ©) (72)
M2017412H31H At December 31, 2017 15 8 50 985 17 1,075
2017512431 H Net book value at
ZREFE December 31, 2017 41 15 1 172 5 234

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & % m B R 2o 7
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B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

15. REY = 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEBERFAEMEERBUHE -

The Group had properties which held for long-term rental yields.

(X B EETHBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
R A E Cost

®1A1H At January 1 64 —
ME = Translation difference (3) —
A Transfer in - 64
W12A31H At December 31 61 64
REFE Accumulated depreciation

®1A1H At January 1 36 —
MmEE Translation difference 2) —
LEN Transfer in - 36
e Depreciation 2 —
M12H31H At December 31 36 36
A12B31A ZRE FE Net book value at December 31 25 28

ZIREMHEN2018F12831B 2 AR EELE
VEEZHEQARE - HEDIREBEKEE
Kb E BRMARITHEER 5 MHE
MERTHREENTRKNMPEMSENE
BERNMEE R HFRARBREBENTINE
e - MEMRAMNBETMSHSE2ES
8 1) 3 A0 H 4 AT 28 b &9 9 F R A R A A R
S R2018F12A31H  ZWME(BFEHEE
THREFE D) LA R ERLT008E B
T EAHFBERFERERENEZAS
W A B3708 8 T ©

REAMEZRAAER  UWHEZ&ES MK
ERg2ERERKBARS -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The fair value of the investment properties at December 31,
2018 was assessed by an independent professional valuation
firm. Valuation was based on income capitalization method which
is based on the capitalization of the net income and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate capitalization rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or expectations.
The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation have
reference to recent lettings, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The total fair value of the
properties, including leasehold land and the building portion, was
HK$47 million as at December 31, 2018. In the consolidated
income statement, rental income relating to investment properties
of HK$3.7 million was included.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & #



Bt 7% 8 R M (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. WEWXE (&) 15.

PR EMEREREZ AT FRFTE :

HELH HEHR

BF HE MR T2 N60F
(ABEERE)

BREMEZE@FESNOT

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land  Over the term of the lease

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease or
no more than 50 years.

The net book value of the investment property is analyzed as
follows:

(XEBEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
ERBUIINEE Outside Hong Kong, held on lease
10 =50F H 4 of between 10 and 50 years 25 28

REVENAAEBRRENBEDER T
AERmS ERENER (THBREEA) -
REBBMBEREENFIBEHQIAEN
BRAOBR/E=M-

The fair value of the investment properties was based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

16. & 16. GOODWILL
(A BEETHEEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
M1A1E RM12A31H At January 1 and December 31 546 546

HMEDRBXGAEMMN REED S
EXGEZERNRSELET - HERK
EDEOMMTE -

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGU identified according to
the location of operation and business segment. The goodwill
analyzed by operating segment is as follows:

(U FEETHBEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017

TE RS H Retail and Distribution
— DREMME — The rest of Asia Pacific 5 5
— =R — The Middle East 541 541
546 546

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #
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B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

16.

mE(E)

BmEREANR
PRIENEEDHEZBESEHSE L ¥
T EETBAEEREEERNBEER
BHREEXRHE KB eBEINIRERARD
hEREEXNEFTE  IEREAAEBEMG
THBEATEBREETBEENMSEE (F
=& — AME3cC)) c BT E HIEAUE R
B ESFUHBBENFEBABRE SR
E-EEERBBIPREBREHMSE
ReEHRETESE - NP R - EEMES
M BEEFHEEREA3.1% - 5FHM N
BrBReRE  BREFTRIBERESFI.0%
HE - RN A S KRB ([FTEBRE]) - BT
FRAZHATEEIAR B11.5% @ EfhhRibE
FrfE 2 ARG IR R B12.8% =14.4% KX B
REEBEED 2 FERR -

B ERAEN2018F N2017412 8318 (HIT &
AR A -

AEERTHBEFERENANBERRE
FRETHRES N - AR EEREN AR
RREZHWED KIS BEMNRESELE
BIRE S REE A WO £ 5 - R20185F12
AS1H M RIRBEGEEFHELERET
FE1.918 & 2 % - S ATRE IR R IR 12618 &
DR ALREERFRL  PREROKE
TRBBHEATKESHE-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

16.

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

The Middle East goodwill has been allocated to CGU, which
represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
internally. The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined
based on fair value less costs of disposal calculation, using
inputs for the fair value estimation that may include unobservable
market data (Level 3 — see Note 3(c)). These calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Management determines the financial budgets of Middle East
based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The annual sales growth in the forecast period is
estimated to be 3.1%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rate of
3.0% per annum. The pre-tax discount rate used for United Arab
Emirates (“UAE”) is 11.5% while other Middle East Regions use
between 12.8% to 14.4% and they reflect specific risks relating
to the current market assessment of risks specific to such
assets.

The Directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
goodwill as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for goodwill. A
reasonably possible change in key assumptions used in the
impairment test for goodwill would not cause any CGU’s carrying
amount to exceed its respective recoverable amount. As at
December 31, 2018, had Middle East’s forecasted annual sales
growth rate dropped by 1.9 percentage points, or the pre-tax
discount rate increased by 2.6 percentage points, with all
changes taken in isolation, the Middle East’s carrying amount will
exceed its recoverable amount.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & #
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Bt 7% 8 R M (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TXHINZAERR ZBAZRERBER
o FLMEERRZERNT

17.

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

The joint ventures listed below have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares, particulars of the unlisted joint ventures
are as follows:

BRTR
RHARKRAEAR
HMER

Issued and fully

BRSL R AR i B paid share capital
RELARAM Place of incorporation BERGEILR or registered FE¥H
Name of joint ventures and operation Percentage of equity holding capital Principal activities
2018 2017
Giordano Corporation Limited* AR H 48.5 48.5 5,150,000,000% B &K=TEREREWA R

Republic of Korea

KRWS5,150,000,000 Retail of apparel
and accessories

ERCEFRAF" B% 49.0 49.0 200,000 T KLEBENHES
Cheong Yiu Enterprises Limited* Hong Kong HK$200,000 Trading of packaging
products
HEFEZEE R A joint ventures held indirectly

(KX EEETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
M A1H At January 1 563 480
FE {5 % F Share of profit 64 59
BRAEEARRE Dividends received from joint

ventures (52) (42)
MmHEER Translation difference (23) 66
M®12A31H At December 31 552 563

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #
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B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

17. & QA= (&) 17. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
EEATZHBEREE Summarized financial information for joint ventures
TXEHIEERE 2V HEER - Set out below is the summarized financial information for joint

ventures.

EEEBEXRES Summarized balance sheet
(K EEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
nE Current
RekBREEET Cash and cash equivalents 675 602
HEMmREEE Other current assets 516 603
mEEERE Total current assets 1,191 1,205
HitmBAaE Other current liabilities (123) (115)
mMEBERSE Total current liabilities (123) (115)
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 75 76
BE Liabilities 4) 6)
EEFE Net assets 1,139 1,160
INEEEE Summarized income statement
(U FEETHEEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
W 2= Revenue 1,474 1,499
ITE 8 Depreciation and amortization (27) (30)
B Expense (1,277) (1,313)
B FT 15 B4 A & A Profit before income taxes 170 156
Frig®t Income taxes (38) (34)
Br BT 18 B 18 0m 7 & Profit after income taxes and

AR A W total comprehensive income 132 122

136 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
T 7 o BE BB R L F ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #F &



Bt 1% 8RR B A (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. %JA TfEﬁTi (#&)
BNERAEBEMBEERBERGE -

17.

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Reconciliation of summarized financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented
to the carrying amount of the interest in the joint ventures.

(X B EETHBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
1H1IBEEFE Opening net assets at January 1 1,160 988
PN Profit for the year 132 122
sy Dividends (107) (86)
MEEE Translation difference (48) 136
12A31BE EFE Closing net assets at December 31 1,137 1,160
JEIE & & QA Share of interest in joint ventures 552 563
BERE 2 AFE Operating lease commitments 462 1,924

AEBEMKAZAERRZERLRE Y
REFMIABBERENAE MZEEGERQ
ARG TEEAXRABEREARALE -

18. AL ESREE
BR2018F1 A1H At E M EEFR RN A

RERREZEBARAA(THRERH])3.21%2
R BRENAMEARERAAER

18.

There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures, and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and
capital commitments themselves.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

As at January 1, 2018, available-for-sale financial asset
represented 3.21% interests in Speedy Global Holdings Limited
(“Speedy”) had been transferred to financial assets at FVOCI and

BremEE ZEAERNABITE: are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
(U BEETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
Bz RARE Opening fair value 16 35
NABEZEEEA Change in fair value transferred

AHHE to available-for-sale

TREERMME financial asset reserve - 6)
& Disposals - (13)
# Transfer out (16) —
HERzARhE Closing fair value - 16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

18. AIHtHESMEE (&)

19.

20176128318 Al HESREEZ A
AEEBREBIAZREET  BREZBHY
BREEREIBRZ AL EBRSBEASE
—,%& o

REMGERBERIANEREZS
BMEE

18.

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET
(continued)

As at December 31, 2017, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset are determined using its quoted price on the
Stock Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the fair
value hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(X EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
BylzA rE Opening fair value - —
A Transfer in 16 —
NABEZ2EE A Change in fair value

REMEREWEIE AR EERE transferred to financial asset

LEREERE at FVOCI reserve (10) —
HRzARE Closing fair value 6 —

M2018F 124318 * REMEIE AW EIZ AR
BEREZECMEEENAERRI21% 2 #
& R2018F1A1HMmAIHEemEES
o ZBERNEBILE - RERERIEEK
KEEEK  RASEMNETEHERZ — -

MR2018F12A31H * REME B W EIZ AR
BEREEBEZEREEZ ANBREREB M
T8z REBET  RIEEBTIEREEDSE
1B AR EBESEEE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
B R E B AERAF

As at December 31, 2018, financial asset at FVOCI represented
3.21% interests in Speedy, which had been transferred from
available-for-sale financial asset as at January 1, 2018 and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in
garment manufacturing business and is one of the key suppliers
of the Group.

As at December 31, 2018, the fair value of the financial asset at
FVOCI is determined using its quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, which is categorized as Level 1 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.
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Bt 7% 8 R M (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

RESREAANEEEZ2EHEE

MR2008F6H27H  AEEFIVEE i
£ Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita |)
21.0% 7 o IRIKFZ 1 % + 6,055,4400% & i@
AR AEEFE# T30.0%C #1772 BA
“A 8 1 B3 18 56,055,4400% Placita 2 18 5t
AR (TSR L) o tboh » REB I E T &%
B 2 SRh H A o

ZEEBRERERBEENERRNAIA
BEE - RBEREFRGEE LBRE
BReBFFRABULEXGLERREHNF
7 o

M2018F12A31H 2 & L % & & B i #F
2 NS E A2,8008 7 JT (20174 : 2,8008 75
L) c RBRRERANEREBZEREEZR
hEZBERAHIBRIHEAEMEA -

ZARBHREEAAEREZEREER
RERRBEMERESR  RERHZRED

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

On June 27, 2008, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, 6,055,440 ordinary
shares representing the Group’s remaining 30.0% of the total
issued share capital of Placita were redesignated into 6,055,440
preference shares of Placita (the “Preference Shares”).
Furthermore, the Group was granted a put option on the
Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will
be re-assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at
year end and the end of each subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options is
HK$28 million as at December 31, 2018 (2017: HK$28 million).
Changes in the fair values of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated
income statement.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs

FHENTAEBEMS EREHNER (T E that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
R A\)  REBEBBWBEREELF13HH inputs), which is categorized as Level 3 under the fair value
DRABENERLIERFE =R - hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 13.

(U FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
M1A1H &12A31H At January 1 and December 31 28 28
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

21, HELHWRBESEFRE 21. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS
HELH
BAHE HEBEARE
Leasehold land Rental |t
prepayments prepayments Total
(UBEEETAREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2018 2018 2017
MAIRZREFE Net book value at January 1 121 84 205 243
BEES Translation difference (1) (4) (5) 4
NE Additions = 68 68 57
NGRIEE S Amortization for the year (6) (66) (72) (73)
8 Transfer out - - - (26)
MM2A31E ZBREFME  Net book value at December 31 114 82 196 205
KA Current portion (6) (56) (62) (58)
13- Eib) Non-current portion 108 26 134 147
22. 78 22. INVENTORIES
(U B EFrREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
BURK Finished goods 552 524
FEBECHRAEEBRTLERAHEERNAF The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost of
22 50188 70 (20174 : 21.69188 L) ° goods sold amounted to HK$2,250 million (2017: HK$2,169 million).
140 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. PR R H i 8 WU

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(X B EFTHRENT) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
JE UK BR 3R Trade receivables 330 301
W B ERE Less: Loss Allowance (14) 7)
B U BR RORE Trade receivables, net 316 294

Hi W 82 Other receivables, including
SEENEEE deposits and prepayments 212 233
528 527

EWERREEREMBER BERELHRA
ERAZEEWA - AKBEELERBR T4
FI0Z90R FE 8 o & Wik 70 K L ftb & WOk
ZEHEEZAEQRAERE -

FEW R R B R A BB RIR A
BECREERE-

(a) BR#R 2T
REZAFCHBREREE KRR Y

Trade receivables comprise mainly amounts due from
franchisees, licensees and retail proceeds due from department
stores. The Group normally allows a credit period of 30-90 days.
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are stated
approximately at their fair values.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

(a) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis from the invoice date net of provision for

ManT : impairment is as follows:

(X B EETREMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017

0Z30H 0—30 days 203 211

31£60H 31—60 days 66 44

61%290H 61—90 days 28 20

#90H Over 90 days 19 19
316 294

RAASEEZEEDHNERESM - &
BERBLERTERTHEZEERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

23. EWERA K H b E W ()
(a) BRER 7T ()
2018412 831 H - # HI 18 It & 5 &
2 &L BR 3% 56,8008 8 7T (20174 -
4200BB0) METEBEFRPESR
AW ERRRLE - BEDNHBEE S 2

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)
As at December 31, 2018, trade receivables of HK$68
million (2017: HK$42 million) were past due but not

impaired. These relate to a number of customers for whom
there has been no recent history of default. Their ageing

REROMTWT : analysis from the due date is as follows:

(LB EETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017

0Z30H 0-30 days 45 22

#30H Over 30 days 23 20
68 42

(b) BUERRNEBER®E
FEUWBR R BB - TIABBRP
ABR B SR AN 5= B 52 /5 W (2] BR SR A0
SEMAERBRAT BREEBSE
EAERUBR R P

AERNEREBE Y (BRFELE

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables

Loss allowance in respect of trade receivables is recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
loss allowance is written off against trade receivables
directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during

BEEAXS) T the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:
(UK FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
M1HA1H At January 1 7 8
=R H 8 Reversal of provision for
doubtful debts = 2)

N4 A A A] Y ] KRR SROER 19 Receivables written off during

2 g the year as uncollectible 2) —
N F B Provision for the year 9 1
M12A31H At December 31 14 7

{8 51) /8 Uk B 3R 2 B 1R 1B A 0 e 3R B
BR#ENEP KLEEEFHARR
A] Y o] 5B 10 FE U BR K R It T AR R S
TEIRRRE R o RS E BRI B #1900
B (0174 - &) K Mm -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

142 v s mnmmsm®a A

The individually loss allowance for receivables relate to
customers that are in financial difficulties and management
assesses that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts were recognized. The Group holds a
collateral amounted approximately of HK$9 million (2017:
Nil) over the balances.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #



Bt 7% 8 R M (AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

24, BB 24, SHARE CAPITAL
BB EE & 7%

(B AR 72 5h (In HK$ million, except number of Number of Share

WU EEETREN) shares) shares capital
EEEREESBUZEER Authorized ordinary shares of

HK$0.05 each:

M2017F1 418 - At January 1, 2017,

2017412AH318 - December 31, 2017,

2018F1A1H & January 1, 2018 and

2018412 A31H December 31, 2018 2,000,000,000 100
ERTREZHAE: Issued and fully paid:
20171 A1H At January 1, 2017 1,570,952,518 79
17 8 e e Exercise of share options 6,852,000 —
EACDS S Sl &) Shares repurchased and cancelled (7,174,000) —
R2017F12H31H At December 31, 2017 1,570,630,518 79
17 B8 P #e Exercise of share options 8,378,000 -
FRTHEZBHD Shares cancelled during the year (508,000) -
R2018%F12A31H At December 31, 2018 1,5678,500,518 79

BITR M
BEBEARNRZERETE  AA2FE
mERERE A (ERFRITEEER
Tz W ) E 178,378,000/% (2017 :
6,852,0000% ) & f& F{ESH Il - 31 & 8
e FRARETHEZERERE 2
N ARERFE161H T167E [ 15 A% #
B e

(a)

RRREITZAAFEBRERRDA
ERZRBEERNESTEAZTERS

e

&

>t

Bk

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

Issue of shares

(a)

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the Company, the

Company issued 8,378,000 (2017: 6,852,000) new ordinary

shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company to
option-holders who exercised their rights attached to share

options during the year. Movements in the number of the

outstanding share options during the year is set out on
pages 161 to 167 under “SHARE OPTION INFORMATION”

of this annual report.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in

all respects.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

24, A (4B)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BREEH
(B S 2 ME RAD BB
RAFEAZBHFBEHERAFRE

161E 21678 °

85 E iR 67

H E2018F12A31H I FE RN - B
AARBRERNETEREN — KK
AR RBERBXAMERA X
240,000M% (2017 : 7,442 ,000/%) 28 A 7]
LB KRG ERE ABI00E E T
(2017 : 32008 B L) ' Z BE B K
(2017 : 7,174,0000%) & 1% B &t $5 K A<
RRABBTRACEZZERH 2EE
B o

20174 #& T~268,000/% & [@ J& 15 H 1%
201851 H 5 85 © 7% £268,0000% i 15
R2017F12A3 1A WHEREEFR -
HERENREN OREDLTFALRA
Al B aH - HEREEHER MM
BsHBECHRETZNEREERE
] {4 145 ©

B2019F1A1BE 2 AFERz HE K
UNCIRE =D A E RS e g i

—EBEERQATAMBEENRSG
M2018%12A31H » — A& & A Al
A 7 2 711,800,000 1 & A% 15 (2017
£ 1 1,800,000 3@ L AX 1) °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share option information

Summary of the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” and details
of the movement in share options of the Company during
the year are set out on pages 161 to 167 of this annual
report.

Repurchase of shares

During the year ended December 31, 2018, pursuant to the
general mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company to the Board, the Company repurchased a total
of 240,000 (2017: 7,442,000) of its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$1 million
(2017: HK$32 million), such repurchased shares (2017:
7,174,000 shares) were subsequently cancelled and the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of the cancelled shares accordingly.

The remaining 268,000 repurchased shares in 2017 were
subsequently cancelled in January 2018. These 268,000
shares were recognized as treasury shares at December 31,
2017. The premium paid and payable on repurchase was
charged against the retained profits of the Company. An
amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from retained profits to the
capital redemption reserve.

From January 1, 2019 up to the date of this annual report,
the Company did not repurchase its ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2018, 1,800,000 ordinary shares
(2017: 1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint
venture.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

25. ERFEHERES

B E2018F12AG1L v R BRBER
2201878 L (20174  2.20f8 7 L) * H HPT.
Giordano Indonesia ([ Giordano Indonesia )
{51,788 7T (20174 : 1.6 L) » Giordano
Fashions L.L.C. ([ Giordano UAE |)151,7008
7T (20174 : 1,7008 & 7T) - MTextile and
Ready Garments Co. Ltd. ([ Giordano KSA |)
11,7008 & Jr (20174 : 2,0008 & Jr) » H
AR ZIEERERTIERK

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

25. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at December 31, 2018 are
HK$220 million (2017: HK$220 million), of which HK$170 million
(2017: HK$160 million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia (“Giordano
Indonesia”), HK$17 million (2017: HK$17 million) is for Giordano
Fashions L.L.C. (“Giordano UAE”) and HK$17 million (2017:
HK$20 million) is for Textile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd.
(“Giordano KSA”). The non-controlling interests in respect of the
rest of the companies are not material.

EEEEXREH® Summarized balance sheet

Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA
(K EEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
B Current
BE Assets 253 238 80 62 93 116
a8E Liabilities (35) (37) (45) (30) (17) (37)
R FEERE Total current net assets 218 201 35 32 76 79
kFRE Non-current
BE Assets 66 66 21 25 22 28
EREFEAERE Total non-current net assets 66 66 21 25 22 28
FEE Net assets 284 267 56 57 98 107
FAINEE R Summarized income statement

Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA
(KB EETBEMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
WA Revenue 585 554 225 242 320 339
B B 15 3¢ AT V4 Profit before income taxes 103 94 14 26 39 58
Frig i Income taxes (26) (24) = - (5) (10)
BRETS B EREF Profit after income taxes 77 70 14 26 34 48
E iR A W Other comprehensive income (16) 1) - — 1 —
BEEaWE Total comprehensive income 61 69 14 26 35 48

JEFR I M 2

Total comprehensive income allocated

R A W to non-controlling interests 42 40 3 5 9 12
FE 122 I 1% A 2 Dividends paid
B R to non-controlling interests 23 10 3 4 12 12
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 145

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & % | BB R 2 A



B3 %R MY ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

25, ERFEHMRED (F) 25. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
RERERFH Summarized cash flows
Giordano Indonesia Giordano UAE Giordano KSA

(AEZEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
KEEB 2R RAFHE Net cash inflow from operating activities 99 58 33 15 29 47
BREXB 2R RLFE Net cash outflow from

investing activities (20) (15) (4) (6) (6) 5)
BEXEBH 2R MEIFE Net cash outflow from

financing activities (46) (17) (15) 21 (40) (42)
RERBELESEZEMCRLD) Increase/(decrease)

in cash and cash equivalents 33 26 14 (12) (17) -
MARZE e LB SEET Cash and cash equivalents

at January 1 44 18 23 35 60 60
INEEEREHH T E Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes (5) - = - = -
M2A3A B e R B SELET Cash and cash equivalents

at December 31 72 44 37 23 43 60
T ER AR EE QAR 2EYEAANS The information above is the amount before inter-company
B o eliminations.

146 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. AAEEEERRESEHR

THE COMPANY

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

26. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF

AREEAEBX Balance sheet of the Company
B ZE12A318
As at 31 December
(KX EEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
EE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - HEE KRB Property, plant and equipment 6 6
NGRS Interest in subsidiaries 816 817
et Leasehold land and
HEBEANRE rental prepayments 98 103
HEZ® Rental deposits 1 1
REZEREAREREZECMEE Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss 28 28
& U BT B R B FIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 181 185
1,130 1,140
REBEE Current assets
et Leasehold land and
HEBEANRE rental prepayments 5 5
B L BE 2 T2 L e Uk 2% Trade and other receivables 4 5
Ui B /8 2 @) 5K I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,484 1,323
HWe L1761 Cash and bank balances 310 447
1,803 1,780
EEHE Total assets 2,933 2,920
EakEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARFE Capital and reserves
LN Share capital 79 79
ek Reserves 1,057 1,044
¥R B% ) Proposed dividends 260 314
EEHAHE Total equity 1,396 1,437
REBEE Current liabilities
P& A< BR 3R B E b JE ST 3R Trade and other payables 4 4
& {1 Pl /B8 2 R 3R IB Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,532 1,478
B FTS L Income tax payable 1 1
BERAE Total liabilities 1,537 1,483
EzRkEeBERESE Total equity and liabilities 2,933 2,920
BERBEE Net current assets 266 297
EEABERABERE Total assets less current
liabilities 1,396 1,437
2B & RER
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZE EZE
Director Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

26. RHEEEBRRER®EHR(E) 26. BALANCE SHEET AND EQUITY MOVEMENTS OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

DNEEREFHR Equity movements of the Company
g% BRE
e L]
RA E-ON-4 Capital RHBEE Share RERR BREHE
Share Contributed  redemption Share options Retained Total
(NEEETAEN) (In HK$ millior) capital surplus reserve premium reserve profits equity
#2018 15 1R At January 1, 2018 79 540 3 945 19 (149) 1,437
KEEGRF Profit for the year - - - - - 507 507
BiraliE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 507 507
HEEES Transfer among reserves - - - - © 2 -
BRESE Share option schemes
- TEERE — Exercise of share options - - - 33 - - 33
- BREER — Share option expense - - - - 3 - 3
017 RHAKRE 2017 final dividend
(Hi##131)) (Note 13(b)) = = = = = (315) (315)
20185 R ERE 2018 interim dividend
(Hi#13) (Note 13a) = = = = = (268) (268)
BERHEHEZRA Shares repurchased and cancelled - - - - - (1) 1)
- = - 33 1 (582) (548)
#2018512A318 At December 31, 2018 79 540 3 978 20 (224) 1,396
017TFEZHEBEFTHT ¢ The comparative figures for 2017 are set out as follows:
LS ERE
BOEE E1:]
A EON:E Capital B fE Share EFEf BREE
Share Contributed redemption Share options Retained Total
(N EEETAEN) (In HK$ million) capital surplus reserve premium reserve profits equity
R2017F1 718 At January 1, 2017 79 540 3 920 14 225 1,781
REREMN Proft for the year - - - - - 121 121
BiRakE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 127 127
HEEES Transfer among reserves - - - - @ 2 -
BRE:E Share option schemes
- TFERE — Exercise of share options - - - 2% - - 2%
- BREER — Share option expense - - - - 7 - 7
20165 RHKE 2016 final dividend
(Hi#131) (Note 13(b)) - - - - - (236) (236)
017 R ERE 2017 interim dividend
(Hi#13) (Note 13a)) - - - - - (235) (235)
BRRHEHE R Shares repurchased and cancelled - - - - - (31) (31)
BRARTHEZRG Shares repurchased
but not yet cancelled - - - - - (1) (1)
- - - % 5 (501) @)
2017412 A31H At December 31, 2017 79 540 3 945 19 (149) 1,437
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

27. % 27. RESERVES
MR2018F12A318H » N&E B Z & » i @ The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2018 are
N analyzed as follows:
(A B EBTREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
BB % Contributed surplus 383 383
BB B Capital redemption reserve 3 3
1% 17 4 (B Share premium 978 945
HE IR 7 Share options reserve 20 19
b 5 % Exchange reserve (10) 46
Hfth 18 Other reserves 72 70
Al E Available-for-sale
TREERE financial asset reserve - 7
REMGEWRREA R EERERE Financial asset at fair value through
ZLERMEEMRE other comprehensive income
reserve (3) —
BT 4 A Retained profits 1,267 1,369
2,710 2,842
R R AR B Proposed final dividends
(H1a£13(a)) (Note 13(a)) (260) (314)
2R Total reserves 2,450 2,528

AEBZHAANBBDEREESEHEMES
R mE®EEA BB N1995F5A
EERZHEESmiET  BIEERE
1981 F RENE (K 1MEET) - MABBRA DK T
BRER o

Hit#BzETEZBBFRBOT

(@) RETPEAEFBEREMBESR
FEAEZHBARZEAEREBES
ARRNEMEFER(NAE) KA AE
MZEMB AR ZEAREE -

(b) ARIRTRE B AR RN IR BA B K 72 B
XEA RBRBEZAZEQABZIETE
FEESMEMFEERITIARELE
ARRERIEEERN - AR BIER
A E IR o

(© ARIRFIEE G X ARDAG > PTBE 2

MBRARZEEREBES KRB HE
MEIN NEEDBECZA °

d) BERHEEZERTHAEI21E
BT (20174 - 1. 2788 7T) (MfsE28) »

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

The contributed surplus of the Group represents a credit arising
from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of
arrangement which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@)  According to the relevant laws and financial regulations, the
statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland
China are used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and
to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

(b)  In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund
and other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic of
Korea may only be used to offset a future deficit or be
transferred to capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

() According to the UAE Commercial Companies Law, the
statutory reserve fund of the subsidiary in the UAE is not
available for distribution except as provided in the Federal
Law.

(d) Put option financial liability recognized of HK$121 million

(2017: HK$127 million) (Note 28).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

28. RHERLHEERE

20124 - AN & E gt MmGiordano UAER
Giordano KSAZ FE1% i% A% B8 5% Hi 58 0l HR4& -
DEHRENENERARZHTREETAE
IFﬁFEE’] A EmERAEN.020E85
CERELERAHENRAEE T WE
Giordano UAE K Giordano KSAZ % {734 14
BERF AT 7T(F - MAEEIHBAE - ZEPKE

BENHFRERAAEER  BEFERSRED
BiE - RORAMEEEAETIETIFHE

&Wﬁmibg\f 3 ©

720154 + 7K & & 5t M Giordano Fashions
Co. W.L.L.([ Giordano KW |) KGIO
Fashions W.L.L. ([ Giordano QA |) z JE# &
REREZEEE  AHEEEREZ AR
ZHBRTERTASERMELENTBEEM
WRAEL1,9008 BT - ZEERGH#
R 7K &2 B 52 A Uk B& Giordano KW X Giordano
QAZ PR3 F 12 BERF AT 1T(F + 1 B & 5 B EI
H-ZSUWKaENIREARERR
st EE £ REHIRE - ?ﬁu“juufﬁﬁﬁgiélﬁbx
%ﬁ§+ﬁ&§|Jﬁ//|L@g1ﬁ °

20174 + AL Bl 5t M Giordano Middle East
FZE ([ Giordano MEF J) 2 JE 2 BZ A% B2 #% H
o HAE - DA E ) & Giordano MEFZ22%
R TFAEBEMEEANTHAEMERE
BEXB008 BT - ZHE LR dHERARNEE
52 X & Giordano MEF 2 B& 1734F 14 & B 7]
I MBEIHBEY ZSUBEENS
BEEAREER BEGERSEMNIRE -
RO EHEABEAETTHERY AIER
BAafE-

20184 - AEE EGiordano MEFFEIE AL AR
RETM ZHE R ATIE —IARIE B LAKI6008 &
T AR BN ZGiordano MEF2%H#%5 © %48
REH BT g Bh kR
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28.

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities
arising from the put option granted to the non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA to sell their
remaining interests in these companies to the Group. Such put
option is exercisable any time after 3 years from completion of
the Group’s acquisition of the shares in Giordano UAE and
Giordano KSA and has no expiry date. Such financial liabilities
are initially recognized at their fair value, which is the present
value of the estimated redemption amount. The put option
liabilities are denominated in United States (“U.S.”) dollars and
are classified under current liabilities.

In 2015, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities
arising from the put option granted to the non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L. (“Giordano KW”)
and GIO Fashions W.L.L. (“Giordano QA”) to sell their remaining
interests in these companies to the Group. Such put option is
exercisable any time after 3 years from completion of the
Group’s acquisition of the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano
QA and has no expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially
recognized at their fair value, which is the present value of the
estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars and are classified under current
liabilities.

In 2017, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$6 million in relation to the financial liabilities
arising from the put option granted to the non-controlling
shareholder of Giordano Middle East FZE (“Giordano MEF”) to
sell 2% interests in Giordano MEF to the Group. Such put option
is exercisable any time after 3 years from the completion of the
Group’s disposal of the shares in Giordano MEF and has no
expiry date. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized at their
fair value, which is the present value of the estimated redemption
amount. The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars
and are classified under non-current liabilities.

In 2018, the Group entered into an arrangement with the non-
controlling shareholder of Giordano MEF and exercised a call
option to purchase back these 2% interest in Giordano MEF at a
consideration of approximately HK$6 million. The related put
option had been lapsed automatically.
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28.

29.

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (continued)

The fair value of the put option liabilities is determined based on
discounted cash flows, using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs), which is
categorized as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 18.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method at the rates applicable in
the respective jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(orior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

mEETE RDIKZ
Accelerated RERF
accounting  Unremitted Hith &5t
(KB EETAEN) (In HK$ million) depreciation profits Others Total
2018F1A1H At January 1, 2018 (5) 127 (46) 76
BREZEH Translation difference (1) 8 4 (5)
RABERFPEA Charged to income
(Biett1) statement (Note 11) - 2 3 5
72018412431 A At December 31, 2018 (6) 121 (39) 76
201741 A1 R At January 1, 2017 6) 103 (44) 53
BEED Translation difference - 13 (1) 12
RABERFEA Charged to income
(Htzt11) statement (Note 11) 1 11 (4) 8
REMERE WEET A Credited to other
comprehensive income — — 3 3
H20178 124318 At December 31, 2017 (5) 127 (46) 76

REBEBRERELEHEEE?,3008 %5 T
(20174 : 85008 B L) F B RN BIIE - Itk
LERMRELHEEE E $P3,8008 8 T
(20174 : 4,300& & Jr) # R 20185412 A 31
HESFRER B T2 EZHBEMNRE
BB B AR 2 ER AR I8 3 5 -
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The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$73
million (2017: HK$85 million) arising mainly from tax losses.
These unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$38
million (2017: HK$43 million) will expire within 5 years from
December 31, 2018. The remaining portion is mainly related to
the losses of subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which have
no expiry date.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

29. EEHIEEE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
EFEEHE(EE) BB (HE) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (continued)
EETRAMFAT  HREMGBY RE— Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
BEKE REHBEENHBECHIBEAE legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
EREE T SBEEFTABEEERE  © current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
EHEEBEXRANE- to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined

after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.

(A B EBTHRENL) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets (47) (51)
RLEHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 123 127
76 76
30. ENBRARAEMENRK 30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(X BFEETHBEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
P& BR 3Kk Trade payables 124 90
Hi AR R Other payables and
BN ER accrued expense 352 394
476 484
AT BRI ZBRE DT The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
(UK FEETHEN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
0% 30H 0-30 days 93 66
31£260H 31-60 days 17 6
61290H 61-90 days 4 5
#90H Over 90 days 10 13
124 90
ENEFRREMENR s EEREEEL AR The carrying amounts of trade payables and other payables are
BEA - stated approximately at their fair values.
152 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

1. RERB|ITER 31. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(X BFEETHREMN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
RekReEE Cash and cash equivalents 1,142 1,150
FHRAR=ZEAULEREZ Bank deposits with maturity over
RITHFE R three months from date of
deposits 173 315
1,315 1,465

REBA LZRE RRITEFRIEFES.54
AT (20174 : 4.09BAB L) L ARKHR &
KRRITHTF

REBTHEZIRNEBRINE AT F2.6%
(20174F 1 2.0%)  FRXZEFRZFHE
HHR ABZHR—@EA -

32. (RITER
(A BE#TAENT)

32.

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group were cash
and bank balances totaling HK$354 million (2017: HK$409
million) denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was
2.6% (2017: 2.0%) per annum; these deposits have an average
maturity of more than 1 month as at year end.

BANK LOANS
(In HK$ million) 2018 2017

FEHSRITE R - B
B ILEHE

Short-term bank loans, unsecured,
HK dollars denominated 298 298

MR2018F12A31H » AEB Z EEIRITER
BB BR A= B1.8% (20174 : 1.1% ) « % =
BITERR—FERNDH -

RHMRTERNEREEEZEAAEBERE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

The effective interest rate of the Group’s short-term bank loans
as at December 31, 2018 was 1.8% (2017: 1.1%); these bank
loans are repayable within one year.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank loans are stated
approximately at their fair values.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= 0 E®BrER2XF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

33. ¥%a6t

R20175F - A& B — FH M B 2 8 W BGIOR
Fashion Company Limited ([ GF J) 100%7& %

TERBERNGFHRENEREE RSB
AMEBEMBEFENAAE

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In 2017, a subsidiary of the Group acquired 100% interests in
GIOR Fashion Company Limited (“GF”).

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for GF and
the fair value of net assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

(U BEFTHENT) (In HK$ million)
REALEHE Total consideration 9
WEBEE2EEFHE: Net assets acquired:
E Ty Property, plant and equipment 5
58 Inventories 9
JE U B SR B2 CEL A R Trade and other receivables 7
REe RBITHEH Cash and bank balances 5
JE 1< B 3R B E b ST R Trade and other payables (13)
13
=B 2 W (M ate) Gain on bargain purchase (Note 6) (4)
9
WE—EHEB ARSI Bz Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect
ReERHBFED W of the acquisition of a subsidiary:
ERReRE Cash consideration paid 9)
FriE 2 I(RITHEGFE RR 2 Bank balances and cash acquired 5
Wi —HEBABs B Analysis of the net cash outflow from acquisition
WEREFHREZ DN of a subsidiary (4)

WEEFTE £ M E B 41288 Tt A 2017
FI2AMHAHFERTNITHER -

HEWRBREANEETETHERERR
REEMKBEEFEZIEZRE -

B W - GF & Ri4,0004 % 7T i & 88 &2 600
AT -

R EGFE2017F1A1B BB A HF AR &
2017F12A3 HMAHFBEROEERE B
#06,6008 7 7T & i F 3 h01,0008 7% 7t -

154 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Acquisition-related costs approximately HK$120,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The gain on bargain purchase was the variance between the
consideration and the net asset value acquired after commercial
negotiation with the vendor.

GF contributed HK$40 million sales and HK$6 million profit since
acquisition.

Had GF been consolidated from January 1, 2017, the
consolidated income statement for the year ended December
31, 2017 would show an increase in sales of HK$66 million and
profit of HK$10 million.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

34. EiE
KREHE 2 &IE
(@) M2018%F12A31H  "REBMEE L
WM AERER Z AR KRB
ZIREHENRKEMEEEROT

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

34. COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating leases

(@)

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, office premises
and warehouses as set out below:

(X BEEETREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017

1R Within one year 634 632
16 £ {B5F K After one year but within

five years 603 652

5% A F Over five years 10 19

1,247 1,303

REVEADEESTRABRGN B
EEAMEREEE - ETATZE
LHEHS IREBEFKERZEZ I
HERFHE 2B UURSERE) -
bt AESREERERESTE -

(b) 20184 12A31H  AEBRZTE /L
FEDVE S/NEA NI N N - =B <
HEMZEEKASKRANDT

The operating leases contracts have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. The operating lease
rentals of certain outlets are based on the higher of a
minimum guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental.
The minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the above commitments.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and office
premises as set out below:

(X B EETHREN) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
1F R Within one year 15 15
1 12 {B5F N After one year but within
five years 28 38
59 A+ Over five years 3 9
46 62
35. EARKIE 35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

20184 20179128318 » AEEWES
RNEARBEWHEEE RAEERAERME
2B A EHE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
respect of leasehold

capital commitments in
furniture and fixtures.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

36. METHELEZEEHRE 36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TERAMANEBRAREZHNEEZS - The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
PEAERIIFRSEH  METDMEED from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
BEDRBESREME AAKRBREREH changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
REBEZEVBHRETDERMETEM which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
EENBERE - the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

MEEKEE

Liabilities from

financing

activities

BRHEALR

—FEZER

Borrowing due

(UK FEETHEEN) (In HK$ million) within 1 year

R2017E1 1B 2 F &K Net debt as at 1 January 2017 (298)

ReEmE Cash flows —

R2017512 8318 2 B & 1% Net debt as at 31 December 2017 (298)

BERE Cash flows —

R2018F 128318 2 F & Net debt as at 31 December 2018 (298)

BEEFEBALIRS 37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BB A TR ERSBEEENS 7 &

EHMBREERERHES —FHTEERKR

FENZANLT - HAZMAZEHRZMAE
FENZANTNTARBEBEBAL -

= XEBERL

7

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control or common significant

influence.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. EEEBALRZ (&)

(@) EEBALZXS
RAFER ETHBEARR KK
AEEGBEESEZRRETLIRER
EERZH BREZEXSFHMMT

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties

During the vyear, certain subsidiaries traded with joint
ventures in the ordinary and usual course of business on
normal commercial terms. Details relating to these
transactions are as follows:

(X B EETHENT) (In HK$ million) 2018 2017
HEFT—HAERA Sales to a joint venture 156 141
KEBEE QT Purchases from joint ventures 1 2
RIERAR Rovyalty income from

—MEE AT a joint venture 27 31

(b) EHEFEE A L+ =48k
P12 A318 fE UK BE B A 508 -

(U BEETREM)

(b)

Balances with related parties

Amounts due from these related parties at December 31
are:

(In HK$ million) 2018 2017

fEW A & RBIRIA

Amounts due from
joint ventures 14 6

MR2018512 8318 » b it & Y B8 Bt A
T FRIEE I M E E UK R 3R R E At FE Uk
R ERFEY AEKF RO NA

(c) EEEEEHRM

FMERTESHRERTEEEE
WENMESE N FHWMERMFE10RH
BoHMIZERERNOMSLOT

(c)

As at December 31, 2018, the above amounts due from
related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables.
The receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest
and are repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

Executive Directors are considered as key management
and their emoluments have been disclosed in Note 10 to
the financial statements. The emoluments payable to other
key management are as follows:

(BB TFTRE ) (In HK$’000) 2018 2017
EXFHFa2 R Basic salaries and
Hoth W 5 Other Benefits 10,459 9,519
BRIRSETEIH R Contribution to pension
schemes 146 116
B 15 M TE AL Discretionary bonuses 5,193 6,416
15,798 16,051

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F #
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

38. HARAEE 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
M20184F 2017412 83180 » AREE W & (T As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
AERKIABLE - significant contingent liabilities.
30. FEMBEA T 39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
ARARIR2018F12A31H 2 E BB R AN The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the
N Company as at December 31, 2018:
BERGZ ERTR2EBE
BERES=E BRA/ZMER/MHEER
Effective Issued and fully paid TEEE/CE N E
MELQRERE R 3 i B per(.:entage. of share (fapital/register.'ed Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation equity holding capital/quota capital g, pation
2018 2017
BEHRERAR" B 100 100 3,000,000/ KETENDHERER
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 R#EB&/ &5
Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong
East Jean Limited* &5 100 100 1,000,000 7T KEATEREREMAR
Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 aE
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Taiwan
GIO Fashions W.L.L.* RER 40 40 200,000 R HBMETR KETEREREHAR
State of Qatar QAR200,000 RIER
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Qatar
GIOR Fashion Company Limited* #i 7 60 60 26,000,000,0008FE KETEREREMA®R,
Vietnam VND$26,000,000,000 7
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Vietnam
Giordano (Australia) Pty. Limited* & i 92.8 92.8 700,000 70 HETERELELEMAR
Australia AUD700,000 &
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Australia
Giordano Fashions L.L.C.* o] Bt 2 49 49 3,000,000/ Bt G 18 METEREREMAR
UAE AED 3,000,000 ] Btk B
Retail of apparel and
accessories/UAE
Giordano Fashions Co. W.L.L.*  RlE 4% 40 40 300,000R £ ME KETERERREBAR
State of Kuwait KWD300,000 Rtk
Retail of apparel and
accessories/State of Kuwait
158 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MEQRBR

Name of subsidiary

R 37 it BE

Place of incorporation

B35 R Ak B EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BERGZ BITRZEHBE
BERBESE BRA/EME A/ EE R
Effective Issued and fully paid

percentage of
equity holding

share capital/registered
capital/quota capital

2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FTEEB/KEWE
Principal activities/place of
operation

ENRBRAF

Giordano Limited*

Giordano (Thai) Co., Ltd.*

Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd.

ERURFIAR R T

Giordano (Macau) Limited*

Giordano Middle East FZE*

Giordano Originals (Singapore)

Private Limited

Giordano Vietnam Limited*

Giordano (Cambodia) Enterprises

Limited*

PT. Giordano Indonesia*

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 #

=it

N
Hong Kong

=
Thailand

52RE
Malaysia

R P
Macau

Figees — HF
Dubai — UAE

A0

Singapore

5B
Hong Kong

ESEES

Cambodia

ENfe
Indonesia

2018

100

100

100

100

100

100

60

80

40

2017
100 5,000,000 7T
HK$5,000,000

100 10,000,000% £k
Baht10,000,000

100 500,000 K A E S H
RM500,000

100 50,0004 F9 &
MOP50,000

98 1,000,0000 B4 B 38 1 4
AED1,000,000

100 1,900,00237 11 4% 7T
SGD1,900,002

60 802,000% 7T
USD802,000

80 4,000,000 1 2E B F
KHR$4,000,000

40 2,500,000,000E1 B /&

IDR2,500,000,000

HEZERDHRER
RWAR/ B

Retail and distribution of
apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong

CRTERENEBEAR,
R

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Thailand

CETEREREMA®R,
5 2R P8

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Malaysia

@ A
RE2TE

BT
Retail of apparel and
accessories/Macau

MREREMAR,

EEDEREREEASR,
FEsi g — 7

Distribution of apparel and
accessories/Dubai — UAE

KETEREHMER
B & 37 03K

Retailing and trading of apparel
and accessories/Singapore

BRERR/EE

Investment holding/Hong Kong

KETEREREMAR
® iﬁ =

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Cambodia

KETERE EMBARR
HEMESR/DE

Retail of apparel, accessories
and related products/
Indonesia

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2018F12H31H
December 31, 2018

39. TEME AT (F)

MEQRBR

Name of subsidiary

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

B 3L i B

Place of incorporation

BERGZ ERTR2EHR
BERESE BRA/EME A/ P FEE
Effective Issued and fully paid

percentage of
equity holding

share capital/registered
capital/quota capital

FTEEB/KEWE
Principal activities/place of
operation

RINFEBBKRBRAF
Shenzhen Tiger Garment Ltd.™

RBEEBRAR

Tiger Enterprises Limited

Textile and Ready Garments Co.
Ltd.”

Walton International Ltd.*

Wit
© SEEALE
C EMEBAZHBAT

40. BAIEHER 2 E

A o

PEARLRM
People’s Republic of China

i
Hong Kong

DERRAE
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

HERS

Cayman Islands

40.
K BBRDN2019F3A7TEEE ST it

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

= A X EBERLS

2018

100

100

75

100

Notes:
#

2017
100 210,100,0007C A R &
RMB210,100,000
100 60,001,000/ 7T
HK$60,001,000
75 27,000,000 8 T5
SR27,000,000
100 1025 7T

usb102

A foreign owned enterprise
Subsidiaries held indirectly

REER HERBEERER
Fe 48 A @ /o B K B

Investment holding,
manufacturing and retailing of
apparel and accessories/
Mainland China

BEER KXEHR
RUEE R, E A
Investment holding, trading of

garment products and
provision of management
services/Mainland China

HEZEREREMA M
V@ s EVRZES

Retail of apparel and
accessories/Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

HREEEMNEFE
Licensing of trademarks/Hong
Kong

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board on March 7,

2019.
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MR2011F6 A9 » AR A 4% 1 E 7A20024F1 524 H
R 2 BER AT B ([2002F BE A #E =2 ]) - W
B B £ 40 37 s I 5t 8l (R20129F5 H22H 548 5T)
([coMMFHERETE]) - RNEm B HE - T30

0MFREEETE EFARNBEAEAAERS
HEERRL TOROBEE  AREBEZERE
AR X R IERRBARRBRD - BE200245F
BREFTEICEER  ERZBREEHPAE
BHZBRE REBTEIEEAERIRAT TT
- YESSTEIDAEBETERNRER-

20024 & B HE AT 8 2011 IR IR i AT &) 2 = B 1%
AFET

1) BH
ZEHEEESB L ERHE ANEEEL T B
HEAIEHERBI 2B EAERSEHE -

(2) EERSEHSA

i) @ FTANEFHHREZTESF(THe

WMITEIEENTT BT B IE

WITES) EENBRESZZE
B(TmatBaER) =%

(o) HEERAZEMA
i B8 70 7R £= BUE AT B B A {42
PR R o e 12 BB R ) 2 AR )
NGRS
(i) FAAEEEAKEREMERER

X AE Al 2 A B R ) R B P 8 1T 2 A
MESZFHAAN K
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BREER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its share option scheme
adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (as amended on May 22, 2012)
(the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) on the same date. No options may
be and have been granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme after
the expiry date. Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Directors
may, at their discretion, grant to any eligible participants (as defined
below) share options to subscribe for the Company’ s shares, subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Notwithstanding the
expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the share options which had
been granted during the life of the scheme shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other
respects its provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

A summary of the principal terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and 2011 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible participants.

(2) Eligible participants
0 (a

any Director or proposed Director (whether executive
or non-executive, including any independent non-
executive Director), employee or proposed employee

(whether full time or part time) of, or
(b)  any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

3)

(i) ANEE AL IR 8 S AR R A IR 3 i
ER R G 2 E R AR

(@) (EAIEBRAENH - NER -
AR REIRE

b) ERALHELREHFE  ER
S HAM XM SR KL - B
M- BXRAEHMBRE

) EREmIMHHEER
(d EREP =

e FEREXZREXR(EESHEMR
&)
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(3)

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
a company controlled by a controlling shareholder;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,
(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2011 Share Option Scheme, shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of the
above classes of eligible participants.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the schemes

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all share options to be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the respective dates of
approval of each of the schemes. The 10% limit may be
refreshed with the approval of the Company’ s shareholders.
Following the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no
further share options can be granted thereunder.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

As at March 7, 2019, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is 133,304,000
shares (representing approximately 8.44% of the shares in issue)
and a total of 2,724,000 and 148,190,000 shares (representing
approximately 0.17% and 9.39%, respectively, of the shares in
issue) may be issued upon exercise of all options which had
been granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme, respectively.
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Maximum entitlement of each eligible participants

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted or to be granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Company’s shares in issue unless the same is approved by the
Company’s shareholders in general meeting.

In addition, any share options to a substantial shareholder and/or
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or any of
their respective associates, and where the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted or
to be granted to such person in any 12-month period exceed
0.1% of the Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the shares on the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, are subject to the Company’s
shareholders’ approval in general meeting.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised under the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2011 Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period commencing on such date on or after the date
on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such
date as the directors may determine in granting the option but in
any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

As determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

Acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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C)

(9)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board which shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date when an
option is offered;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date on which an option is
offered; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

The remaining life of the schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated on June 9,
2011. No further options shall thereafter be offered under the
2002 Share Option Scheme but the options which had been
granted during its life shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other respects
the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption until June 8, 2021.
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of share options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and 2011 Share Option Scheme during the year ended December 31,

™~ 2018 are set out below:
20025 fE IR ST &
2002 Share Option Scheme
BREXA
Number of share options
RER RER RER RER &k
20185 R i X% it 20185 ke
1A18 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 12531H Exercise
FERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TEHR
Eligible participants 11112018 the year the year the year the year 12/31/2018 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (/8% (B/8/%)
HKS  MMDDYYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
ERANER 872,000 - 226,000° 646,000 - - 3520 07/30/2008 10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
Continuous 676,000 - 284,000° 392,000 - - 3.840 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
Contract 596,000 - 52,0007 544,000 - - 4160 07/30/2008  10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
Employees 700,000 - 500,000 - - 200,000 3.340 07/07/2010  03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
2,700,000 - 176,000 - - 2,524,000 3.340 07/07/2010  08/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
st
Total 5,544,000 - 1,238,000 1,582,000 - 2,724,000
2011 F B R REST 28I
2011 Share Option Scheme
BREHE
Number of share options
RER RER RER RER 5k
20185 R ffe X% i 20185 iR
1A1A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 125318 Exercise
RERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TEHR
Eligible participants 111/2018 the year the year the year the year 12/31/2018 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (A/8/%) (B/8/%)
HKS  (MWDD/YYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
Bz
Directors
REg 400,000 - - - - 400,000 5.200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - - 600,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 5200 10072011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
100,000 - - - - 100,000 5.000 03/24/2014  08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
150,000 - - - - 150,000 5.000 03/24/2014  08/04/2016 - 03/28/2024
200,000 - - - - 200,000 5000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
250,000 - - - - 260,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000 03/24/2014 Bi & Note - 03/23/2024
1,366,000 - - - - 1,366,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
1,666,000 - - - - 1,666,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
1,668,000 - - - - 1,668,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
7,700,000 - - - - 7,700,000
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EREZ2SE (&) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
20115 iE R RE =1 81 ()
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)
BREHE
Number of share options
RER RER RER RER gl
R2018E R e 3 i 20185 iR
1A1A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 128318 Exercise
RERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TEHR
Eligible participants 111/2018 the year the year the year the year 12/31/2018 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
&t (A//%) (A/B/%)
HKS  (MmDDYYYY) MWOD/YYYY)
EZ(8)
Directors (continued)
B2YX 200,000 - - - - 200,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
Mark Alan LOYND 300,000 - - - - 300,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
400,000 - - - - 400,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
500,000 - - - - 500,000 5.000 03/24/2014  08/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
600,000 - - - - 600,000 5.000 03/24/2014 Bi & Note - 03/23/2024
64,000 - - - - 64,000 3.792 04/09/2015  08/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
1,332,000 - - - - 1,332,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
1,336,000 - - - - 1,336,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
6,064,000 - - - - 6,064,000
BRANES 2,600,000 - - - - 2,600,000 5200 10007/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Continuous 4,740,000 - - - - 4,740,000 5.200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
Contract Employess 11,850,000 - - - - 11,850,000 5.200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
422,000 - - 20,000 - 402,000 5.380 06/12/2012  03/01/2013 - 12/31/2021
2,720,000 - - 400,000 - 2,320,000 7.650 041102013 02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
4,340,000 - - 134,000 - 4,206,000 5.000 08/24/2014  08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
6,478,000 - - 200,000 - 6,278,000 5000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
8,706,000 - - 270,000 - 8,436,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
10,934,000 - - 314,000 26,000 10,594,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
13,072,000 - - - 406,000 12,666,000 5.000 03/24/2014 i3 Note - 03/23/2024
4,906,000 - 806,000* 218,000 - 3,882,000 3792 04/09/2015  08/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
5,414,000 - 548,000* 222,000 - 4,644,000 379 04/09/2015  08/10/2017 - 03/31/2025
500,000 - 250,000* - - 250,000 4,090 07102015 08/04/2016 - 06/30/2025
500,000 - 250,000* - - 250,000 4,090 0710/2015  03/10/2017 - 06/30/2025
1,164,000 - - 222,000 - 942,000 4.340 0919/2016  03/10/2017 - 06/30/2026
1,168,000 - - - 222,000 946,000 4.340 0919/2016  03/09/2018 - 06/30/2026
14,964,000 - 2,342,000 652,000 - 11,970,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
16,598,000 - 2,812,000 570,000 88,000 13,128,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
17,894,000 - - 140,000 1,244,000 16,510,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
2,890,000 - - 66,000 - 2,824,000 4,050 06/09/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
2,890,000 - - 66,000 - 2,824,000 4,050 06/09/2017  03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
2,920,000 - - - 68,000 2,852,000 4,050 06/09/2017  08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
137,670,000 - 7,008,000 3,494,000 2,064,000 125,114,000

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EREZ2SE (&) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
20115F fE R RE =1 81 ()
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)
BRE%A
Number of share options
RER RER RER RER i
R2018% R i X% HH# R2018% iR
1A1A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 125318 Exercise
RERSHE As at during during during during As at price REAH TEHR
Eligible participants 111/2018 the year the year the year the year 12/31/2018 per share  Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (A/8/F) (A/8/%)
HKS — MWDD/YYYY) (MWDD/YYYY)
2t 340,000 - - - - 340,000 5.200 10/07/2011  03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - - 720,000 5200 10/07/2011  03/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000 5.200 10/07/2011  02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
510,000 - - - - 510,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
758,000 - - - - 758,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - - - 1,020,000 5.000 03/24/2014  03/10/2017 - 03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - - - 1,282,000 5.000 03/24/2014  08/09/2018 - 03/23/2024
1,530,000 - - - - 1,530,000 5.000 03/24/2014 BY & Note - 03/23/2024
944,000 - 66,000 16,000 662,000 200,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/11/2017 - 12/31/2025
944,000 - 66,000* - 612,000 266,000 4180 01/06/2017  03/09/2018 - 12/31/2025
962,000 - - - 526,000 436,000 4180 01/06/2017  08/10/2018 - 12/31/2025
12,010,000 - 132,000 16,000 1,800,000 10,062,000
4t
Total 163,444,000 - 7,140,000 3,510,000 3,854,000 148,940,000
Kiit: 2018F 2 FEENHEH Note: the day after 2018 final results announcement
Bat - Remarks:
© REEBRESGTEHBTZROMEFGKTEZ © The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the respective
% /84.68% T ° exercise date of the options was HK$4.68.
* REEBRESGTEHBTZROMEFGKTEZ ¢ The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the respective
7 /184,848 L ° exercise date of the options was HK$4.84.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 167
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IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting
May 24, 2019

Dividends

Interim Dividend

Paid on

Proposed Final Dividend
Payable on

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange
Bloomberg
Reuters

May 20, 2019 to May 24, 2019
(both days inclusive)

June 4, 2019 to June 6, 2019
(both days inclusive)

17.0 HK cents per share
September 21, 2018
16.5 HK cents per share
June 21, 2019

709
709 HK
0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

e-malil : investorrelations@giordano.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Welcome to the 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance (the
“ESG”) Report of Giordano International Limited (“Giordano”),
which updates our latest initiatives and achievements with
respect to sustainability. As you may be aware, ‘World Without
Strangers’ has been Giordano’s credo since inception and
reflects our vision to create a sense of familiarity, regardless of
ethnicity, nationality or culture, which transcends throughout our
operations and management.

Giordano has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social
Responsibility policy statement in 2005. Since then, we have
continued to focus on “doing well by doing good” in order to
make a positive impact in the communities where we do
business, paying particular attention to stakeholder relations,
community involvement and environmental protection.

With the onset of enhanced compliance requirements set by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx”) on ESG
Reports and growing demand for corporate disclosure from
stakeholders in general, this Report primarily addresses our
approach and performance against ESG metrics, including the
impact that we are making on the environment and the
communities, the way we deliver responsible products and
exceptional service to our customers in a fair and transparent
manner, how we invest in our employees’ development and
foster an inclusive and supportive working environment, as well
as our framework to develop strong governance, effective risk
management systems and robust controls.

Reporting Standard and Scope

Prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide of the
HKEX, this Report provides an annual update of Giordano’s ESG
performance for the year of 2018, which covers our operations in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore
(collectively, the “Reporting Markets”), which contributed
towards over 63% of Giordano’s sales in 2017 excluding shops
operated by our franchisees and licensees. There are no
significant changes in the reporting scope of this Report from
that of the last one in 2017. This Report is in compliance with
the “comply or explain” provisions, which also reports on
selected “recommended disclosures” of the HKEx's ESG
Reporting Guide. A detailed References to “HKEx ESG
Reporting Guide” has been included at the back of this Report
to aid readers and facilitate greater transparency.

Undoubtedly, stakeholders’ engagement is an integral part of
Giordano’s business development and commitment to global
sustainable development. Thus, in the preparation of this Report,
we have continued to proactively engage our key stakeholders
(including our staff representatives, our core suppliers as well as
our customers) who play a critical role in our business
development. Stakeholders’ input, obtained via questionnaires,
has provided us with a comprehensive assessment of the key
performance indicators (the “KPIs”) with respect to ESG issues
and helped us to identify the priorities of our key stakeholders,
which consequently strengthens the coverage of this Report.
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BRI E R MR
CARING FOR OUR ENVIRONMENT

BORFNEEURD B

RIEEHEAL :

Environmental Aspect A1 : Minimized Emissions
through Green-Minded Operations

(1) At Giordano, we seek to ensure that our business operations
are environmentally friendly, making every effort to reduce
waste and emissions from every aspect of our business
activities, from production at our suppliers through to our
own business operations.

(2) We believe that our business activities and the facilities of our
overall operations comply with the relevant laws and
regulations on environmental protection.

M EEAR BABNEREESESRRES - HM
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ME N BRI ERERME D HEFEELR  KER -
MRRBEME - R BBER RERRBERSE -

Environmental Aspect A2 : Conserving Resources

(1) In active alignment with the Hong Kong governmental policy
of reducing “carbon footprint”, we are committed to
reducing carbon emissions and protecting and sustaining the
environment through efficient use of resources and reduced

o consumption of electrical power, water, paper and raw
materials by:
o FEBRFH LFMATHENBREE ¢ incorporating sustainable environmental practices into our

business principles;

using resources wisely and efficiently, such as cutting the
volume of raw materials and packaging consumed;

. PRMARILERER
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reducing waste generation within our operations;

e promoting environmental protection, via supply chain
management and smart shop operations; and

e promoting environmental awareness among our customers

%%’J Hb/

HRENHERERENSREESR
HOMBAETMEFEIRER T UATSEELEE
=R IR W M 1R O

and business associates.

Saving Energy

As electricity consumption is the biggest contributor to our
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, various energy saving and
efficiency measures have been undertaken in most of our office
premises and shops:

ERENTE HMEKR
R

%
&
it

i #4) 8 )R 35 & Energy-Saving Initiatives

Air-conditioning

LS H20085F#E - KEERA/E T EHE AR
Lighting A group-wide initiative to convert lighting in all shops to energy-saving lights commenced since 2008
ERAEL NEEAENHBAERABMRKLERARS

Replace chilled water air-conditioning with more efficient split-type air-conditioners

48 R 22 T8 F A O R A B R
Shorten the operating time of air-conditioning

HRERTHIREAE25-26T

Maintain an average indoor temperature of 25-26T

EHEEEE LRSS REEY

Maintain and repair air-conditioners regularly for better performance

2018 ESG R t
ESG.2 .. o

RE HERERBES

b e a s allhs A




GIORDANO
(2 ARFEIEEENRE  HMObEEEEERNR

(i)

E&T’EEJJI%{%°E%E’$5RSJ?\E'J A B E

" HMEER REBRNBERBR  EFGEER
EW-&N& TR - RS ERERE - @I
WE AR D B E L

o EMADEMEMRUEOMKERMER:
o TEMRBKER URREETAHKE

e REMELKLER] EREFXE:

e BEIREEARKERREQFNHEKER

o [ R FHYAROR

e BIREMMOUARM :

s BERBAEHNRE R

e BEHBRRBERBA/IUPE-

=R N

MHFEHNEBEEZFHIEN BTHMAT —
REE ERRMEEEETMNEBEMIRAIAKR
—EERFNELREHR -EARERRE  HE
SENMRERFEITIAZZEZRZLNEME RMAS
SBEIARARELZ —9h TEIFEBERRR
B 2010F K MEBTBEMK LN [ZEEMEK]E
RHEP-EARFNHF BBEEFRBPPANKE -
HEAZLEHEE BAREBEBEFT - HN &
EJRHEITA TG  UMBNREE IR2EGETT

& :

EI/EFERATDNEBERMZE TEBWR]
kg EREM
S B ETNMMBE-—ERREBRNIER

Ay

&. Ll
RILEZERREH  BM
MG.Link& 201812 A i
MBS TR B EZEEAR

bl

TR AREW 7
5 Hadd: ARNOTETLNENIN .

To strengthen green
EFnEaN

awareness, our G.Link Club NERLAE

started sharing GREEN

news from December 2018
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(2) Striving to create shareholders’ value, we are also concerned

(i)
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with the conservation of ecological resources and driving
environmental protection. Based on the 5Rs principle — to
Replace, Reduce, Reuse, Recover and Recycle — Giordano
spares no effort to cut down on the use of resources,
recycle materials, as well as to reduce the generation of
waste by implementing different practices internally:

e displaying notices and posters of water conservation at
offices and shops;

e inspecting taps
promptly;

e promoting the concept of “paperless meetings” with the
use of electronic copies of documents;

regularly and repairing any dripping

e pre-setting printers for double-sided and black-and-white
printing;

* recycling used paper;

® reusing and recycling carton boxes;

e reusing shop furniture; and

® reusing plastic packaging bags as bin bags.

Going Green at Work

Faced with the increasing threat to the environment over the
years, all of us undoubtedly owe a duty and responsibility to
make Mother Earth a cleaner and safer place to live in for
ourselves and for future generations. Acting in a socially and
environmentally responsible way is more than just a legal
duty, and here at Giordano, we encourage our staff to adopt
environmentally responsible behavior and promote
environmental protection in the workplace. The “Green
Team” set up in our Hong Kong Headquarters in 2010 is a
vivid example, which brings together representatives from
different departments to initiate programs for promoting low
carbon living. Moreover, to inspire and encourage staff’s
green actions, we have also launched the following initiatives:

“Tips for greening our workplace” and GREEN
news posted at office and Company’s Intranet

- guiding staff to create a
environment.

low-carbon working
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(i) EPEAETIREARLOEFTLE]
(2017)

> BESIREAS BROMNEIFBE
BIRR ©

(i) B2 EBMUENRAREELE]
(2017-2018)
S SRETERHEKELTHERENEK
B ESNEREUSERREE -

EEEBREQBREHNORE L HMARRET
MBERRNIXKHEREE - MN2017F12A R
MTE2EEUENRRBELE| SABREES
AESREZEERFN TR & (ERERA
B HEEREEH

RIEZBeHFAFHRAERZHTIHENRR
BER BRAMAER  SKERKRIINECEEZZR
ROBEANT=ZERAERAMANNES (KR
XNRXEFRIERFHE)

(i) “Eco-Office Contest” held in Mainland China (2017)

- drawing staff’s ideas on how to be eco-friendly in the office
creatively.

(i) Group-Wide “Green Awareness Contest” (2017-2018)

- motivating staff’s commitment towards sustainability in
business operations and supporting Giordano in achieving
its sustainability goals.

Recognizing that our staff’s valued opinions and support are of
paramount importance to the critical challenge we face in reducing
corporate carbon footprint, a group-wide “Green Awareness Contest”
was held in December 2017, through which staff were encouraged to
suggest (i) green practices that we can adopt to be more
environmentally-friendly or (i) green ideas on promoting environmental
awareness within the Group.

After a thorough review of all green proposals submitted from various
markets around the world, we are pleased to announce that the
following 3 green proposals out of 7 entries were chosen by the
selection panel as the top 3 most practical and innovative suggestions
(in alphabetical order):

HBERAXBENBRRESH AMOABSLTEBRRIE

Colg atulations

(BELEFERD LHEBBTIBRAPBAETLE] FIEﬁEEEtI:%J:
£%o

In pursuit of excellence in environmentally-friendly practlcesI
during our daily business operations, we (i) issued “Tips to
Green the Workplace” and GREEN news; and (ii) kicked off the !
“Eco-Office Contest” and “Green Awareness Contest” etc.

Energy
Conservation

YD
Waste
Reduction

EHHE2H
Awareness &
Engagement

Rt T/ER
Greenest
Workplace

# % — Recommendation 1

ERE Y
Collection of Used Clothes for Charity

BEILERREANTDEGE YA RER A2

by the team of Human Resources Dept. and Finance Dept. (Taiwan’s northern office)

BB Action

B IR - KB IE K
Save the Earth by Donating Used Clothes

REFERMBIRANRRERNER

(R)WRTT - RN BB - RERF - B EH
fHESEE-

In response to the environmental protection initiatives driven by the World Earth Day, our
Taiwan Team has continually rolled out functions encouraging staff’s donation of second-
hand winter clothes and toys (80% new) to the communities. Not only would it protect our
environment by finding new owners in need, but also helped the disadvantaged, via Taitung
Food Bank, with our warmest love. Going ahead, it is planned to extend these charitable
activities to our customers at shops, inviting them to join hands for the public.

EWIR-_FHEEEEY
FOKI)ZREITA - R TRR 7%%2?5?&%&%/\ 2K
&té?ﬁ&?ﬂ@zﬁﬂ’ﬁﬂm%ﬂf‘ B

HEARBBNRES RN AMRE
—ARE(R)YWRTHIE ABRH R
Appreciation posted on the official

website of the Taitung County
Government — with a Thank You Letter
from the Taitung Food Bank.
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##% — Recommendation 2 #% = Recommendation 3

RESUBAENZEEREEREZRFHE
Herbal Air Freshener at Giordano’s Offices and
Retail Outlets

ZFE %4 & Chamaiporn Injan (King) #2558 49 #
by Chamaiporn Injan (King), Shop-in-charge (Thailand)

B BR %= SRR H
BRTEAXRBREERIN  REGEOESXRSEEHTER
EREZE 324X BETETRENEYESR -

Refreshing Air Everywhere

In addition to placing
perfume sachets in the
fitting rooms, our Thai
Team used organic spray
to refresh our shops 3 to
4 times a day, impressing
customers with the best
shopping experience.

e ZHIRRITH .
H2018F  ERNBAEHE N2 E T ZHEED
WEERR VRS EIRAEAITHIERR
MEZ B

(i) A= @ K1TE (2-3/2018)
A A2018%F - BB RMERFASFHIIT
CSRIEH ' #EXHHBATHNEA DK
MEH ARETWANEE EFEHN
#ﬂ#’&*ﬂ%%ﬁ AUy & B8 T E A2 EH o B
BRENNEHEGERDBR KR
F%ﬁiﬂa ﬂ REBERELTR -

(i) &ERKDETHFHTH (13/4/2018)
[RE-THINKE 2 £ ] 5/ EZ L KNGO
RRALE FUFHEFANERRRE MK
M AR Rk A &% E
RE-THINK#ESE & BB AL7TA - BEEATED
BEHBRTERES  LEKSE

(iii) & ffiigfiﬁ‘}’éib (19/5/2018)
FBCEBFRARERT O (H_/x}i}iJ)

EERRBEADME NS FE KRR
B DS HHE o AR E %E@H%L&

- . (a) Accessories (e.g. motifs, head wears, pockets in garments,

BmBERR:
(@) B# (PINER Heh RIROR-KRFB8F) 5 H
(b) UTERR — BREBFEERIIZZHENRRER  BHH
RAREH - FFERIES -

Use of Fabric Scraps for:

(b) A new line of eco-products of an eco-brand like “Giordano
Eco-Lifestyle”, delivering patchwork for accessories, jeans
collections etc.

BB EE R DA ERASHEE Amy Chung FEX B #%
by Amy Chung, Legal & Corporate Governance Manager (Hong Kong
Headquarters)

Engagement in Green Activities

During the year of 2018, Giordano also arranged and participated in
a number of events to advocate environmental protection and raise
the environmental awareness of our staff and the communities at
large, including:

(i) Lai See Packet Collection Campaign (2-3/2018)

Stepping into 2018, our Hong Kong Headquarters kicked off its
annual regular Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) event with
continuous support to the Greeners Action’s campaign to renew
used Lai See packets. With the enthusiastic response from our
staff, over 1,000 Lai See packets were collected from our offices
and shops in Hong Kong, which were then further distributed to
the public for free after processing.

(i) Shalun Beach Clean-Up in Tamsui, Taiwan (13/4/2018)

“RE-THINK”, a well-known non-government environmental
organization in Taiwan, often organizes beach clean-up to
protect the environment. In response to the World Earth Day, 57
participants from our Taiwan Team cleaned up Shalun Beach
under the lead of RE-THINK.

(iiilBeach Clean-Up in Tianjin, China (19/5/2018)

In cooperation with Shanghai Rendu Ocean NPO Development
Center, currently the only community organization in Mainland
China focusing on marine debris, our Mainland China Team and

%/\5511 /x/i FEER IE EEaEs their families joined hands in cleaning up Gaoshaling Beach in
ﬂiﬂi = AN=T- Tianjin. They also created hand-painted graffiti on the theme of
k their ideal beautiful ocean in future, to deliver the important
message of preserving the ocean.
FEXRZE
Tianjin, China

2018 ESG Report
- HEREAREE [O0-

'S ;&LL—,‘L J



GIORDANO

(iv) Bl = 52 KR8 F 85 5
Beach Clean-Up in Sanya Dadonghai,
China (8/6/2018)

ZE[2018FHERABFAELEEBFEER] £
ARTBEEGMNESSEFREHSETAIE
E=DARBETFHETY REHEFREN
BT o

In response to 2018 World Oceans Day cum
National Ocean Promotion Day, our Mainland
China Team partnered with Blue Ribbon Ocean
Conservation Society to clean up Dadonghai in
Sanya, showing our concerns on marine
preservation.

WIBFREIRFFEED
Parent-Child Hand-Painted Kites (11/6/2018)

ERRAEEGERFLXUANEF]IRE  ERE FF8 - UEHRE
FERIRRARGFEY -

To promote the message of protecting the marine ecological
environment and marine life, our Mainland China Team and their
children hand-painted kites on the theme of “the Ocean”.

Vi) [ RE 2R IFMES Z ik
Walking with Nature (5-8/9/2018)

12 PR AR B A b [ K DA BE AR OB RS 18 AR I AL 48 KO B A AR
NERBR ETPIMELZIK MEARTLESRRESE
RRIRIF ARG EEFHRD o

Our Mainland China Team had a nature walk at the Yantian
Haibing Avenue and the Shenzhen Mangrove Seashore
Ecological Park, showing our determination on environmental
protection and undertaking the green life.

T ) A EEH 2018
ain%fﬁiﬁﬂi;!l IB'HKI
g

(Vi EBEREFRBRED
International Coastal Clean-Up in Hong Kong
(15/9/2018)

ER BB AERRRARARETENEF &
SELDDHETRT16ATE TR - EPFRIEE -
Big RE EERARAERE - BMERET
BE—BLTRRELES ERBEBMNMAESHR —K
FIBE Ty BENKE -

26 staff and relatives from the Hong Kong
Headquarters joined hands in protecting the ocean in
Hong Kong, cleaning up 1.6 kg of marine debris at
Wu Kai Sha Beach (which included glass shards,
plastic strips, straws and even fish carcasses). In
addition, a total of HK$10,000 was donated to the
Green Council to organize a series of educational
workshops/seminars for Hong Kong students and
teachers.
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ESG6 . uammnmss



GIORDANO

REKBBME

&1
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HEN(AP A RES
Scope 1 (tCO,e)

250

enhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Green Performance Overview

Graph 1
Below is a summary of our environmental performance with respect to
our operations in shops, offices and warehouses in the Reporting
Markets:

RIS
(RS mEE
B—ABATHER)

(tCO,e/HK$1m sales)

Intensity

EoEnE

BEt(BR12) (A _atREE

1
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N X AREHRBEEE
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I mEBENERE KR+ BN+ BENE)

¢ 4R 4 FEE Paper Use : . Non-Hazardous Waste Generation g

®ecsecsessecssesssssscscee® 2. (Paper + Shopping Bags + Packaging Material) .:
@t (ANE) BE(AN/ S EBETHESR) st (A mE) BE(RE,/ S—ABBTHESR)
Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales) Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)

-11.8% -6.2% -6.4%

18 0.00629 Ny 1 6a7 S
0.00535 0.00554 1,612 ’i 0.5143?
2016 2017 2017

2018 2o 2018 2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
:ocoooo...::ooooo.oo.. % Intensity R R R R
CBEYREEE . ON; =208 1o 423 P BYKHEER :

. Packaging_ Material (Tonne/Piece of Finished Product) S Shopping Bag Consumption S
.o,??:‘.s.u.nj?fl.o,ri....”: 2016 2017 2018 ®eccc0ccc0000000000000000000000’
T 0.0000% 0.0000% ©.00004 3 (R ) BE (AW B EMBTHER
2017 =9. Total (Tonne) Intensity (Tonne/HK$1m sales)
@it (AW 2016 oo ° ¥ FFlat
Total (Tonne) 1,196 2018 A&
1,204 % Change m
EREE (DM BREER (D) R (A ) m
Price Tag (Tonne) Plastic Packaging Bag (Tonne) Carton Box (Tonne) 348 m
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 0.108
50 309 319 837 898 399 2017
2017
-4.8% -5.4% \ -5% \ 2018 0.127
Em x| exna 5% N P
49 302 853 2016

B EE - Notes:
1. RERBIHK 1. GHG Emissions
o HRNEBKUE ERWMSOHIEBHRURE e Due to our business nature, the significant air emissions of the Reporting Markets are the

EREEMABLCARHELTKNE D RKE

GHG emissions arising mainly from the use of electricity and fuels derived from fossil

fuels.

e RAERBEMMNEBRE_GLREENHIAZI AR e GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent (in tonnes) and is computed
MEAREBAL)  WRHR : with reference to:

i) BAERRZLEMZES (FIPCCJ)?‘?EE’]((QOOG () the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the
FIPCCHERBEREFLERE) Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC”);

(ii) ﬂia‘ﬂé Fﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂi?ﬂrﬁfﬁ Za?é‘)?&l?ﬁi%?‘%ﬂ (i) the international reporting framework published by the World Resources Institute and
FORERBBTE  DEREHEREEADO KR the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in “The
i*[é’x Greenhouse Gas Protocol : A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”;

(iiy BEAFANTHEBRNHETREERIRE 1%5%% F 2% (iii) the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
RCEBEEY (B FEIRXHEABR)NEERE Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong
HE BB R B B 1% B R 45 48 5| (20105 hR) ) Kong (2010 Edition)” issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

and the Environmental Protection Department in Hong Kong;

(iv) %%%ﬁ’éﬁf‘ﬁ@ﬂ PEBNFRATDKRRMNENE (iv) the sustainability reports of the Hong Kong Electric Company Ltd, the China Light

NAIMFERSE &k and Power Company Ltd and the Companhia de Electricidade de Macau; and

(v) F;”%‘mﬁ%%ﬁﬂ’]%(ﬁﬁﬁ g (v) the data published by the International Energy Agency.

e RITIEXARTEMATUAERBHMNER  HMBRELE e In order to provide a more comprehensive view of our GHG impact, we have further
REBRARARMERAFBEZRERIGEESHEECRE classified the GHG emissions of Giordano into 2 scopes (as below), which are defined in
REZTE  CEREARBELEADMBERFEER & accordance with the international reporting framework published by the World Resources
—SHERARNEBEEREERE S AU TR EHE - Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, as reported in

“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol : A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard”:

() BRI REHERTSEAANEENEREEEL () “Scope 1” covers direct emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by
FURERBHR  EZIRE A R EH MR ERECT the Reporting Markets, arising mainly from fuel used by our own corporate vehicles
BREKMAREERK) (excluding the vehicle fleets of our contractors);

(i) leEmg2) R = FEERT SN EFENIIEE Dol H (i) “Scope 2" covers “energy indirect’ emissions resulting from the generation of
WIBERERBIHR(TEES I EEERAM,/ purchased electricity consumed within the Reporting Markets (excluding electricity
REIHANTEH  HEBWIFEBKM) - consumed in some retail outlets in departmental stores and/or shopping malls where

electricity is not separately charged).
2. EREBUHEE EIREERBELAAWNEZENAEEEY - 2. In view of our business nature, Giordano is not aware of any significant generation of hazardous

waste.
3. —UTEBEAERAMN/NESLYE  ZENRKERE RS 3. Some retail stores operate in shopping malls and/or departmental stores where water supply
WMEAXEBEBEES  WREEBEEHRTAIIT and discharge are controlled by the building management. Thus, the retrieval of the relevant

data is not feasible.

4. ERPREERTISHNBELET YESTERKROME - 4. There is no issue in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose during the daily operations of the
Reporting Markets.

5. MERERESRARERMSEFEETBENERE (TR 5. The amount of paper use is the amount of paper purchased to support the daily operation of

%&Eﬁﬁi%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂ) the Reporting Markets (excluding those of paper shopping bags and packaging material).
6. BYKEREFRAEESRTSBEREHERNKEMER 6. The amount of shopping bags consumed is the amount of paper and plastic shopping bags
BYRAE - purchased for store use in the Reporting Markets.
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Environmental Aspect A3 : Minimizing Impact on
the Environment and Natural Resources for
Sustainable Development

(1) Giordano places great emphasis on protecting the environment
and natural resources. We strive to improve our technical
know-how to minimize negative impact on the environment
during production and operations. We:

e take into account the environmental impact of our activities
and decisions;

e continuously improve the environmental protection
initiatives and strengthen target and responsibility
assessments, environmental protection supervision and
management; and

e strictly control environmental risks.

(2) Giordano follows strict sustainable development practices
throughout its operations, and places environmental
protection as one of its top priorities in the process of supply
chain management. We are concerned with the environmental
risk factors in production, such as emissions and waste
discharge. Thus, in the selection of our suppliers, their
measure of protecting the surrounding environment is one of
our key selection criteria.

(3) Moreover, we introduce green elements into our products. For
example, we use polypropylene as one of the major
components of our G-Warmer thermal base layer collection.
Polypropylene is degradable when exposed to heat and UV
radiation, and is also fully recyclable. For our premium
crossover collection with the outdoor wear brand,
Silvermark by G-Motion, we, starting from 2017, used
fabrics applied with Teflon-EcoElite finish, which is a non-
fluorinated fabric treatment for durable water repellency with
60% of its raw materials being renewably sourced.

(4) Furthermore, in support of environmental protection, we opted
to charge more per plastic shopping bag than that requested
under the Environmental Levy Scheme on Plastic Shopping
Bags of the Government of the HKSAR; that is, from HK$0.5
to HK$1, effective from 1 January 2016, to discourage the
use of plastic bags and to encourage customers to bring
their own bags.

(8) In 2017, Giordano Ladies, one of our premium brands,
created a limited edition eco-friendly two-way shopping bag
for its members, who can redeem it at HK$30 upon any
purchase.
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GIORDANO £ 5 I GIORDANO
EEEXRMMWEL
CARING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES

i N\ |

1) EAEEBEMENRETER  ENNHEE4H (1) As an international apparel retailer, Giordano’s retail network spreads
#® Bt R A RN - & =2018F 128318 - across five continents of the world operating a total of 2,426 shops
KM B2 426 EH  ERMENEHRE as at 31 December 2018, which enables us to deliver our ‘World
WEBIXEEEANERINES EHE Without Strangers’ credo globally. For the Reporting Markets, our
8T headcount reached 4,787 talents as at 31 December 2018, with a
ANBEZEF4,787 A » [L20174F T %4.6% : 4.6% decrease from 2017:

E2 Graph 2 o _
EHRTH K E IS H Talent Distribution by the Reporting Markets

1 B A #tt Mainland China
2016 2017 2018

E# RHF Hong Kong & Macau

2016 2017 2018

2,787 2,535 2,431 1,001 1,003 907

a8

# Taiwan i N3 Singapore

2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018

1,203 1,178 1,116 294 300 270

@ EAREE BRERERY  2BEBEAN  (2) Giordano believes that its long-term success depends on the
B—UKEMNER - Al EFRALRTF R contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As
BENREHFET - HMMEE BOGE" such, Giordano is committed towards treating its staff with fairness
ETFT—OMEBEERES R ZBERME - and respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork and trust as the
EMETRESEREEEEENMNRE foundation of Giordano. We hire on the basis of ability and merit,
WIZBE THEARBEREBBMRBHA - reward and promote on the basis of performance.

BEENMEES L Respecting and Reflecting Diversity

BMARLK N gE—EZ T IIERE 7]  We believe in diversity and endeavor to safeguard a diverse working

BRTERMMNE T4HS environment, which is reflected in the composition of our staff as

demonstrated below:

B3 Graph 3

EEER 2 F®RDH BxETITHhK
Employment Type Distribution Age Distribution Staff Composition by Gender
2B Full-time

| 2016 2017 2018

/N A305% 2016

< 30 years old
2018

2016

3,800 3,598
(71.9%) (71.7%) [((KLD)

#B & # Part-time/Contract 30-505%
\ 2016 2017 2018 \ 30-50 years old

217 (4.5%) 2018

1485 1,418 R
(28.1%) (28.3%) [PXXXD)

K HR508%
> 50 years old
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GIORDANO

(3) 1= & B R (3) Employment Policy
HEFRE— R EFEBCR - B TFMAM<FL A series of policies, handbooks and protocols are in place in
Mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm?ITME—fl D\:E)SZ’&IEEI’J Giordano to help build a workplace where our staff are treated fairly
IRIE T ILIE - M MIe R F 2= = 2R E - and equally, with their rights and interests being protected. These
B include:
(i) EIFMH (i) Staff Handbook
TEHZZXIET% ST A8 B 25 LA Giordano strictly complies with relevant labour laws
¥ REFRT *'_H:% e —H R GIORDANG and regulations. All staff are treated equally, and
17 o fib FIH) T HE  FrENFIE A it their employment, remuneration and promotion will
2 it 1P H’Hi@%f 40 & BT not be affected by their social identities such as
BB E-ER REHF ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age,
Be ~ MEER (A~ BUA B K ok 18 3 sexual orientation, political faction or marital status.

AR L BT 52 28 o
. Y o (ii) Code of Conduct
(i) KESF R Giordano believes that honesty, integrity and

ERREERE  EEMAF fairness are important values, and are crucial to our
TEEMEE 2B MBEI long-term development and success. Thus, the
EREREKIINESL - Code of Conduct has been established to convey
b KETANEYEERE our expected standards of conduct and practices
IEERMUEBIBETHE to all staff, who are required to adhere to the
Al - feim 2R FIE TR highest standards of business and professional
EBMBERBREE  UFR ethics so that we can earn the trust of our
XBEHANEFOEL  EX business partners and customers and grow our
BIFEER - business.
(iii) & RSB BR (iii) Whistle Blowing Policy
REE-MBAR- - FHMZ2H TR To create an open, transparent and safe working environment
5oBBTRIGRE %’@ﬁ? CHM—E® where staff are able to speak up, we have a longstanding
KRR BOR BB TR A A whistleblowing policy in place that allows them to raise concerns
& IIZEVEZIX L RBHMIERERIRE and for Giordano to follow up cases in a systematic yet
TIR#EEIS o protective setting.
@AHERER (4) People Management
(i) 3REA (i) Remuneration
1&’51&”\%&5‘%& ST H %ﬁ%?‘] Y Er BN 7 Giordano offers competitive remuneration packages, share
EHEIREAN LA% AARBESERNE options and generous goal-oriented or performance-based
J_féj': NEERMBEEEEZNBEER - bonuses tailored to different levels of staff, in order to reward
and retain a high-caliber leadership team.
(i) EMEHFFER (i) Increasing Annual Leave Entitlement
2017¢ BAABEMTERRE THA In 2017, we largely increased the annual leave entitlement of
FEBRA - ETEEMMNAEEGEHNT staff in Hong Kong and Macau markets. This not only allows
FERN A SE R R A R IR FH i P9 b T4 o them to have a better work-life balance and work performance,
ﬁjgﬁﬁm EMABBAL  EhHREESE but also helps retain and recruit talents and finally enhance
FREFHESF N - Giordano’s competitiveness.
(i) REXEERER (i) Family-Friendly Employment Practices
(a) B EEEFE (a) Flexi-Time Arrangement at Work
EMALETANRGREIELRK We want our staff to both enjoy and succeed at work and at
ErERBAREEE T EMME home. This is one of the keys to both retaining high quality
AR REESE Bt BMBhEE— staff and allowing them to thrive. That is why we strive to
Erem e B TRARAREM IR create a working environment which caters for the needs of
BoWH0I6FREEGERBRAE our staff and their families, with the introduction of flexi-time
MM AEEHEM LRE - St FE work arrangements for office staff in Hong Kong and Taiwan
B ptESMEEmMS  BPAAETH from 2016. Concurrently, for our shop operations, we also
MBI TERRE B R5 adjust the front-line staff’'s working hours to attract certain
FEEALIMA - Fla0: REFHEFMRK targeted manpower, e.g. homemakers and retirees.
AL
(b) XEHEEBIARE (b) Supporting Breastfeeding
B EM E’JEH&%@@EE;T’E i 4 HR In support of our working mothers’ needs of pumping milk in
BEI - BMEESRIANRELERF the workplace, we have specially designated a private space
AR T —EEENLAZHEMAR in the office of our Hong Kong Headquarters for expressing
BRI E T - milk.
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GIORDANO
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(c) Early Introduction of 14-Week Extended Maternity Leave

In advance of government enforcement, our Hong Kong
Headquarters implemented an extended 14-week paid
maternity leave policy from 23 October 2018, taking care of
the needs of parents working in our Hong Kong offices and
on the front-line to look after their newborn babies.

(d) Early Introduction of 5-Day Paternity Leave

Meanwhile, effective from 13 November 2018, we also took
an early lead in introducing the 5-day paternity leave for our
male staff in Hong Kong, which is far ahead of the local
legislation.

(e) Shortened Daily Working Hours (Office)

To further address staff’'s work-life balance needs, a trial
program first introduced in August 2018 to reduce working
hours in the office of Hong Kong Headquarters by 1-hour per
working day (i.e. from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) has been
made permanent to fulfill individual employees’ personal and
professional goals, effective from October 2018.

%) Elite Employment Award (Taiwan Market) (9/2018)

2 M % BB R B
pld mlﬁlﬁ(mi”%

Our Taiwan Team is committed to providing a quality and friendly
workplace environment to employees, and actively participates in the
recruitment activities held by county governments, which has been
recognized by the Taiwan government. In September 2018, our Taiwan
Team was awarded the “Elite Employment Award” by Ko Wen-je, the
Mayor of Taipei City Government. The theme of the Award was
“Rejoicing at the formation of talented men”. Having diversified education
and training, a transparent promotion system and well-rounded welfare,

Giordano stood out and was favored by the judges

(iVVEFETL
(a) EIEFEBTE

of the Award.

(iv)Acknowledging Our Staff
(a) Staff Commendation Award Scheme

e HEEMEE: e Commended cases:
RIBUFIS Eare R, Blit. |

$18 Lk S EES Alan RIBEPI S EEREE Iy e kb e bl bl il
— “ ARFacsock v ETEREFEDIHE .
Mgn prntanise "" B R R B g
e s = oo T e T
! '?“ﬁﬂtﬂf““”’“"“" - P
gt Sl Mo Srbuend X2 2o¥ e T T HEENMATEREREER s«ﬁﬂﬁzn%w
[y et b 'nm-.rm PERERER . anin b FERSAARLBHHY - BEBHEBENE
o T L e 4 ST
bam ""?“‘"““‘”""’ P A o MRS . i -5 A?JéE”Biﬁ%ﬁé&ﬂ?ﬁi“k%?&%@a%ﬁZSI

TR e Bt EANDRBED

i
Mandi ER -!
prep i

BRTEHZEFPBHETMERI  HAFEE
F20166F0 e sk (A TH AR WA &) LA
BRRBGEIRLEAEHRA R RBEFRD
BT -BFHMATEREHIESRBMAERE
MET KRELREISERERFEERAS
% LAREE -
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Not only do we circulate commendations from our customers who
acknowledged our staff’'s good performance, our Hong Kong
Headquarters has additionally implemented a “Staff Commendation
Award Scheme” since September 2016 to encourage and award staff
with outstanding performance and/or significant contributions.
Outstanding staff will be nominated every quarter and the winners will
be awarded with a Staff Commendation Certificate and a cash coupon
as a token of our appreciation.




GIORDANO

EREHFRIEH (&ETH)(10/2018) “Nice with You” Activity (Taiwan Market) (10/2018)
ERE—ES 8 EEKN2018F10A E X To keep on the same page, our Taiwan Team also organized a “Nice
LEEREREZAGEEZE - %a —’Uﬁﬁﬁﬁ’liﬁb with You” activity in October 2018 inviting staff, from the front-line and
M ERAEMREREEE ETERA back office, to give more commendations to arouse staff's morale
If’Et':k EFEREBELNIE- generally.
(b) F I B 7% 2% (b) Long Service Award
BTRBERSRIBRARSH R In recognition of the faithfulness of our long-serving staff at
BT HMNEFHERERARSEE Hong Kong Headquarters, we present Long Service Awards
FERBREHEF  TER=TF annually to staff who have served the Company for 5 years,
ZBTIe 10 years and 30 years, respectively.
v) EIESH (v) Staff Activities
A58 B T S FHNE 57 8 B S g A P To reinforce staff’s sense of belonging to Giordano with a
BREEAEMTEMNETES  HASF healthy work-life balance, we arrange a wide range of staff
LB T —RNETES - 5F %A activities every year. This year, we organized various interest
By SEAENMAES BTAINERE group activities, some of which are quoted below, in which staff
Ram BHEmmT : could participate at minimal cost.
o H ko L4 e DLY.XRARIEH
Make-up Workshop (2/3/2018) D.l.Y. Natural Product WOrkShOp (18/5/2018)
%}%2@55 MRAFERFR—ALEEE SEREEAMBENRKR
BHERAMKREE -
[ Bt - {cankE) E."'" 9 staff from the Hong Kong Headquarters together with their
MAKEUF WORKSHOR 5‘” fr relatives participated in the Workshop, learning to make practical and
F—EEREEn A NE exquisite natural essential oil as aroma stone and comfrey balm.
fHEN - SHAN AREE)
rﬂ-—-;--":.- "Ill-iﬂ "rnll;'l.ll-lll::tlll:t D.[.Y.%f‘ﬁﬁﬂzﬂllfﬁjﬁ . mm
LAHEIGE 1 - )
BEMR 108 (RRE) -1HeE (R8I
108278 - HEBHR :
ViIEIREERE (vi) Staff Satisfaction Surveys
BF ERRYEETE Iﬁ%‘f‘%éﬂﬁ; . Each vyear, Giordano conducts staff satisfaction surveys to
LANERS B AMRIE - fEABIR A RBUR R collect useful feedback as reference for improving our policies.

E’]Q%
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GIORDANO

HEEE B2 BEREHEZE (BEZM®) Social Aspect B2 : Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
) BERFELE2EEANERLE2IEZRME (1) OHS is a crucial component of Giordano’s overall safety framework,

ZEH  WETIESR D ERENZ 2R K and reducing health and safety risks in the workplace is our

e EHEZMRIANEEZE -BTELEKAH important and constant objective. In addition to a long history of

4 R B IR AN 0 R P9 20184 44 48 hN oh 4B no-smoking policy at workplace, we continued to reinforce our

B OEEZSEMEY Ui 2 X IE strong leadership, management system and training programs in

Fragam b XL o OB E—F 0 EF 2018, so as to strengthen our safety culture and enhance our

MR AR B A EETEAENEESE - overall OHS performance. In review of last year, Giordano is not

aware of any non-compliant cases relating to OSH.
2 AR —EZE2MIIEIRE M : (2) To ensure a safe working environment, we:

() BEZEEI  UIRSEINTE2EH (i) provide intensive training programs for our staff to improve their

safety awareness;

(i) FHERTIESNLZE  BFRRDIRE (ii) regularly monitor workplace safety, particularly with District
HETIEEMESEHEAELSE Wi Supervisors allocated to supervise and monitor shop and
HEFENRENMTZ WM TIERE  URE warehouse operations, to ensure each phase of which operates
FEREERLRERLS M safely by facilitating necessary tools with safe working

environment; and

() ERDE  BEMEHATIIESMER (iii)carry out workplace tidiness at our offices, warehouses and shops
RNIT8) - LUR A TESFe B E R - to reduce workplace hazards.

BIEERRR : Including, but not limited to:

(@) RERE - BEURIEEES (a) Health Checks, Talks & Related Activities

FEAH#tHE Mainland China Market EHBRHEMTE Hong Kong & Macau Markets

3 EALLEN EAFENNTESEN
BEAREREES - CEARNTFAES
L L L

RERE-EHEE
I! RAEGANSRERS A

FILBEKRSRNE
Taishan International Marathon BEEE — BHERE
(15/4/2018) Health Talk — Stress Management (25/7/2018)
-
5 0 &7 B IR AR
ma— Essential Oil Stress Relief Program
b iy
| S s B
u-:::::: |£‘}| |:-|-.-I-l|'h'll-
e "-'Jﬁ

ODEBEE — BEEEER DGR
Psychological Talk
— Emotional Management & Stress Relief

2RETIRERSE
Staff Health Check (9-10/2018) FILfEITES
Hiking
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GIORDANO

¥ B8 IEEE 2nd Staff Sports Day — The Power of Dreams (8/2018)

A S TR T EIN LT C BB M BN
EIE EHNGEBPAEEBETEGLIREE -
=+ % B The Power of Dreams * RERZBH = £ L
ERETI-R2NFRASE BHE— L FRREKX
45 BB B P RE  o

@JA%WAZ% BEMBSZEBREMNRRUATESN
BELFS(BEeE BB BE AZNER)E

L RBETAKRENORS 5Fﬂﬁ§$%f}fﬁﬁ§f£/&ﬂﬁ
HERINES EREEKZEANGERN  REED
KA B E B -

A
T%T&%‘TH‘@’* RoHHBETET
1I$*§%EI’JI{’E RE -

(c) PRAIRNBRELEREIBELTEREE D
BRINEER
Hosting the webpage “Tips on
Occupational Health & Safety” on
Company’s Intranet

To enhance staff's awareness of the advantages of sport, and to provide a
platform for the front-line and back office staff to interact and communicate, our
Taiwan Team once again held a Sports Day in 2018. Its theme was “The Power
of Dreams”, aiming to pursue dreams together with strength, having the team
united as one, striving for the best results and showing the team spirit.

Prior to the commencement of the games, team representatives from various
districts of our Taiwan market took the oath in different languages and dialects
(including Taiwanese, Mandarin, Cantonese, English and Hakka) to showcase the
fusion of different ethnic groups and echo with “World Without Strangers”, the
credo of the Giordano Group. The oath taking also strengthened the spirit of
cooperation among the teams and demonstrated the passion and persistence of
sportsmen.

(b) Warehouse Renovation

The relocation of our new warehouse in Tuen Mun for the Hong
Kong Headquarters had finally completed in June 2018, which
would enhance delivery efficiency and bring a safer working
environment to our staff.

ahoral Hasth £ Salery

T e
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GIORDANO

#HEEHE B3 AZRERKEEHE Social Aspect B3 : Talent Development & Retention Strategy
(1) ERREESEmE TE2B —mE#H - &M (1) Giordano encourages learning and recognizes that values and fairmess

ARBEEE AT FENEERBAAZRR
WEEKINERBRRE Bt RATE
%i%l&%%ﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%@%%
MR BEEE REMBES LT EIR
HalaR - NWDEETHBEMBEAZRRTE
iﬁmﬁ%%&ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁlﬁl%

(2) B ABE(BNAR & ~ R F R B WK » £ FHR
R20165F &M T HAM EEETHE KR
B ABANATERFEHBTERR -

@) ZEHEEEE LA

ERRIEEERBEEAL @EE%I%@
5 OREBEFREGNNAEERDNE

(@ BLEFHE- Eﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁig
(TMTDA 8 BREFTEAL KR
STAME

(b) F£2014%F - HAIEF B ABBIEMTE S -
WAIEEERRREARIEAR - UERS
BESI —EE2NEILCR <2%4
RERNEZEETEEEAG - BEENE
EBERAEKE ([FTsl) ERAHNERRE
e = 2R K 220 KT RO B SRk MR B R
KA - DAORE QA A& BB FI A B BE /O B IR
BIS o EHRINEXENERERSEE—
UEENAG BEEGMEMEERNUR
Mg EE BRLDERBEN-

(c) M20174F » H Mt #EE

=il m

=
B |
B ot
pi
S 2k
A&
=
R

EREBERETEA
REEFZNTEATS -

as well as opportunities for continuous professional and personal
development are equally important drivers for high achievers. As
such, we invest heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and
development programs in sales and service, but also in
management, planning and leadership programs, to address staff’s
professional and personal development needs and to retain a skilled
and motivated workforce.

(2) Pursuant to our 3E (i.e. Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness) policy,

Giordano conducted a review of the team structure by department
heads in 2016 and identified talents for focused development in the
coming years.

(3) Fast-Track Management Trainee Scheme

Giordano has always placed a strong focus on cultivating talents
with international perspective, insight into international practices and
strong competitiveness.

(a) Ever since the 1990’s, Giordano has operated a Management
Trainee (the “MT”) program to nurture retailing talents, with
satisfactory results.

(b) In 2014, we modified and upgraded our MT Scheme in Hong
Kong Headquarters to ensure that participants received a holistic
and comprehensive training experience, such that upon
graduation, successful graduates could be placed directly into
mid-management roles. With the renaming of MTs as Fast-
Trackers (the “FTs”), this reform included a tightening in our
admission requirements in terms of academic results and a
restructuring of the syllabus to include real business tasks in
various departments and functions within Giordano. Successful
graduates have now taken on a number of important roles,
including product development and management as well as
brand management. Some of them have even been stationed to
overseas regions.

(c) In 2017, we also extended this Hong Kong style FT program to
our Mainland China market to cultivate more retailing talents for
our future growth.

2018 ESG Report
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GIORDANO

4 2EMAARREEANS B EEE (“TDRI”) (4) Global Talent Development & Retention Initiative (“TDRI”)

(@) TDRIZE MR RELFNEEZHEERE 2 (a) TDRI is one of our key strategic investments in coming years.
— o BB T fE%*BE%EﬁFT CIBEEERT Apart from hiring FTs from outside, we have turned to pinpoint
BEFRREBAEETEBEBFRREENA and groom our existing talents within the Group’s business
7 BRI quVrHZH across all subsidiary regions.

(b) B RLIESIRAET1EIR AL M1 (b) Further to the nomination by regional General Managers of
BERNVHEBEMER  RiBEER between 1 to 3 talents with (i) proven contribution towards their
BEKRSEMERE - g mA R business; and (i) potential to become a future member of senior
EFFE RR—FHORRE IR management, bespoke and role-specific 1-year development
S2HEBGIINEBTRITEBER - 5F program involving overseas events and short-term postings have
HPIE Saat 8l P& 72208 A - I been devised and executed. In 2018, we have totally picked 22
R2019F3 A31 8 e 7l » talents for this Initiative, to be completed by 31 March 2019.

e e s i o A o Lo B s 163%
towen). Tra womnwes o o pragee wrud o Swviesd By Do Merue Basceoes Diwons Ba [~
L T e T f A
B POTENT L
ASeS T ashirTe poee P e
= Crwdriaii Dvad o Campaition
ﬂ T e o s
’M-*_'MM"-:"".;-_W. R E
(5) REPEINRE (5) In-House Training Programs
RN — A HEERETIEBNEERE A Giordano invests heavily in learning and development to maintain its
”ET—ir,\ E B o KA m{;ﬁ_ﬂ;gﬁgﬁﬁ competitive edge. We believe that continual updating of professional
CRES S Z A A8 ﬂﬁﬁ_irjmg o B PIHE B skills and the sharing of knowledge will allow the Company to grow
e N with the times. We therefore allocate ample resources to staff
TTE&%/J?EE\IE’]%DJ”*D%EJ:’5‘5%&?? trainin d d | t th th H f t A= t .t
e i e e ¥ , g and development wi e aim of sustaining a competent,
fige®  BEMABER T IERK
. e . . e professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to the
%Eij Af‘j E@WW ° §§20L8¢ jﬂz @7/%@%‘ success of the Company. In 2018, we have provided in-house
MIZH BRI AR S THIERIRE L7 /DJ!{ET/*E T8 training to our frontline staff and non-frontline staff of the Reporting
835,000/ B }&7,900/)\ s &) A EBIF I - 5 F Markets for over 35,000 hours and 7,900 hours, respectively. The
p y
[ TR T35 M) B T 557148 5 S8 843,000/ B o total number of training hours delivered in this year is over 43,000
hours.
B4 Graph 4 ]
) ETESIAIZINNARH
n Total In-House Training Hours Received by Staff
MZBT RS %ﬁéimﬂ/ng
Frontline Staff Noﬂ‘FrO”“/ﬂe Sf%( %\ (o8 Tralmng Ho 7@

|
2017

1
2017

48,774 9,289
/N Hours W /NEEHours
2016 2018 © 2016 2018
29,288 35,608 4,369 7,909

/N Hours /) EFHo /NEEHours D EEHou

2018 Lt ¥ vs 2017 2018 th ¥ vs 2017 2018 Lt ¥f vs 2017
B2 LL#E% Change B2 L# 8% Change B2 L# 8% Change
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GIORDANO

(i) UABZE i%EﬁJUJJﬁE (i) People-Oriented Staff Development
BASTHTRNIETE  THAE EMEL Based on our staff’s different needs, we regularly organize internal
Ky B T 28 o (A 3P 15 JH&EH&% EE R - B training and on-job training for staff in different roles — this not only
RAB T TERIRIN - IREE L B M B 312 improves our staff’s work performance, but also helps equip them
B B PkE - with new skills to face new challenges.
(a) BT ABERE (a) Induction Talk for New Staff

VWELCOMKE

FFEFEFFFE

{ZEE.'-! il 2 3

(b) E1&Z I (b) Refresher Training
BTZREEIHEARTTEI BB In addition to reviewing the basic skills, we equip staff with the
{;—:g\l/\ﬁﬂ%%ﬁmgﬂﬁ e WEBTT latest information and knowledge, so that they could carry out
BEREREEKE- their duties to the highest standards.
RN e T
: nnﬁEEJ Hm Excellent
) fl:EARR  SAELEN
RERRREAD
Good MERGHINRS
BHAE
Pass B amAR R,
SHES ZnRK o
] _ mﬂ?
ANMRER ?ﬂ}t. - " ; S
SES~ Service Excelance Sta -4 -i { y et
SR e
(i) EABEBINRESEHBENE TEIEE - (ii) Other internal training programs are designed to help staff develop
BREELMN }Emfﬂﬂ*ﬁﬂ’] EBMABRIT - their capabilities, advance their careers and enhance their

management and interpersonal skills.

FElR# T H Mainland China Market

RESDERA LT LAHE i L \
7 Habits of Most Efficient & 2 p £ 5t FEEETEY
New Staff Development Workshop on Change Management

Effective Persons
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GIORDANO

HFHEREMTE Hong Kong & Macau Markets

RES#=A5m2— ' WIiEA, Engagemen EE“E 3.4
e TEARAREATEIH
g TR, AN

i 3& A AR B B ER R =
Strengthening Staff Engagement (3-5/2018)

Giordanofit H % — RS =&
Giordano “Charisma Series” Service Sharing Meeting

RADECHBFEFEINZELELKR
thuﬁﬁ&%“*H$ﬂﬁo

Over 50 staff from stores and the office have participated in
the Sharing Meeting, where we invited our senior staff to
share their rich experience.

# SR HIT T EHLego® Serious Play (27/4/2018)

M HH Singapore Market

[BROBEERIEL RG] TIED
Workshop on “Effective Communication & Use of ¥ |
EE miE

Empathy in Customer Service”
Trainings on Product Knowledge
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GIORDANO
(i) ERDNECE£EBEDH

BERRERRSFOZLEER XXM
CELRERUMAINER -EXTFERTR
R EELTES  ENREATRAS
FREMHE HELEEMNENEREKMT
MELE HEIBEK2EZ -BZMNFEHL
BARENMBXNBZEEMKNEENS
HOFEEBELZAMNXT FRAMOET
REREMGS -

(iVIZEBX# | SENRLBTER
(a) [1£ 72 = € & | Giordano Library

ctREsE+ARMLRABRE - ASMIT
HTHE - BECHE#TE?

AN () ;AR - R MGT
(HELD - WM

REERN-ONM - ETHESRRRRN

-8 'mN, - NSRS
W0 - B T AN - e,
BEFsan -

y g AN AEHRNEES S LSRR UNNNE -
o _ a ERALY - TSR+ - SEASNTE
§ Y. 3 @ " EfR—~  =HiN-SUEEEREREN
% & —WAN - -
H b # = EEEE RS ETE, BIESE
i ¢ Aty | OEENS - HMEERY - SREMET -

aRENE B sRAELL - RARDYRE
HEEEAnET  NEaSERRTNED
B

OSEE - AESEndSgideragroup cos
{EMEE - AT BEED SR HRET -

(iii) Giordano Corporate Management Guide

Giordano’s core values,

and Chief Executive Officer, Dr.

staff could benefit in the long term.

o

o

. 4

(iv) Online Learning Resources on the “Knowledge is Golden” Webpage

corporate culture and accumulated
experience are parts of our success story. Led by our Chairman
Peter Lau, together with the
contribution from staff members from various departments, we have
summarized this information into four guide books for staff’s handy
reference. It is hoped that, by turning tacit knowledge built on
experiences, aptitudes and know-how into explicit knowledge, our

(b) [ Professor G#3 #% ] Professor G Blog

Professor G Blog ®&3 ™

connrs NS New

> H'EREE, ATATEE | AEME.LMAEN- B
mEdENE

> SETATLEESRNTET  AMUENR-XET
ARnEhl

LB L

» BANENATE: chE\RERS - EHADE-E
= ]

= EAEN "B R AT BEETUR - mISRT

@
3o

\1,_;; ‘-“_l,',"i-'if--ﬂ‘-\". i

| 2 hede

» EATHE TEEERTTRARES | —EERRAS
‘ » CAISEFESNTIENRENG : aneTET
LT
+ BARE TEREEEER-aN
> BANWEE CPE - NI - EETERE

mEw =SHEE
LHETL N
ARE
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T
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GIORDANO

(v EEZ2FHGE (v) Self-Learning Scheme

B 19994 i#E j.f s 4RI B iﬁf@ 235 Through the Self-Learning Scheme adopted since 1999 in Hong
2| g EE EELW EIRCESEiv ,%I S5 Kong Headquarters, we foster a continuous learning atmosphere to
R - Q g promote staff’s individual initiative and responsibility for development

by self-learning.

2018

e s —

(i) IZINERBERAE (vi)Survey on Training Needs
KBS FHETEIFTREERAE AT Each year, we conduct a survey to understand our staff’s
33%£&EIE’]i J'\Hﬁifﬂ?ﬁg TR R expectations and needs for training, which aids in designing the
RPIRFTEENRE  BEaRiENERME - useful and practical training programs for them in the following

year.

(vii) 18 £ Bh (vii) Training Subsidies
RE—FTHEE THERRMMMNRENE To further motivate our staff to continue developing their skills and
MAZ - EARERE TR EEEE - enhancing their knowledge, Giordano has different subsidy schemes

in place:
(a) [#EASZREEHE (a) Study Allowance Scheme
BEE)E T M K Rae - (R AR To encourage our staff to enhance their knowledge and skills for
o ﬁ,ﬁ{{l{’ﬁﬁiﬁ&ﬂ@}{%%%&)ﬁti@ personal growth, which benefits their work performance and
BB BEEE nxj T [ (&2 ELE future career development, Hong Kong Headquarters has set up
2 - UAEMEIREATEHEBENIE a “Study Allowance Scheme” to subsidize our staff in taking
S ERERFR o external work-related training courses.
(b) [ 1iTE & EBYEH & (b) Management Academic Assistance Scheme
[El7 & & BT 28 R2016598 & The “Management Academic Assistance Scheme” has been
e AEABBILEEREELEREENIR implemented since September 2016, which is designed to
EEBABRBEENRKRERE AL RMH develop existing and potential management talent at Hong Kong
B LEERSERF  WEANRRE -8 Headquarters through financial support to successful applicants
TERENEMBEELEERRES who wish to pursue higher education, such as studying in
undergraduate, or postgraduate degrees or attainment of
professional qualifications or accreditation.

Vi) BT EIMRWBRERRTE (vii) “Career Development Program” for Shop Staff
AFEHEIARTZEREKERMNKE TY To provide our shop staff with more opportunities for development
ITHEROMEBER BB ENETIBRELRELT and enhance their job satisfaction, Hong Kong Headquarters has
Bl EEANKETE L AR E launched a “Career Development Program”. It is tailored for those
SERZETRHE SABIEIFRENEE shop staff nominated by their supervisors, aiming to equip staff with
R BERRE- the skills they require to develop their careers through additional

training.

HtEEmM B4 . BIEEMARKE Social Aspect B4 : Policies on Labour Standards and

Human Rights

ELEMBRT . aFERMEEEEESR Giordano prohibits the employment of child, forced or compulsory

Q40 Ak labour in any of its operations, including at suppliers’ production
N Py | M

Viﬂﬁ\imi{:ﬁ TEEI i%i:jﬁf %\J ﬁijj ° #£2018 facilities. In 2018, we did not identify any operation or suppliers having
FRMRBEAAEMNEERBARERNAER significant risks of child labour, workers exposed to hazardous works,

ET  BEFETARITERIE  ®BHAEEE o or forced or compulsory labour.

2018 ESG Report
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GIORDANO

1Eﬂ)zG|5§DANo :

AR E KM ER
CARING FOR OUR SUPPLIERS

HEEE B RN AEEEE

ERRHEREEERNDEEETE /KA

B RETENENEARAT  RoMBAM

fE-2E Al EXEERH -EEREER

iﬁéhﬂ%&é\ﬂﬂiﬁﬁ C IR BE PR R A - (M E A
1t -

B E2018F12A318 » £ 4 I &£ B120K # &
B omAET REM

[E5 Graph 5

Social Aspect B5 : Efficient Supply Chain Management

At Giordano, supply chain management is based on the premise of
satisfying customers’ needs, and better coordination among the various
functions of our business, such as the supplies, manufacturing,
warehousing and distribution by better planning and through information
sharing. With more effective integration of resources, we thus reduce
costs and maximize efficiency.

As at 31 December 2018, Giordano has a total of 120 suppliers,
located in different parts of the world:

#FEE B #3155 % Suppliers by Geographical Region

100 97 12
- 10
8
60
6
40
4
20 o
2016 2017 2018 2016 2017
TE(BEESB) REIE

China (including Hong Kong)

GEE
o THEEIREREAREESERESEROBENRE
B LER -

e HMEFBMNUERBRBHEEEUREINUEMET -

e HRATERAAMNRE EANSEFTHEMERATETTRAER
£100% ©

BMEEYBEMNHERREEERY  2FY
HEFNEZANTG mERBRES  HHH
FERI B R BBR LR B A RHIREE -

BT ER AR FERRE W EEM
MEFEBHBMEBITAEEERME  SAREH
= o E A E m MR o Fit - B ERAE S
D mEEZERRTRES —EERRE -
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Southeast Asia

11 ° c : °
5 5
4 4
3 3
2 2
1 1
2018 2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018
BM HRHEME
Europe Rest of the world

Notes:

e “Supplier” refers to the manufacturers of apparel and accessories which are directly
engaged by Giordano.

The geographical location of a Supplier is based on the location of its production facilities
and its headquarters.

e The respective figure may not add up to 100%, due to rounding.

We have established a complete supplier quality assurance mechanism,
which covers the approval and evaluation of suppliers, quality
inspection and supervision, strategic supplier development and
materials procurement.

Furthermore, we actively promote the sustainable development of our
supply chain and the joint fulfilment of corporate social responsibility
with our partners to provide the public with high quality products and
services. As such, supply chain management is always one of the key
links in Giordano’s quality control system.
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(i) 73 7 R BE PR 8 B IR M A & S R
B ARESHEFOAFEER B
EREEMNHBERKEMEFM - 21
VAN B9 45 8 14 3T

o HEMITARSAI:

o [TIRGMIRE]:

s [ERmZEMEHMHBRE] Rk
o [EXMEBRIBEK] -

(1) Ethical Sourcing

As supply chain management is critical for Giordano’s success, we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our
quality, performance and not least labour standards. In particular,
we expect them to comply with the below “Core Ethical Sourcing
Requirements”:

the Supplier:

e only employs workers that are above the local legal minimum age;

e does not use forced or prison labour in any part or aspects of its
facilities;

e does not, or threaten to, physically abuse its workers;

e does not contravene local environmental laws and regulations;

e provides a safe and healthy work environment for its workers; and

e is compliant with our various standards and committed to
following up corrective actions.

We aim to do business with those suppliers sharing similar values
and principles, and intend to purchase from those who meet our
above “Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements” and have
demonstrated a commitment to improving their standards on labour,
health and safety, and environmental practices. Thus, prior to
engagement, new suppliers are required to complete and pass our
“Ethical Audit Questionnaire”.

(2) Quality Assurance Mechanism

(i) Giordano exercises a high level of scrutiny over the selection of
suppliers. Apart from eligibility checking, suppliers are also
subject to assessment and on-site audits on product quality as
well as suitability and quality consistency tests conducted by our
Quality Assurance Team. Only those pass our audits and
assessments will be included into the “Qualified Supplier List” for
bulk purchases. Also, to ensure our product quality, we carry out
long-term quality monitoring and regular audits/reviews on all
suppliers. Should there be any significant change in a supplier’s
eligibility or any serious quality issue, we may suspend its
deliveries immediately and, if necessary, cancel its status as our
qualified supplier. Moreover, our unannounced inspections from
time-to-time will ensure our suppliers comply with our various
standards.

(ii) In order to mitigate environmental and social risks within our
supply chain, and to promote the sustainable development of our
suppliers, a “Quality Manual” which covers below guiding
documents is also distributed to our key suppliers:

e “Suppliers Code of Conduct”;
e “Workplace Standards”;
e “Product Safety and Regulated Substances Specification”; and

e “Accepting and Offering Policy”.
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(iii) A supplier database has been established, and through on-line
transactions, we provide suppliers with fair, transparent and
competitive opportunities. With “open business, controlled
processes, fully documented and permanently traceable” as our
watchwords, we thus ensure the quality of procured products
and services compliant with our standards.

(3) Enhancing Competitiveness by Technological Innovation

Giordano will carefully examine every detail of the production
process and raise any issues that may be discovered, with the aim
of working with its suppliers to identify possible areas for further
improvement. By optimizing the process, upgrading the technology
and improving the workmanship, our suppliers not only greatly
improve their production efficiency and product quality, but also help
upgrade their capabilities in response to more challenging markets
and enhance their competitiveness. This close-knit working
relationship between both sides allows the parties to maintain a
more stable and mutually benefit cooperation.

(4) Inventory Control

(i) Inventory control is a key indicator of merchandising efficiency
and remains a core competence of Giordano. “ZERO
STORAGE” is another core value of Giordano’s inventory
control. We will continue to cautiously adjust our inventory
portfolio and, once the resultant overstock depletes, our margins
and profitability further recover. As a result of effective inventory
control, our inventory remained healthy, with inventory turnover
days on cost for the year ended 31 December 2018 was 89
days.

(ii) In addition to our own consolidated inventory, Giordano
responsibly monitors inventory held at our suppliers and the
franchisees in Mainland China to ensure that we do not build up
off-balance sheet inventory that would jeopardize our
merchandising flexibility and wholesale business in future.

(5) On-line Delivery Based Open-to-Buy Application

(“DBOTB”)

Giordano started implementing an on-line DBOTB from 2016,
which:

(i) systematically controls and adjusts purchase orders and delivery
schedules;

(ii) improves communication among our buyers, subsidiaries and the
Headquarters on-line;

(iii) simplifies the planning and buying process;
(iv)allows prompt response to dynamic market conditions; and

(v) enhances the Headquarters’ visibility when performing stock
allocation and hence maximizing sales opportunities.
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Social Aspect B6 : Service and Product Liability

At Giordano, we continuously strive to provide our customers with the
most enlightening shopping experience. Giordano’s straight-forward
mission, ‘To Make People FEEL GOOD and LOOK GREAT', fully
illustrates our total commitment to superior service and outstanding
quality.

(1) “Giordano Means Service” Campaign

Giordano’s commitment to superior service stems from the
“Giordano Means Service” campaign which was first launched in
1989, at which time every staff wore yellow badges bearing the
words “Giordano Means Service”. Since then, quality service has
become one of the tenets of Giordano.

To ensure every shop staff offers excellent customer service, we
conduct performance evaluations frequently at the store level, as
well as for frontline staff by mystery shoppers. Our efforts to provide
excellent customer service have been recognized by a long list of
service-related awards we have received over the years, including
the “2018 Service & Courtesy Award” presented by the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association (“HKRMA”).

EETEEEMESEBEMNI2018F E 4 H R 155
“2018 Service & Courtesy Award” presented by HKRMA

O TR
Aag SHN“R’
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[BHBEEHEI % — 1@ “Exceeding customers’ expectations” is a simple objective that
ERE  ZROMA[BE]E Ba Giordano has upheld for many years, which we achieve through
AEBAIRBEREZE—F]  [EHFTENRE] “thinking one step ahead for customers’ needs” and “providing
KiEK BTG ERRERHEEEZR - BF tailor-made services”. Our frontline staff provide professional advice
MR EEREYT  EHEAEZEMMFTE and flexible and rapid response to customers, helping them choose
WEm- BIERAK  RAEEF  ZMtAT the right products in need. Meanwhile, to satisfy our customers, we
BEREBMER - also allow them to return and exchange products after purchases.

BEEATNERNI2018R B RS
“Service Meeting 2018” organized by Hong Kong Headquarters

[ERREBAEZEB IS Z [N REE B aiEA]

“Giordano’s Touching Service Sharing”
FRDZRGEARSE  RERAMEK - — 2 — % - RO E& Giordano 8
L T——— N N
B . HH o ¥ R ©

- Bowg

. ' o Anna RBUALAL LECHAERABERETRAMEFHES
e Nicole BAIELRIF | - HEEERZF I RENBIRE

e BoBo ARTRAFZEZATARYE EEXHNEHKFEABS M RE

e Serena BRBEAFAIE - BOTEHREEE DAROREEER

e MnMin IEEEXHEBERERFNKS  FBHRHE—F HREERE
B o

-----

“Service is always our top priority; no matter whom we are

serving.”
[MREEF|FETREED
“Staff Appreciation” Campaign By sharing touching stories of serving customers, staff were impressed
and motivated to keep on Giordano’s corporate culture of high quality
service.

e Putting herself in customers’ shoes, Anna took initiative to help and
surprise customers with her sewing expertise.

e Believing in care and friendliness, Nicole dedicated herself to building
up a long-term relationship with customers.

e Bobo used different ways to serve customers and was motivated by
the customers’ gratitude.

e Serena served customers with creativity, by using staples to bring
customers with a heartwarming experience.

e MinMin seized every chance to serve customers, who received
surprised outcome in return.

BRERRAE

“Survey on Service Quality”
WEUAE Ny AI B HEKECSRERENMER  §F—RMEGEBREZREH—H
LDECELBRHBHEYOREHEI -

Totally, we have received 338 Thank You cards showing appreciation of
the services of our back-office staff.
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HREE RS EE IR - #35 Giordano AEEXE
Vincent X 3 <8 8%
sme Vincent, the shop in-charge of our shop at
Giuwbane: drter it innl | td the Hong Kong International Airport, received the
award certificate from the management for the
Airport Authority Hong Kong

KBy

at FORE

BB IS E R BHIE201843 8 24 B 2 [ At Your Service £ENE )58 HBUBRTRIAZETBERBSEENES 2
HORERBORBEES B - ARES RZEFT - Gordano/BZEE MM RB KT TRHZALAE  SRABHRBES - KD
ETEAERBRARL  RETRALRBABIE=F

The Airport Authority Hong Kong has organized a function called “At Your Service” during March to April 2018. Customers were
invited to vote for the brand which provided the most enthusiastic service out of dozens of brands operating at the Hong Kong
International Airport. With our excellent service standards, warm hospitality and enthusiasm, Giordano has successfully stood out in
the retail category and ranked Top 3 in the “Most Helpful Company” Award.

EEBEDER P INE S AT JCDecaux 2018 F R W IHESHELE AL EE=HEH
BEEFRNERAIE #ERXRLBAE -CB=ZAMHNAGEHR BBON+ANTET
EETER BH=TZEERSHEE  ZEENIEANBEBR AL RS F (BANike + Samsung
%) » GIORDANO HK — theFUTURE X B2017F REGA B S HEER N RE AR -

MTR Advertising — The Best of the Best Awards, jointly organized by the MTR Corporation
of Hong Kong and JCDecaux, a French outdoor advertising company, aimed at praising
outstanding MTR advertisements and encouraging the advertising industry to produce more
creative executions in future. During the second-round interview in March, Giordano HK —
theFUTURE was reviewed by a professional judging panel composed of over 40 judges,
against more than 3,000 advertising projects produced by world-famous brands like Nike
and Samsung, and has finally been shortlisted for the Best Use of Integrated Media as
being Top 5.

RIERSTE Awards and Recognition
e MNP BEETAREFEHRMBIL K ¢ Giordano Website won Top 10 eCommerce Website Award

The Retail Asia Expo has awarded Giordano’s ecommerce website

& as one of the “Top 10 ecommerce websites” for 2018. This “Top
FRABHELARR(UNRENEZTRABREYD 10 eCommerce Website Award”, which recognized and awarded
B REEXEREENETHBHMU) R0 websites that have raised the bar for user experience and achieved
TERSNEERABBIH RIEREES outstanding operation growth, has acknowledged Giordano’s
MEKE REREHREFSHEDHEL B ecommerce website for fostering and delivering continuous and
AEREDERS- exemplary e-commerce standards as well as enhancing user

experience with an outstanding shopping platform.

e Giordano Junior#¥ E[2018R B HEEF LR
EmgE]
Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018
Parents’ Favorite Family Brand”

fE20184F  Giordano Junior 58T [ 2018 & &
BREOREMmBEINYZIREMER - ZEE
HEBHNEERRFF A Baby Kingdom 3 -
4 3BBaby Kingdom®& B LA K B E T EMIRE -
Giordano Junior 1E VU K A i f& # 22 B

it » & BR Giordano Junior — B LA K 75 im Bl B
BWHREt SEENREERIESAMRER
BEXAENRME -

Giordano Junior was awarded with “2018
Parents’ Favorite Family Brand” under the
“Children Clothing” category in 2018. This
Award was presented by Baby Kingdom, a
popular online parent-child platform at Hong
Kong. Further to the assessment by the
members of Baby Kingdom and a panel of
professional judges, Giordano Junior stood
out from the other 3 finalists, being in
recognition of its creative designs and high-
quality products.
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Giordano’s Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters named in
the GC Powerlist

Meanwhile, we are also delighted to announce that Giordano’s
Legal Team at Hong Kong Headquarters has been named in the
“Team Powerlist” category of the GC Powerlist Hong Kong,
published by The Legal 500 — which carried out the research to
corroborate and validate our inclusion, in recognition of our in-house
legal team:

1. being instrumental in changing or forming opinions within the
company or industry;

2. developing technical solutions to complex issues;

3. creating innovative structures to ensure that the in-house function
is driving the business forward; and

4. providing a business working model that other corporate counsel
should follow.

Giordano is a global fashion brand and clothing retailer with locations
across 30 countries and 2,400 stores across Asia, Australasia and the
Middle East. It operates the brands Giordano, Giordano Ladies,
Giordano Junior, BSX and Beau Monde and is moving to expand into
Europe and the Americas. Leading the legal team at the company is
Mark Loynd, who in his role of general counsel, company secretary
and director of human resources, has been responsible for the
company’s legal, compliance and regulatory affairs globally since
2013. The legal team under Loynd’s direction has facilitated the
company’s recent rapid expansion and development which resulted in
some of its highest growth since thanks to work managed and
completed by the legal team in the last five years. The team manages
all of the legal affairs of the company including its regulatory affairs
relating to import and export tariffs, supply chain regulations, privacy
and IP, as well as employment matters. A truly multijurisdictional team,
the Giordano legal department has recently overseen the opening of
another flagship store in Hong Kong, as well as the company’s
completion of a business acquisition in Vietham and the opening of the
first location in Mongolia.

(2) Safety and Health

(i) In addition to the professional customer service, a pleasant
shopping experience also requires a comfortable and safe
shopping environment. We are committed to (a) ensuring a safe
and healthy environment for our staff and customers, and (b)
eliminating preventable accidents and health hazards in our
business locations.

(ii) As mentioned in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii), we have a Quality
Manual setting forth our standards and specification regarding
product quality and safety for our suppliers’ compliance.

(iii) We demand our suppliers to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations on product safety, and regularly update them of the
hazardous substance and inhumane production processes

banned by Giordano, such as the “sandblasting” process and
the “live-plucking” goose down process.
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(ivyWe also engage independent and accredited third party

laboratories to test our materials and products, to ensure
compliance with the international safety standards.

(v) “We care because you care”

Much effort has been spent on product safety, which is one of
our core values. For instance, we make sure that all drawstrings
in our Giordano Junior clothing are fixed to the waistband to
avoid pulling out by children accidentally. We also will not use
metal zippers, which are however commonly used by our
counterparts.

(3) Protecting intellectual property rights

(i) “IP Manager Training Program”

Nowadays, intellectual property (“IP”) is recognized as a key
element in business development and, here at Giordano,
protecting IP rights is one of our top priorities. To enhance
awareness of IP protection within Giordano and to proactively
protect our IP from infringement, two of our subsidiaries
participated in the IP Manager Scheme organized by Intellectual
Property Department of Hong Kong (the “IPD”) in 2017. After
completion of its “IP Manager Training Program” by our staff, we
were awarded a Certificate of Commendation.
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(ii) Intellectual Property Rights & Design/POP Vetting

Workshop

Meanwhile, two rounds of the Intellectual Property Rights &
Design/POP  Vetting Workshop were held in our Dongguan
Design Centre and Hong Kong Headquarters office separately in
December 2018 and January 2019 — striving every effort to
train up our staff with knowledge of protecting the IP rights and
avoiding infringements.
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(4) Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policies

Customer privacy has become a hot topic that we cannot overlook.
In compliance with the local laws and the European Union’s General
Data Protection Regulations (effective from 25 May 2018, “GDPR”),
we have updated our Group-wide “Privacy Policy and Personal
Information Collection Statement” and “Privacy Notice” (both in
English and Chinese, as uploaded onto our official websites and/or
e-shops, where appropriate) for the public and customers’
reference. We invited an independent third party global law firm to
audit our practices and confirmed our compliance with the GDPR.
Furthermore, staff are kept reminded to fully observe the policy from
time to time.

Social Aspect B7 : Anti-Corruption
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(1) We adopt a zero-tolerance approach towards bribery and corruption,

and our Staff Handbook and Code of Conduct (as uploaded onto
the Company’s Intranet) clearly inform our staff of Giordano’s strict
standards regarding anti-corruption, anti-bribery, conflicts of interest,
gift, procurement and whistle-blowing policies, as well as our
policies on dealings and investment in Giordano’s shares.

(2) To ensure that our staff comply with the requirements imposed and

uphold high ethical standards, all staff are required to complete and
submit a “Declaration of Interests” at least once a year. If there are
any cases of conflict of interest, the relevant staff are required to
update their declaration immediately.

(3) We also proactively promote business integrity and ethics among our

staff by organizing seminars on anti-corruption regularly. In February
2018, Hong Kong Headquarters invited representatives from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) to make a
presentation on corruption prevention and integrity management for
our new staff. This kind of seminars is compulsory as to be
attended at least once by each Hong Kong Headquarters staff.

(4) Furthermore, our contracts with suppliers require their full compliance

with our Quality Manual, including “Advantage Solicitation and
Acceptance” as quoted in earlier Social Aspect B5(2)(ii). In addition,
we regularly issue reminders to all relevant staff, business
associates and suppliers reminding them of our Group Policy on
Accepting and Offering Advantages (i.e. twice a year, before Mid-
Autumn Festival and Chinese Lunar New Year). We are not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance in relation to anti-corruption in
2018.
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#1# Hong Kong Daily News (11/9/2014)

Social Aspect B8 : Community Involvement

Contributing to our communities is a very important part of Giordano’s
ethos. Acting on our belief in a ‘World Without Strangers’, Giordano
actively supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially
those associated with education, children and the underprivileged.

Giordano has engaged in a number of ongoing educational projects:

(1) In 2014, we launched the “Do Not Read This’ campaign in

conjunction with Room to Read, which raised funds for the non-
profit organization through selling limited edition T-shirts in
Giordano’s shops. With Giordano’s donations, Room to Read
published 15,000 copies of two children’s books in two Indian
languages for underprivileged children.

(2) This focus on education for underprivileged children is also evident

in another Giordano’s ongoing project, Project Hope, a public
service project organized by the China Youth Development
Foundation. Giordano has been a long-standing supporter of the
project’s work in providing children in poverty-stricken rural areas of
Mainland China with access to primary school education by funding
the construction of a number of Giordano Hope primary schools. As
at the end of 2018, 22 Giordano primary schools of Hope have
been completed.

(3) We also donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of

children’s welfare in Mainland China.

drea m———
e e Sy S

Hp—ADUOHERESNTEESLE A S RELR Room to Read ihi

One of the children books, in Hindi, published by Room to Read with Giordano’s donation
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We place high priority in creating value for the communities we serve,
which is illustrated through our investment in a variety of community
initiatives. We strive to create a positive impact on the communities
where we conduct business, through collaboration, staff volunteerism
and strategic giving. Our public engagement and donations help us
uphold a commitment to serving the communities by way of cash and
in-kind donations, as well as staff participation.

BYTENEFKRE
Sponsoring Asian Film Awards (3/2018)

Giordano— M AW Z HEMEAMER A E T LEHEBE R MNLE -
Giordanof£20184F #F BIl & B Asian Film Awardszs M & & A 88/ T 1E
AERE  TEXHFTMNEF BB R NHES [ ZEGordanof g
EmH E TR LREIERK

Giordano has always been dedicated to supporting artistic creation
and creative industries, particularly in the Asian region. In 2018, we
sponsored staff uniforms for Asian Film Awards, so as to support
the Asian filming industry and to increase the brand awareness —
working altogether to create our future!

EREAHESHEER

Flag Selling Day for the Hong Kong Society for the Blind
(10/3/2018)

A BEBBEHXMNETIMNBRAL2HEE TS 28EBTFIEEFA
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24 Hong Kong Headquarters staff and their relatives volunteered for
flag-selling with all donations contributed to the Hong Kong Society
for the Blind to fund its family resources services, braille production
service, residential service for the visually impaired elderly and public
education.

B m A
Blood Donation Day (13/6/2018)

HESINEBETNETHRELES -
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51 Hong Kong Headquarters staff attended the event, and finally 37
of them successfully donated blood for Hong Kong Red Cross
Blood Transfusion Service.
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Amazing Ocean Campaign at KLCC Aquarium (21/7/2018)
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In conjunction with the launch of our Amazing Ocean campaign,
Giordano Malaysia extended its helping hands to the Shelter, a
private funded orphanage home, by:

(a) rectifying and repairing all the damages around the Shelter and
donating daily necessities, such as food, daily hygienic products
and stationeries;

(b) arranging a day visit to KLCC Aquarium with 18 under-privileged
kids from the Shelter on 21 July 2018 so as to arouse social
awareness by advocating the amazing and greatness of our
nature, “OCEAN”, and cheering up the kids with a meaningful

: HSE g day; and

SEA ANIMA] & %

= "

..T‘ (c) gifting the children a few activity and reference books for them
to enjoy and discover more knowledge about the marine life.

(ﬁmmﬁp
YO OCEAN

Giordano JuniorE BB RNV E N EIERRIERNEH

Giordano Junior In-store Events at Manson Shop, Hong
Kong

e ER/NE®
Summer Chef Junior (7/2018)

HEZERFRIINTIE EIER/NERESF - JHARKEEH
BETHXS-ERELZBRIRENNHE -

Responding to the theme of “Team Family”, we organised “Summer
Chef Junior”, in which children learned to make a strawberry
chocolate milkshake with their parents under the guidance of
mentors.

o /N/NTIRER
Little Engineers (8/2018)

ERTFEHNNDIEMIP FBIOPEREEERAE  BREHXRA
2 4E Sponge Motorboat /43 E) I fi - BEBRAK & T2 BN A 20K o

During “Little Engineers”, a parent-child activity, children could get
their creative juice flowing by making a Sponge Motorboat with their
parents, for a taste of being an engineer.
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Mid-Autumn Mooncake Charity Sale (20-28/8/2018)
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Staff from Hong Kong Headquarters purchased 36 boxes of
mooncakes for HK$7,150 totally, to fund Sin Kai Fund Ltd. for
constructing primary schools in poverty-stricken rural areas in
Guizhou, Mainland China.
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Hope World Wide Volunteer Day (8/12/2018)
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e

11 volunteers from the Hong Kong Headquarters partnered with
Hope World Wide to organize a Christmas party for children from
low-income families, in which they played games, made Christmas
decorative materials and had a great afternoon tea break.

RPN o ANATSBARRARMEOAE |

WA bl il |
1 At iord 1 i e

o WAy B tisoe. dealy el o o |

".rl‘M“r‘:l;:-.m(-"l:-c-l 1r\-¢~w¢-.u:r.-fn1w-._amlo\ oz posEtheing

m:a-iiwr:c'.m--rmr\muuurm trg ok -

&_“é““ i
_ e

2018 ESG Report
ESG34 . uammsmss

a® ALL.ALL



GIORDANO

BE - —REER
HREXER

Aspects, General
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4t
Description

RIEE AT : $EM ¥ Environmental Aspect A1 : Emissions

(2018F R 1E »
HtERERRE)
2018 ESG Report

—BEE
General Disclosure

EAERMBAEREHRM RKRTHOHES EERBEESEZVNEESH

a) WK &

b) BFHBETABERAYENBEBERRAOIHNER

nformation on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al

RS ARKIE R A1
KPI A1.1

R TE KR K AR B R P B R
Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

E1 Graph 1

RIS AE ISR A1.2
KPI A1.2

BRERBAEERER(WERTE
Greenhouse gas emission in total and, where appropriate, intensity.

E1 Graph 1

BERRAE IR A1.3
KPI A1.3

FELEEEZEYREER(MER)TE

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.

1 M2
Note 2 of Graph 1

BAREBIER A4
KPI A1.4

FEXEEEEVHEERER
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.

E1 Graph 1

B4R IR 1R A1.5 H OB R HE P2 BV HE B R PTG B R A2
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. B1 Graph 1
B4R AE IR TR A1.6 HAREBEEERBEEZEYN AL BREEESOEERAEKR A2(2)

KPI A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

E1 Graph 1

BRIEEMA2 : EJR £ H Environmental Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

—BEE
General Disclosure

BRERAER(BEER  KREMERME) QBE
Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw
materials.

A2

SRR IE 1R A2.1
KPI A2.1

RENESMEEZER/SHEERAEERTE
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

E1 Graph 1

RIS AE RIS R A2.2
KPI A2.2

HREKEREE
Water consumption in total and intensity.

E1 Graph 1

B iR 48 MR 1R A2.3 g2 R0 A M 5t B RIS R R A2
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. E1 Graph 1
SR IR 1R A2.4 FEALKEGE A KR LAl B EMREE - U RIEA BRI G ERABKRE A2
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water, water efficiency initiatives | Bl1 & i 5£4

and results achieved.

Graph 1 & its Note 4

BERAE IR A2.5
KPI A2.5

BRRBREMENEER(MBER) BEESENUGE
Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with reference
to per unit produced.

E1 Graph 1

BIEEEAS : BiE K XA ER Environmental Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources
— PRI FR WEBETABRERRAERENERLZENHBR A3
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.
W BB IR 1R A3 HAEBEHHRERRAERNEAZELRC KM ERBAHATYENTS A3

KPI' A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and actions taken to manage them.
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#t € EmB1 : {&{& Social Aspect B1 : Employment

KPI B4.1

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.

— R E ERAFTMEREE BERES IERE BREA TEHEg Zxbt REGSUEE | Bl
General Disclosure i 15 38 R AR FAY ¢
(@) B3R &
(o) BFHETATEAXZENHEEZRERBAONER
Information on:
(@) the policies, and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
B8R AE IR 1R B1A BIER - EEER  FiRAR R E D ES AR B2%3
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region. Graph 2 & 3
B4R B R B1.2 BRI FRARI RN EEDNEE R AL X
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
HEEMEB2: EBE%X 2 Social Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
—RERE FARHRLZE2TERERREREHCBELEREEN B2
General Disclosure (a) B%E: &
o) BFTHETABEAZENHBZEZELAMNER
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
7 4R 4B BUIR 1R B2.1 E T/ERRR ML T80 A B R b &
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
MR 4E BB R B2.2 EAIGEARIIEAH
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
B 5 AE IR 1R B2.3 PP IR B R R 2 - ARBEERITRERG A B2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupation health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
=2 EMEBS3 : #E &%l Social Aspect B3 : Development and Training
— R E EHARAREBITIIERENAH RRAENEEK - M FINED B3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.
B 4 4R IR 1R B3 EUHRREEEFNEASNZIEEBES L
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
7 47 4B WIE TR B3.2 ZURIREERRE D  BEEETHZ IO FERE
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.
2 E B4 : % I %8| Social Aspect B4 : Labour Standards
— PR 5R HRARBT IEE T aok il & ThY - B4
General Disclosure (a) BK: &
(o) BFHETABEAXZENHEEZRERBONER
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
B 8245 IR 1R B4 R HEEANEE AR SE T REH ST B4, B5(1)

RSB 1R B4.2
KPI B4.2

P TE B IR B AR B R H R E T o5k il 55 T8 R AT SRR ) 25 B
Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices when
discovered.
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2 EMmB5: #{EHEEE Social Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management

—RIKE

General Disclosure

IR IE SR VIR IR AL B R B B R
Policies on managing environment and social risks of the supply chain.

B5

BA 82 45 WIEIZ B5.1
KPI B5.1

ZEEE s e A

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

[E5 Graph 5

KPI B8.2

Resources contributed to the focus areas.

RASE A B B5.2 % Lﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬁﬁﬁiﬂ’éﬁﬂ’ﬂffﬁl MERNTEBECINMREREE  AREEEANOHM | BS
KPI B5.2 ERRFE
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
& EHEB6 : E @ X1 Social Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility
—REE FAFMREESRNRENRENELZSY BS BERLBFEARBRAEDN B6
General Disclosure (@) B &
o) BFTHETABEAZENHBEZELAONER
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
B 5245 IR 1R B6.1 PEXCEXERAHTALTEREREBAMARNKNE D
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
7 4R 4B BB TR B6.2 BREBRERRRBORFHE URESHFE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
7 47 48 WIE 1R B6.3 M EERERRENREES BB B6(3)
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.
7 47 48 WIE TR B6.4 it 8 1 B AR N E B R e
KPI B6.4 Descnphon of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
7 47 48 WIE 1R B6.5 HAEBEERRERLEBBER ARERARTRERF A B6(4)
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
#t € E@B7 : R &5 Social Aspect B7 : Anti-Corruption
—RERE EBHILEER BE - RFEREREN: B7
General Disclosure (a) B%E: &
b)) BFTHETABEAZENHBZEZELAONER
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B 5245 IR 1R BT RERPANEHETANEEEREYEEANE SHFARGEOHE RFAL
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
B AE IR 1R BT.2 H b EE R BRIEF ARMERNTRERT X B1(3), B7
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
12 EEBS : 4+ E& & Social Aspect B8 : Community Investment
— R E BN RSERTHREEMNCHEFTENERAEKZIDEEEMENZNER | B8
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the community
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
community’s interests.
B 8245 IR 1R B8 EIER S Bs
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.
B5E A5 IR 1R B8.2 EEISEBABHAER
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